
 

Lloyd White 
Head of Democratic Services 
London Borough of Hillingdon, 
3E/05, Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW 
www.hillingdon.gov.uk 

   

North Planning 
Committee 

 

   

Date: THURSDAY, 26 APRIL 2012 
 

Time: 7.00 PM 
 

Venue: COMMITTEE ROOM 5 
CIVIC CENTRE 
HIGH STREET 
UXBRIDGE 
UB8 1UW 
 

  
Meeting 
Details: 

Members of the Public and 
Press are welcome to attend 
this meeting  
 

 

 
To Councillors on the Committee 
 
Eddie Lavery (Chairman) 
Allan Kauffman (Vice-Chairman) 
David Allam (Labour Lead) 
Jazz Dhillon 
Michael Markham 
Carol Melvin 
John Morgan 
David Payne 
 

  
Published: Wednesday, 18 April 2012 

 
 
This agenda and associated 
reports can be made available 
in other languages, in braille, 
large print or on audio tape on 
request.  Please contact us for 
further information.  
 

 Contact: Charles Francis 
Tel: 01895 556454 
Fax: 01895 277373 
democratic@hillingdon.gov.uk 

 
This Agenda is available online at:  
http://modgov.hillingdon.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=116&MId=1159&Ver=4 

Public Document Pack



Useful information 
 
Bus routes 427, U1, U3, U4 and U7 all stop at 
the Civic Centre. Uxbridge underground station, 
with the Piccadilly and Metropolitan lines, is a 
short walk away. Limited parking is available at 
the Civic Centre. For details on availability and 
how to book a parking space, please contact 
Democratic Services 
 
Please enter from the Council’s main reception 
where you will be directed to the Committee 
Room. An Induction Loop System is available for 
use in the various meeting rooms. Please contact 
us for further information.  
 
Please switch off any mobile telephones and 
BlackBerries™ before the meeting. Any 
recording of the meeting is not allowed, either 
using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
 
If there is a FIRE in the building the alarm will 
sound continuously. If there is a BOMB ALERT 
the alarm sounds intermittently. Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.    
 

 



A useful guide for those attending Planning Committee meetings 
 

Security and Safety information 
Fire Alarm - If there is a FIRE in the building the 
fire alarm will sound continuously.  If there is a 
BOMB ALERT the alarm sounds intermittently.  
Please make your way to the nearest FIRE EXIT.  
Recording of meetings – This is not allowed, 
either using electronic, mobile or visual devices.  
Mobile telephones – Please switch off any mobile 
telephones and BlackBerries before the meeting.  
Petitions and Councillors 
Petitions –Petitions– When a petition of 20 
signatures or more of  residents that live, work or 
study in the borough is received they can speak at 
a Planning Committee in support of or against an 
application for up to 5 minutes.  Where multiple 
petitions are received against (or in support of) 
the same planning application, the Chairman of 
the Planning Committee has the discretion to 
amend speaking rights so that there is not a 
duplication of presentations to the meeting. In 
such circumstances, it will not be an automatic 
right that each representative of a petition will 
get 5 minutes to speak. However, the Chairman 
may agree a maximum of 10 minutes if one 
representative is selected to speak on behalf of 
multiple petitions. 
 

Petitions must be submitted in writing to the 
Council in advance of the meeting.  Where there 
is a petition opposing a planning application there 
is also the right for the applicant or their agent to 
address the meeting for up to 5 minutes.   
 

Ward Councillors – There is a right for local 
councillors to speak at Planning Committees about 
applications in their Ward.  
Committee Members – The planning committee is 
made up of the experienced Councillors who meet 
in public every three weeks to make decisions on 
applications. 
How the Committee meeting works 
The Planning Committees consider the most 
complex and controversial proposals for 
development or enforcement action.  
Applications for smaller developments such as 
householder extensions are generally dealt with 
by the Council’s planning officers under delegated 
powers.  
An agenda is prepared for each meeting, which 
comprises reports on each application 
Reports with petitions will normally be taken at 
the beginning of the meeting.   

The procedure will be as follows:-  
1. The Chairman will announce the report;  
2. The Planning Officer will introduce it; with a 
presentation of plans and photographs;  

3. If there is a petition(s),the petition organiser 
will speak, followed by the agent/applicant 

 followed by any Ward Councillors; 
4. The Committee may ask questions of the 
petition organiser or of the agent/applicant;  

5. The Committee debate the item and may seek 
clarification from officers;  

6. The Committee will vote on the 
recommendation in the report, or on an 
alternative recommendation put forward by a 
Member of the Committee, which has been 
seconded. 

About the Committee’s decision 
The Committee must make its decisions by having 
regard to legislation, policies laid down by 
National Government, by the Greater London 
Authority – under ‘The London Plan’ and 
Hillingdon’s own planning policies as contained in 
the ‘Unitary Development Plan 1998’ and 
supporting guidance.  The Committee must also 
make its decision based on material planning 
considerations and case law and material 
presented to it at the meeting in the officer’s 
report and any representations received.  
Guidance on how Members of the Committee must 
conduct themselves when dealing with planning 
matters and when making their decisions is 
contained in the ‘Planning Code of Conduct’, 
which is part of the Council’s Constitution.  
When making their decision, the Committee 
cannot take into account issues which are not 
planning considerations such as the effect of a 
development upon the value of surrounding 
properties, nor the loss of a view (which in itself 
is not sufficient ground for refusal of permission), 
nor a subjective opinion relating to the design of 
the property.  When making a decision to refuse 
an application, the Committee will be asked to 
provide detailed reasons for refusal based on 
material planning considerations.   
If a decision is made to refuse an application, the 
applicant has the right of appeal against the 
decision.  A Planning Inspector appointed by the 
Government will then consider the appeal.  There 
is no third party right of appeal, although a third 
party can apply to the High Court for Judicial 
Review, which must be done within 3 months of 
the date of the decision.  



 

 

Agenda 
 

 

 
Chairman's Announcements 
1 Apologies for Absence 

2 Declarations of Interest in matters coming before this meeting 

3 To sign and receive the minutes of the previous meeting - to follow 

4 Matters that have been notified in advance or urgent 

5 To confirm that the items of business marked Part 1 will be considered in public 
and that the items marked Part 2 will be considered in private 

Reports - Part 1 - Members, Public and Press 
 
Items are normally marked in the order that they will be considered, though the 
Chairman may vary this. Reports are split into ‘major’ and ‘minor’ applications. The 
name of the local ward area is also given in addition to the address of the premises or 
land concerned. 

 
Non Major Applications with a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

6 120 Breakspear Road 
South, Ickenham  
 
13019/APP/2011/3019 
 
 

Ickenham 
 

Alterations to dormer windows 
(Retrospective). 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 

1 - 6 

7 Land R/O St Mathews 
Church, Forge Lane, 
Northwood  
 
62125/APP/2012/281 
 
 

Northwood 
 

3 x two storey, 2-bed, terraced 
dwellings with habitable roofspace 
to include associated parking and 
amenity space involving the 
demolition of existing garage lock 
up. 
 
Recommendation: Refusal 
 

7 - 22 



 

8 19 Grove Road, 
Northwood  
 
27846/APP/2012/226 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Part two storey, part single storey 
rear extension incorporating a 
basement level, single storey 
side/front extension, front porch, 
conversion of roofspace for 
habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, 
and 3 front rooflights and 3 
skylights involving alterations to 
existing elevations and patio, 
stairwell and lightwell to the rear. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

23 - 38 

9 R/O 64-66 Hallowell 
Road, Northwood  
 
2200/APP/2011/2927 
 
 

Northwood 
 

Change of use of the existing 
ancillary outbuilding to 4 x 1-bed 
residential care units, to include 
alterations to elevation. 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

39 - 56 

10 5 Poplars Close, 
Ruislip  
 
61775/APP/2011/1204 
 
 

West 
Ruislip 
 

Single storey side/rear extension. 
 
Deferred from North Committee 
21 Feb 2012 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

57 - 66 

 
Non Major Applications without a Petition 
 

 Address Ward Description & Recommendation Page 

11 214 Whitby Road, 
Ruislip   
 
35710/APP/2012/171 
 
 

Cavendish 
 

Change of use of ground floor 
from retail (Use Class A1) to 
dental surgery (Use Class D1) 
 
Recommendation: Approval 

67 - 76 



 

12 The Swan PH, 
Breakspear Road 
North, Harefield  
 
18239/APP/2012/242 
 
 

Harefield 
 

Two storey detached building to 
contain 6, two-bedroom, self 
contained flats with associated 
parking and amenity space and 
alterations to existing vehicle 
crossover to front, (involving 
demolition of existing building). 
(Resubmission). 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
subject to S 106 / unilateral 
undertaking 
 

77 - 110 

13 The Swan PH, 
Breakspear Road 
North, Harefield   
 
18239/APP/2012/244 
 
 

Harefield 
 

Demolition of existing two-storey 
detached building (Application for 
Conservation Area Consent) 
(Resubmission). 
 
Recommendation: Approval 
 

111 - 
114 

 
Other 
 

    Page 

14 S 106 Quarterly 
Monitoring Report to 
31 December 2011 
 
 

 
 

 115 - 
126 

 

 
Plans for North Planning Committee                                   127 - 168 



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

120 BREAKSPEAR ROAD SOUTH ICKENHAM

Alterations to dormer windows (Retrospective)

13/12/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 13019/APP/2011/3019

Drawing Nos: Photographs
MP155/AL01 Rev. A

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application property is a three bedroom rendered bungalow with converted habitable
roof space situated on the corner of Breakspear Road South and Copthall Road West in
west Ickenham. As such, it is very prominent and also unusual by the fact that most of the
houses in this area are of two-storey height. The surrounding residential area comprises
mainly of large detached, uniformly spaced and set back properties that create a
distinctive quality of appearance but is not otherwise designated for any special protection
under the current Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

The proposal is for the retention of alterations made to the existing dormer windows on
this bungalow, one on the side roof facing the neighbouring property, No. 118 Breakspear
Road South, the other a larger dormer facing the street forming the return frontage on
Copthall Road West.

The bargeboard and eaves height of the original flat roofed dormer windows have been
retained and a parapet (or hipped) roof added for insulation purposes across their full
length and width, thus raising the height of these roof additions by 0.5 metre to match the
full ridge height of the bungalow. The top and sides of both the dormers are finished in
clay roof and hanging tiles to match those used on the remainder of the roof slopes on the
bungalow.

13019/APP/2011/1947 120 Breakspear Road South Ickenham

Alterations to dormer windows (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for an
Existing Development)

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

13/12/2011Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 6

Page 1



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

An application to confirm that the dormer window alterations carried out were lawful was
refused under ref. 13019/APP/2011/3019 in October 2011. This decision was made on the
basis that part of the development extended beyond the plane of the existing roof slope(s)
forming the principal elevation of the dwelling and fronting a highway. Furthermore, these
alterations had been completed less than four years and thus the Council was not
prevented from taking enforcement action.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE24

HDAS-EXT

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

12 neighbouring occupiers consulted, two letters of support received, one accompanied
by a petition of 18 signatures, commenting on the improved look of the dormers compared
to box-like appearance of the originals.

4.

13019/C/78/1457 120 Breakspear Road South Ickenham

Householder development (small extension, garage etc.)

21-10-2011

20-10-1978

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Approved

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main issues for consideration relate to the effect of the proposal on the character and
appearance of the original building and on the visual amenities of the surrounding area.
The amenities of neighbouring occupiers are also considered.

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Appeal:

Page 2



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policy BE13 considers whether the
appearance of a development would harmonise with the street scene; and Policy BE15
with the scale, form and proportions of the original building. The adopted Supplementary
Planning Document, the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Residential
Extensions (HDAS) also sets out, in section 7.0, guidance on various forms of roof
extension.

Whilst front roof extensions through the creation of dormer windows are considered
acceptable on bungalows, those which may also be highly visible from public views on the
rear must also be well designed. The principle factors in such additions are whether they
would create the appearance of an additional storey and if added to both sides and the
rear for instance, whether they would thus create the impression of one large extension.

At No. 120, the dormer roof additions have been in place for a number of years and were
probably added under permitted development rights that applied then. In any case these
would have pre-dated the adoption of formal design guidance. The element of these which
needs to be assessed here therefore is the introduction of the hipped roofs to the dormers
that are the retrospective proposal. At present, these alterations were completed less than
four years ago (in August 2008) and are thus still not immune from enforcement action
and thereby unlawful.

In general, HDAS (in paragraph 7.9) encourages the use of pitched or hipped roofs in
preference to flat roofs on side facing dormers provided that these have a similar angle to
the main roof slope and are finished in materials to match those of the existing building.
However, paragraph 7.5 of HDAS further states that such roof extensions should also
relate well to the proportions, roof forms and massing of the existing house and those of
neighbouring properties and should therefore appear secondary to the size of the roof
face within which it will be set. Thus if dormers are proposed on both the side and rear
roof slopes they must remain independent from each other and not wrap around to create
one large extension.

In this regard, the combined length and height of the dormer windows, which match the
main ridge height of the bungalow, appear bulky, top heavy and thus out of proportion to
the original roof slope and dwelling form. Furthermore, the increased size of the dormers,
when viewed from the street, in particular the side facing dormer to Copthall Road West
which continues around three sides of the original roof, results in a dominant and thus
intrusive feature of the street scene. 

Whilst the addition of these roofs has invited some local support, the resultant size and
proportion of the dormers in this highly visible position nonetheless fails to harmonise with
the original building and is therefore detrimental to the appearance and character of the
surrounding area. As such, the proposal is considered contrary to Hillingdon UDP Saved
Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions.

The privacy of the adjoining occupiers, at No. 118, has also been improved by the
applicant who has chosen to insert obscure glazing to both windows, though these can be
opened, to the bedrooms within the roof space on the first floor (in addition to the
bathroom window overlooking the road). This feature is not strictly part of the proposal, as
the previously installed windows to the dormers were clear. 

Page 3



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2 Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed alterations, by reason of the overall size, bulk and resultant increase in the
height of the dormers, would be out of proportion with the existing roof and thus fail to
harmonise with the scale and form of the original dwelling. As such, it would represent a
dominant and intrusive feature of the local street scene, detrimental to the appearance
and character of the surrounding area. The proposal is thus contrary to Policies BE13,
BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September
2007) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential
Extensions.

1

INFORMATIVES

RECOMMENDATION6.

Whilst these are habitable room windows, for which the insertion of obscure glazing would
not normally be considered acceptable for future occupants, they were not part of the
original bungalow and the form of such openings would still allow light and ventilation thus
should not otherwise prevent them from being used as bedrooms.

For the reason given, the application should therefore be refused.

Standard Informatives 

1           The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to REFUSE planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE24

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy

2

Page 4



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Daniel Murkin 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

HDAS-EXT

to neighbours.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

Page 5



46.3m
90

89

96

98

LB

El Sub Sta

95

108

39.9m

74

84

120

41.8m
91

41.8m

99
45.1m

70

114

P
ath

 (u
m

)

B
R

E
A

K
S

P
E

A
R

 R
O

A
D

 S
O

U
TH

C
O

P
T

H
A

L
L

 R
O

A
D

 W
E

S
T

40.5m
´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

120 Breakspear Road South
Ickenham

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

13019/APP/2011/3019

Page 6



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LAND REAR OF ST. MATHEWS CHURCH FORGE LANE NORTHWOOD 

3 x two storey, 2-bed, terraced dwellings with habitable roofspace to include
associated parking and amenity space involving the demolition of existing
garage lock ups

02/02/2012

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 62125/APP/2012/281

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
4 x Existing Photographs
11/2607/1B
Daylight and Sunlight Report
Design and Access Statement
11/2607/2A
11/2607/4A
11/2607/3A

Date Plans Received: 02/02/2012
22/02/2012

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The scheme proposes to erect three, 2 storey, 2 bedroom terraced dwellings with
habitable roofspace and associated parking and amenity space. The existing garages
would be demolished. The proposal fails to meet all relevant council standards in terms
of unworkable parking layout, private amenity space provision, distance from adjacent
properties, unit size and failure to demonstrate refuse storage facilities and cycle storage.
As such this application is recommended for refusal.

REFUSAL   for the following reasons:

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

The proposed development by reason of its, size, scale, bulk and siting would result in an
overdominant and visually intrusive form of development, which would be detrimental to
the amenities of adjacent residential occupiers in the adjoining terrace at the rear of St
Matthews Church, contrary to policies BE19 and BE21 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The floor area for the proposed dwelling is below the minimum required for a two-
bedroom two/three storey dwelling. As such the proposal would fail to provide a
satisfactory residential environment for future occupiers, contrary to Policy 3.5 and Table
3.3 of the London Plan (2011) and Policy BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The proposal fails to provide an adequate amount of private usable amenity space for the
future occupiers of the houses. As such, the proposal represents sub-standard

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

22/02/2012Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 7

Page 7



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NON2

NON2

NON2

NON2

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

Non Standard reason for refusal

residential accommodation which would not afford adequate living conditions for its future
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies BE19 and BE23 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the
Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

The proposal fails to provide a workable car parking layout, when taking into account the
need to provide waste storage facilities and turning areas for emergency vehicles. The
proposal is therefore deficient in off-street car parking provision and does not accord with
the Council's adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies, September 2007) and accordingly would be likely to
give rise to additional on-street car parking, to the detriment of highway and pedestrian
safety, contrary to policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

The proposal has failed to provide adequate waste storage facilities, in a suitable
location, in accordance with the Council's adopted standards, and therefore is contrary
Policies BE19 and AM7(ii) of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

The proposal has failed to provide adequate cycle parking provision in accordance with
the Council's adopted standards, and therefore the proposal is contrary to Policy AM7 of
the Unitary Development Plan Saved Polices September 2007.

The proposal would fail to meet all relevant Lifetime Home Standards, contrary to
Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 3.9 of the London Plan (2011) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon.

4

5

6

7

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is a square shaped plot of land, 366sq.m in area, which is located to
the north west of Forge Lane, at the rear of St Matthew's Church and comprises single
storey derelict lock up garages in two blocks on the northern and southern boundaries of
the site, with a small builders/scrap yard to the front of the southern 4 garage blocks.
Immediately abutting the site to the north is a single storey vehicle workshop, to the east,
beyond the vehicle access is a two storey Victorian terrace in use as the offices for a
development company, Presbytery and ancillary residential accommodation for the
church, the Metropolitan line to the west and a new three storey flatted development to the
south (Nos 1 to 6 St Matthews Court, Forge Lane). The site lies within the Old Northwood
Area of Special Local Character as identified within the adopted Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

3.2 Proposed Scheme

Planning permission is sought for the erection of a 12.95m wide two storey building with a
mansard roof with habitable rooms in the roof space. The building would be 6.65m high to
eaves level and 8.25m high to ridge level. The building would be sited on the northern

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 8



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Planning permission was refused for the erection of a three storey terrace to provide for
three 3-bedroom dwellings with a front mansard roof slope incorporating 6 dormer
windows at second floor level, together with the provision of frontage parking, cycle
storage and a refuse bin enclosure(Ref: 62125/APP/2006/2256) for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its detailed design which includes windows at
the front that have no uniform fenestration and by reason of its featureless windowless

boundary of the site, abutting the adjoining workshop unit and be 3.85m deep on the
ground floor. 

The building would comprise 3 x two-bedroom, terraced houses. Each of the units would
have a first floor rear balcony measuring 4.3sq.m. Main habitable room windows would be
on the rear elevation, with only bathroom and kitchen windows on the front elevation.
There are no windows proposed in the side elevations.

Six car parking spaces are proposed, two to serve each two-bedroom house. Three of
these parking spaces would be situated at the front of the proposed houses and the other
three parking spaces to the side of the building. Details of cycle store and a refuse store
are not provided. Each two-bedroom house would have private amenity space to the rear
of the property and including the balcony of approximately 53.86sq.m, 30.93sq.m and
34.27sq.m.

Landscaping would be proposed to the front of the site, consisting of hard landscaping
with traditional stone cobbles and steel bollards with chains. Two trees are proposed on
the corner as you enter the site and the rear gardens will be laid with grass.

62125/APP/2006/2256

62125/APP/2008/923

62125/APP/2009/729

Land Rear Of St. Mathews Church Forge Lane Northwood 

Land Rear Of St. Mathews Church Forge Lane Northwood 

Land Rear Of St Matthews Church  Forge Lane Northwood 

ERECTION OF A THREE STOREY TERRACE TO PROVIDE FOR THREE 3-BEDROOM
DWELLINGS WITH A FRONT MANSARD ROOF SLOPE INCORPORATING 6 DORMER
WINDOWS AT SECOND FLOOR LEVEL; TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISION OF
FRONTAGE PARKING, CYCLE STORAGE AND A REFUSE BIN ENCLOSURE (EXISTING
GARAGES TO BE DEMOLISHED)

ERECTION OF A THREE STOREY TERRACE TO PROVIDE FOR 3 TWO-BEDROOM
DWELLINGS WITH A FRONT MANSARD ROOF SLOPE INCORPORATING 6 DORMER
WINDOWS AT SECOND FLOOR LEVEL; TOGETHER WITH THE PROVISION OF
FRONTAGE PARKING, CYCLE STORAGE AND A REFUSE BIN ENCLOSURE (EXISTING
GARAGES TO BE DEMOLISHED).

3 two-bedroom terraced dwellings with habitable roofspace and associated parking.

04-01-2007

15-08-2008

23-02-2010

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

DismissedAppeal: 23-02-2010

Page 9



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

rear and side elevations represents a mix of design features which are not characteristic
of this part of the Forge Lane to the detriment of the visual amenities of Forge Lane. The
proposal is therefore contrary to Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Borough's adopted
Unitary Development Plan and the HDAS on Residential Layouts.

2. The proposed development by reason of its design, siting, overall height, bulk, and
massing and excessive density gives rise to a cramped and incongruous form of
development that would result in overdevelopment of the site. It therefore fails to
harmonise with its surroundings and would be out of keeping with the character and
appearance of the immediate locality, contrary to Policy BE5 and BE19 of the Borough's
adopted Unitary Development Plan and the HDAS on Residential Layouts and the HDAS
on Residential Extensions.

3. The proposal by reason of its siting, size and bulk in relation to adjacent neighbours
would result in an over dominant and visually intrusive form of development which would
be detrimental to the amenities of adjacent neighbouring residential occupiers contrary to
policies BE5, BE20 and BE21 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan, as well as the
HDAS on Residential Layout.

4. The proposal does not provide an adequate amount of private usable amenity space for
the future occupiers of the houses. Accordingly, the development is contrary to Policy
BE23 of the Borough  s adopted Unitary Development Plan and HDAS on Residential
Layout.

5. The proposal fails to provide sufficient off-street car parking for the three houses. As
such the proposal is likely to result in on-street parking to the detriment of highway and
pedestrian safety. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policies AM7 (ii) and AM14 of the
Borough  s adopted Unitary Development Plan and the Interim Car Parking Standards
(2001).

6. The proposed development would result in the direct overlooking of the adjacent
properties causing an unacceptable loss of privacy to existing occupiers. The proposal is
therefore contrary to policy BE24 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan and HDAS on
Residential Layouts.

7. The proposal by reason of its insufficient number and siting of windows would result in
a lack of outlook and a reliance on artificial lighting that would be detrimental to the
residential amenities of the future occupants of these houses, contrary to Policies BE20
and OE12 of the Borough's adopted Unitary Development Plan.

8. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement has not been secured,
the proposal is considered to be contrary to policy R17 of the adopted Unitary
Development Plan.

Planning permission was refused for the erection of a three storey terrace to provide for 3
two-bedroom dwellings with a front mansard roof slope incorporating 6 dormer windows at
second floor level; together with the provision of frontage parking, cycle storage and a
refuse bin enclosure (Ref: 62125/APP/2008/923) for the following reasons:

1. The proposed development by reason of its design, siting, overall height, bulk, and
massing and excessive density gives rise to a cramped and incongruous form of

Page 10



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

development that would result in overdevelopment of the site. It therefore fails to
harmonise with its surroundings and would be out of keeping with the character and
appearance of the immediate locality, contrary to Policy BE5 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan, the Council's HDAS (SPD) "Residential Layouts" and Policy
3A.3 of the London Plan.

2. The proposal by reason of its siting, size and bulk would result in an overdominant and
visually intrusive form of development, which would be detrimental to the amenities of
adjacent neighbouring residential occupiers contrary to Policies BE5, BE20 and BE21 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan and the Council's HDAS (SDP): Residential
Layouts.

3. The proposal does not provide an adequate amount of private usable amenity space for
the future occupiers of the houses to the detriment of the amenities of future occupiers
and contrary to Policies BE19 and BE23 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan and
the Council's HDAS (SDP) Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development by reason of its siting and design would result in the direct
overlooking of the adjacent properties and direct overlooking of the proposed building
from the adjacent residential flats causing an unacceptable loss of privacy to existing and
future occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to Policy BE24 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan and the Council's HDAS (SDP) Residential Layouts.

5. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional educational provision would need to be made in the locality due to the
shortfall of places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement to address
this issue has not at this stage been offered, the proposal is considered to be contrary to
policy R17 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

Planning permission was refused for 3 x two-bedroom terraced dwellings with habitable
roofspace and associated parking in (Ref: 62125/APP/2009/729) for the following
reasons:

1. The proposal, in terms of its layout, height, bulk, massing and excessive density gives
rise to a cramped and incongruous form of development that would result in the
overdevelopment of the site. It fails to harmonise with its surroundings and would be out of
keeping with the character and appearance of the Old Northwood Area of Special Local
Character, contrary to policy BE5, BE13 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and policy 3A.3 and Table 3A.2 of
the London Plan (February 2008) and the Council's adopted Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

2. The proposed development by reason of its siting, size and bulk would result in an
overdominant and visually intrusive form of development, which would be detrimental to
the amenities of adjacent residential occupiers in the adjoining terrace at the rear of the St
Matthews Church, contrary to policies BE19 and BE21 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Council's adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

3. The proposal fails to provide an adequate amount of private usable amenity space for
the future occupiers of the houses. As such, the proposal represents sub-standard
residential accommodation which would not afford adequate living conditions for its future
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies BE19 and BE23 of the adopted

Page 11



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007) and the Council's
adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposal, given the siting of two adjoining parking spaces at St Matthew Court
which are not shown on Drw. No. 2841/1E, fails to provide a workable car parking layout
for the western most unit when the adjoining space(s) are in use. The proposal is
therefore deficient in off-street car parking provision and does not accord with the
Council's adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies, September 2007) and accordingly would be likely to
give rise to additional on-street car parking, to the detriment of highway and pedestrian
safety, contrary to policies AM7(ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

This decision was the subject of an appeal which was dismissed in February 2010.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

BE5

OE1

H4

AM14

R17

AM7

OE5

HDAS-LAY

CACPS

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

New development within areas of special local character

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Mix of housing units

New development and car parking standards.

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,

Part 2 Policies:

Page 12



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

LPP 3.1

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 3.9

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.7

LPP 7.1

LPP 7.3

September 2007)

(2011) Ensuring equal life chances for all

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Renewable energy

(2011) Building London's neighbourhoods and communities

(2011) Designing out crime

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

24 neighbouring properties were consulted by letter on 24th February 2012 and a site notice was
posted on 2nd March 2012. Two letter of objection have been received, attached to which is a
petition with 80 signatories, making the following points:

1. This application fails to address all the reasons for refusal of previous applications.
2. Over-development of a site with narrow and restricted access which could present difficulties for
emergency vehicles. 
3. The proposal is of excessive mass/bulk. 
4. The proposal would be out of character in the Old Northwood Area of special Local Character,
and would completely change a possibly unique survival of a late Victorian industrial street scene. 
5. There would be an increase in traffic - providing 6 parking spaces seems excessive in relation to
Council/GLA policy, and at present only one lock-up garage is in use and none of the other garages
generate any vehicle movements. 
6. The increase in activity would worsen an already unsatisfactory situation where there is no
seperate footway for pedestrians. 
7. The Daylight and sunlight report is defective - it makes the assumption that the Presbytery is
commercial in nature. In fact the ground floor windows facing the proposed development are the
principal living rooms of the priests' accommodation, and are the only source of natural light for
those rooms. It would appear that there will be a 'no-sky' impact on these rooms. The 25 section
line test referred to in the report would certainly seem to be exceeded. It is difficult to be sure what
would be the impact of the slope of the site - the report is based on the submitted plans which do
not show the slope of the site, which could mean that the proposed roofline is even higher in
relation to the Victorian terrace facing it. 
8. The proposal would result in loss of amenity to residents of the Presbytery due to the perception
of overlooking domestic rooms, the loss of direct view of the sky, and the excessive mass so close
to the windows. 
9. The arrangements for storage and collection of rubbish and recycling are not obvious. Forge

Page 13



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

CONSERVATION AND URBAN DESIGN:

COMMENTS: No objection, please condition the following:

Samples of all external materials to be submitted prior to start of work
Design details of external doors windows to be submitted prior to the commencement of this
element of the scheme
Samples of materials for hard surfacing in front of the new buildings to be submitted for agreement
before this element of the works commences.
A landscape plan for the site, including details of boundary treatment and lighting, to be submitted
for agreement as above. 

CONCLUSION: No objection subject to the above.

LANDSCAPE AND TREES:

LANDSCAPE CONTEXT: The site is occupied by two lines of lock up garages in a cul-de-sac
behind St Matthews Church. There are no trees or other significant landscape features affecting
the site itself. However, there is a line of tall off-site trees on the western boundary on the eastern
boundary of the London Underground car park serving Northwood Station. The nearest protected
trees are those in the grounds of the Church Hall, off Hallowell Road, which are protected by TPO

Lane is unsuitable for transit by refuse vehicles owing to lack of turning space (not achievable
without trespassing onto the Church car park). At present rubbish has to be carried out by hand,
and recycling is put out onto the footway of Hallowell Road (or often onto Church land, and any
increase in volume would worsen the problem. 
10. There is concern about the capacity of the foul water drainage - in heavy rain, sewage has
been known to be forced up through the manhole at the angle of Forge Lane any increase in
loading without remedial measures threatens to worsen the problem. 
11. As noted in Appendix A of the supporting documents, the private amenity space for the
proposed development is inadequate. 
12. Given that the Design & Access statement envisages the possibility of the continuation of this
style of building should further land become available (i.e. to the north), the proposal should be
given the benefit of any latitude in the Council's requirements, as it would be the yardstick by which
any further buildings might be judged. 
13. The proposed development would also make doubtful the viability of the adjoining car
workshop, owing to the loss of the use of garage space and parking space, and thus be contrary to
the council's policy of where possible supporting commercial employment activity. 
14. The size and number of dwellings proposed is far too great for the area of land on which it is
proposed to be built.
15. A three storey building so close to St Matthews Court will undoubtedly have an impact on the
amount of daylight entering my property and particularly the living room at 2 St Matthews Court
which faces the proposed development.
16. The plan shows six parking spaces. I cannot see how 3 parking spaces on the south of the
proposed flats can be accessed without the users of these places driving on to St Matthews Court's
property.
17. The Waste Service asks us to put some of our rubbish at the entrance of Forge Lane because
they are unable to drive down Forge Lane. The proposed plans would mean a 50% increase in the
volume of waste left at the entrance to Forge Lane. 
18. The whole area is very tightly packed. It is difficult to move cars in and out with the current level
of activity in Forge Lane. The addition of more traffic will reduce the quality of living for all the
current residents. I cannot see how anything other than a single property for one family would be
acceptable to the current residents.

Page 14



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

No. 55. These will not be affected by the current scheme.

PROPOSAL: The proposal is to demolish the existing garages and build three, two-storey terraced
houses, with associated parking (for three cars) against the southern flank wall and a further three
spaces along the front elevation, separated by a strip of hard landscaping providing access to the
buildings.  Each house is to have a rear west-facing garden.

LANDSCAPE CONSIDERATIONS: Saved policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and landscaping
wherever it is appropriate.

· No trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the development and the
proposal has the potential to improve the appearance of this area. 
· The rear elevations and back gardens face almost due west. While this outlook is acceptable
during the winter months when the trees are not in leaf - it is likely that there will be significant
shading of the gardens and rear elevations in the summer months. According to drawing No.
11/2607/1 Rev B, the central house will have has the smallest garden with access only possible
through the house. 
· The above drawing indicates a predominantly hard landscaped treatment to the front of the
properties which should be well detailed to enhance the mews-style housing. Tree planting is
indicated in the front and to the rear. Trees should be carefully selected (form and variety) and
sited in order to both enhance the setting and appearance of the development without causing
excessive shade or conflict with the buildings.
· There is no evidence of bin/bike storage, which should be securely and discretely sited away form
public view preferably to the rear of the building. 
· A landscape management/maintenance plan should be submitted to ensure that the landscape in
communal areas is established and maintained in accordance with good practice. Alternatively the
responsibility for the establishment and maintenance of specific areas should be assigned to
individual properties/owners and the local planning authority informed accordingly.

RECOMMENDATIONS: No objection, subject to the above considerations and conditions  RES6,
RES9 (excluding section 3).

HIGHWAYS:

The site is accessed from Forge Lane via Hallowell Road, which is an unclassified road. Forge
Lane is a privately maintained 4.5m wide x 43m long shared carriageway, leading to Hallowell Road
which is benefiting from 6.5m wide carriageway and 2.0m wide footway on both sides with parking
management restriction.

Proposal is to demolish existing ten garages and construct 3 two storey two bedroom dwelling with
associated six parking spaces, which complies with policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan, Saved Policies, September 2007, however, the applicant has failed to address
the following:

1) The effect of loss of existing garages as a result of new development on public highway. 
2) Their lawful right of access into and out of Forge Lane assuming that the entrance into proposed
off street parking area is from Forge lane that is privately maintained. 
3) Proposed location of refuse bin stores and their means of collection by the waste collection
vehicle in relation to Hallowell Road is unclear. Waste collection vehicles should be able to access
the waste refuse bin collection point within 10m distance of four wheeled containers and 15m for
two wheeled containers, whilst occupants of dwelling should not be required to carry waste more
than 30m to the storage point. 
4) The applicant should provide a vehicle tracking to show that emergency vehicles can easily

Page 15



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

No objections are raised to the loss of the lock-up garages which are of little architectural
or historical interest and are largely vacant and do not serve surrounding residential
properties. Furthermore, the builder's/scrap yard is also little used and given its small size
and siting, adjacent to residential properties, it would not be suitable for industrial
redevelopment. The proposal therefore accords with policy LE4 of the saved UDP and no
objections are raised to the principle of development in this mixed residential/commercial
area.

The London Plan 2011 requires that new housing within a suburban setting and a PTAL
score of 2 to generally be in the range of 150-250 habitable rooms per hectare (hr/ha) and
50-95 units per hectare (u/ha). The residential density of the proposed development
equates to 245.9 hr/ha and 82 u/ha. As such, the proposed scheme is consistent within
the London Plan Density matrix guidelines. However, density is only one consideration
and the proposal needs to comply with other Council and London Plan policies and
standards.

enter/exit the site in forward gear.

In the absence of these issues being satisfactorily addressed, the proposals cannot be supported
on Highways ground and is therefore recommended to be refused.

ACCESS OFFICER:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan Policy 3.8 (Housing Choice)
and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document "Accessible Hillingdon" adopted January
2010.

The scheme should be revised and compliance with all 16 Lifetime Home standards (as relevant)
should be shown on plan.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access should be achieved. Entry to the proposed dwelling house appears to be stepped,
which would be contrary to the above policy requirement. 

2. The internal lobby area and space between front door and bottom stair is insufficient to allow a
wheelchair user to enter and perform a turn into the kitchen area.

3. The front door entrance level WC does not conform to the Lifetime Home Standards due to its
small size and layout. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the toilet pan, with
1100mm between the front edge and any obstruction opposite. Floor gully drainage, to allow for the
future installation of a shower, should be shown on plan.

4. A minimum of one bathroom at first floor level should provide 700mm to side of the WC, with
1100mm provided between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall opposite. To allow the
same bathroom to be used as a wet room in future, plans should indicate floor gully drainage.

5. The plans should indicate a convenient location of a future through the ceiling wheelchair lift.

Conclusion: unacceptable.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 16



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.06

7.07

7.08

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Environmental Impact

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The proposal would not affect any archaeological remains or Listed Buildings and does
not lie within a conservation area. The site does form part of the Old Northwood Area of
Special Local Character. However, the conservation and Urban design officer considers
the overall design and appearance of the proposal acceptable.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

This part of Forge Lane is within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character. The
site adjoins the two storey Victorian terrace on the opposite side of the access road to the
east and would be sited opposite the newly built three storey residential block to the south.
The proposed terraced houses are designed in a mews style with a mansard roof over
and pitched in slightly from the first floor flank walls. The front elevations of the houses
would have a uniform appearance, with traditional windows. In comparison with the design
and appearance of the appeal scheme, the proposal has been improved such that there is
now some space about the buildings, the overall height has been reduced by a metre and
the proposed mansard roof set in from all sides. Given these changes it is considered that
the design and appearance of the building and its impact on the character of the Old
Northwood Area of Special Local Character is acceptable and in compliance with policies
BE5 and BE13 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies,
September 2007).

The site currently comprises single storey detached lock up garages. The two storey
building with habitable rooms in the loft to replace these, at a height of 8.25m, would be
set 15.8m away from the adjoining three storey block of flats and 11.85m from the two-
storey terrace of Victorian properties, which includes the Presbytery of St Mathews
Church. The HDAS: Residential Layouts states that a minimum of 15m should be
maintained in such cases in order to prevent over dominance between properties. It is
considered that the proposed development by reason of its close proximity to the two-
storey terrace of Victorian properties, would block existing views from its habitable room
windows, which would be detrimental to the residential amenity currently enjoyed by this
property. The proposal is therefore considered to be contrary to Policies BE19 and BE21
of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007) and the Council's (SPD) HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

On this issue, the Inspector in his appeal decision commented as follows: 

"The east gable wall of the proposed terrace would stand at 9m, at a distance of 6.6m
from the adjacent terrace. In my view this tall bluff elevation, relieved only by three
obscure glazed windows would have a dominant and overbearing presence when viewed
from the modest houses adjacent. Such an overbearing impact would cause significant
and material harm to the living conditions of occupiers of the dwellings in the southern half
of the terrace, so rendering them contrary to policies BE19 and BE21 of the LBHUDP.
The separation distance would also be well below the 15m recommended in the London
Borough of Hillingdon Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement (HDAS)
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD), a formally adopted document to which I attach
considerable weight." 

Page 17



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

The proposed terrace would be sited a minimum 15m distance from habitable room
windows at the adjacent St Matthew's Court. This block has its amenity space on the
opposite side. As such, the occupiers of the adjoining St Matthew's Court would not be
overlooked. There are no windows proposed in the side elevation and would therefore not
result in any overlooking. As such, the amenities of adjoining residents in St Matthew's
Court would not be adversely affected by loss of privacy.

The units would provide 77 sq.m. of internal floor space which would not satisfy the
minimum standard of 102sq.m. for a three storey house, which this is considered to be, or
even 83sq.m for a two storey two bedroom, four person house, as set out in Policy 3.5
and Table 3.3 of the the London Plan (2011) and would thus result in the provision of
accommodation of an inadequate size to the detriment of the amenities of future
occupiers.

The proposed units would afford an adequate outlook from their habitable rooms which
would face the rear of the site. The nearest part of the adjoining St Matthew's Court being
some 15m from the proposed terraced houses, satisfying the Council's minimum 15m
distance. Furthermore, front windows facing the adjoining Victorian terrace could be
obscure glazed would also ensure that the internal living space of the proposed units
would have adequate privacy.

As regards external amenity space, the Council's HDAS guidelines require a minimum of
60sq.m to be provided for 2/3 bedroom units. Each of the units provides less than 60sq.m
of amenity space, including the balconies. Furthermore, these areas would be overlooked
within a 21m distance from the properties in St Mathews Court. As such, the amount and
quality of the proposed amenity space would not be adequate to provide a satisfactory
standard of amenity for the future occupiers of the proposed units. As such, the proposal
fails to comply with policy BE23 of the Hillingdon UDP Saved Policies (September 2007)
and the Council's (SPD) HDAS: Residential Layouts.

On this issue, the Inspector in his appeal decision commented as follows:

"In my opinion the proposed garden areas would not afford an appropriate area of private
amenity space for future occupiers of the three dwellings. At 23sq m this is well bellow the
60sq m recommended for such dwelling types set out in the Council's HDAS SPD.
Moreover, these areas would be overlooked by elevated elements of accommodation in
the adjacent St Matthew's Court to the south and from first floor windows in the terraced
house to the east. In an effort to mitigate this visual encroachment each space would be
enclosed by a 1.8m wall or timber fence. Because of their diminutive extent and the height
of the enclosure such spaces would afford little opportunities for their enjoyment by future
occupiers. On this basis I determine the proposals would be contrary to policies BE19 and
BE23 of the LBHUDP and the guidance set out in the HDAS SPD, and to Government
policy on recreational areas provision set out in paragraph 17 of PPS3."

The proposal would provide 6 off-street car parking spaces to the front and side of the
properties. Although the site has moderate accessibility to public transport with a PTAL of
2, it is located in close proximity to Northwood Underground Station, being 356m away.
The level of off-street car parking is therefore considered acceptable in this location. 

However, the applicant has failed to provide a vehicle tracking to show that emergency
vehicles can easily enter/exit the site in forward gear. Proposed location of refuse bin
stores and their means of collection by the waste collection vehicle in relation to Hallowell

Page 18



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Road have not been demonstrated. Waste collection vehicles should be able to access
the waste refuse bin collection point within 10m distance of four wheeled containers and
15m for two wheeled containers, whilst occupants of dwelling should not be required to
carry waste more than 30m to the storage point. It is therefore considered that the
proposed parking layout is unworkable and results in a deficiency of off-street car parking.
Details of cycle storage have not been provided. The proposal is thus contrary to policy
AM7 and AM14 of the adopted UDP saved policies and the Council's adopted car parking
Standards.

See section 7.07 above.

The proposal fails to comply with the Lifetime Home Standards for the following reasons: 
· Entry to the proposed dwelling house appears to be stepped and would not provide level
access;
· The internal lobby area and space between front door and bottom stair is insufficient to
allow a wheelchair user to enter and perform a turn into the kitchen area;
· The front door entrance level WC does not conform to the Lifetime Home Standards due
to its small size and layout. At least 700mm should be provided to one side of the toilet
pan, with 1100mm between the front edge and any obstruction opposite. Floor gully
drainage, to allow for the future installation of a shower, should be shown on plan.
  A minimum of one bathroom at first floor level should provide 700mm to side of the WC,
with 1100mm provided between the front edge of the toilet pan and a door or wall
opposite. To allow the same bathroom to be used as a wet room in future, plans should
indicate floor gully drainage.
· The plans should indicate a convenient location of a future through the ceiling wheelchair
lift.
The scheme would therefore fail to satisfy Lifetime homes standards with little revision
and is considered unacceptable.

Not applicable to this application.

The application site does not have any trees on it at present, as such the proposal does
not have any implications with regard to tree retention or removal. The Council's Trees
and Landscape Officer has raised no objections to the proposal which would achieve
appropriate outcomes in terms of policy BE38.

See section 7.10 above.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The comments of the objectors are covered in the main body of the report.

Education services advise that as there is not currently a local shortfall in education places
within the area and they are not currently seeking contributions from housing development
in the Northwood area. Given the relative small scale of the development, no other S106

Page 19



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

contributions would be required.

Not applicable to this application.

None.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

National planning guidance encourages an imaginative approach to make the full and
effective use of already developed land in urban areas. However, this should not be at the
expense of other material planning considerations.

It is considered that the proposal by reason of its proximity to residential building lying
opposite the front elevation resulting in an over-dominant and visually intrusive form of
development which would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjacent residential
properties, the failure to provide units of the required size or adequate private usable
amenity space for future occupiers, the failure to cater for cycle/waste storage facilities or
turning facilities for emergency vehicles resulting in a parking layout which is unworkable
and therefore does not satisfy Council's standards or to meet lifetime homes standards, is
unacceptable and is recommended for refusal.

Page 20



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

11. Reference Documents

London Plan (2011)
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statements: 'Residential Layouts and Accessible
Hillingdon
Hillingdon Supplementary Planning Document: Planning Obligations
Letters making representations

Mandeep Chaggar 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 21



43

St Matthew's

24

Northwood

tio
n P

arad
e

50

L W
A

Y

5

39

4

22

8

61

5a

6

5

59

15

26

Works

17

Presby

1

51

Issues

Tara

60

38

71.9m

S
L

2

LB

5

23
H

A
LL

O
W

E
LL R

O
A

D

21

53

71.9m

Car Park

ASHURST CLOSE

3

12

13

28

32

16

Boys Club

1

2

ELGIN

RC Church

75.0m

4

FORGE LANE

DRIV
E

49

29

LB

14

Hall

29a

St John's Church

Hall

1

19

1

SL

31

St Matthew's

1 to 6

Court

1

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Land rear of St. Matthews Church
Forge Lane
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

62125/APP/2012/281

Page 22



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

19 GROVE ROAD NORTHWOOD

Part two storey, part single storey rear extension incorporating a basement
level, single storey side/front extension, front porch, conversion of roofspace
for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, and 3 front rooflights and 3 skylights
involving alterations to existing elevations and patio, stairwell and lightwell to
the rear

31/01/2012

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 27846/APP/2012/226

Drawing Nos: 1480/1
1480/20 Rev. A
1480/21 Rev. A

Date Plans Received: 15/03/2012Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application site is located on the north side of Grove Road and comprises a two
storey detached dwelling with a front projecting bay window. Consistent with the rest of
the properties on this side of the street it has a relatively wide frontage. Land levels are
generally even and level throughout the area.

To the west lies 17 Grove Road and to the east lies 21 Grove Road, both detached
houses of similar scale, but varying in design to the application property. No.21 has been
extended from its original form as have several other properties in the street.

The street scene is residential in character and appearance comprising two storey
detached houses and the application site lies within the developed area as identified in the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The application is a further application following on from recent approvals and refusals for
various extensions to the property, which are detailed in the planning history below.

The majority of the proposals are the same as that granted under reference
27846/APP/2010/2916. However this current proposal now incorporates basement level
accommodation under the proposed rear extension which would also extend in part
beyond the rear of the extension. 

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

31/01/2012Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 8

Page 23



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

It should be noted that the plans have been amended during the course of this application
by providing alterations to the height and extent of the terrace/patio area at the rear of the
property, now accessed by steps down from the house, and by changes to the
lightwells/stairwells serving the basement.

The proposal above ground is primarily the same as that previously approved under
reference 27846/APP/2010/2916. This granted planning permission for a part two storey,
part single storey rear extension, single storey side/front extension, front porch, alterations
to existing elevations and conversion of roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side,
and 3 front rooflights and 3 skylights.

The basement now proposed would be provided below the full width of the proposed rear
extension, with the basement also extending beyond the rear elevation of the extension by
a further 4.4m closest to 21 Grove Road, with a width of 5.5m (retaining a 1m gap to the
side boundary). The roof of the basement level extending beyond the rear would provide a
patio area, with a lightwell provided at its far end. The patio area would be lower than the
slab level of the existing house and would be accessed by steps from the rear elevation of
the extension. A stairwell and lightwell to the rear of the main extension would also be
provided at the western end of the extended house.

Compared with the original application there are also some amendments proposed to the
internal layouts and the side elevation facing No.21 Grove Road.

The proposal is therefore for a part two storey, part single storey rear extension
incorporating a basement level, single storey side/front extension, front porch, conversion
of roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, and 3 front rooflights and 3 skylights
involving alterations to existing elevations and a patio, stairwell and lightwell to the rear.

As before, the two storey rear extension would measure 4m in depth along the boundary
with nos.17 and 21 Grove Road and 6m in depth in the middle section. The two storey
extension would be set in 0.75m in from the side walls of the original house with a hipped
roof that would be at the same height as the main dwelling roof.

As before, the ground floor of the rear extension would extend 5m from the existing rear
elevation of the house, extending to 6m in depth in the middle section (flush with the
upper floor). The two storey central feature thus created would be finished with a hipped
roof.

To the eastern side of the house the existing garage and utility room would be replaced
with a new single storey side extension. This would be set in from the side boundary with
No.21 by 1m, and would extend 5m beyond the rear elevation of the house, and
integrated into the proposed extensions at the rear. It would have a tiled, hipped roof
rising from 2.5m eaves level up to 3.5m in height where is adjoins the house (as
measured from the front of the house). 

As before, the loft space would be converted for habitable use and would include 2 rear
rooflights, 3 rooflights within the central flat section of the roof, 2 high level rooflights
within the side roof slopes and 3 rooflights within the front roof slope. 

As before, within the side elevation facing no. 21, the existing bathroom window is
proposed to be replaced with 2 obscure glazed windows serving shower rooms whilst
facing no. 17, the existing side window (currently serving a bedroom) will be enlarged and

Page 24



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

There is a substantial amount of recent planning history in relation to this site, none of
which has been implemented to date.

Planning permission was granted in March 2011 for a part two storey, part single storey
rear extension, single storey side/front extension, front porch, alterations to existing
elevations and conversion of roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2 side, and 3 front
rooflights and 3 skylights (Ref: 27846/APP/2010/2916).

A Certificate of Lawful Development was granted in March 2012 for for a single storey
side extension(Ref:27846/APP/2012/227).

A Certificate of Lawful Development was granted in July 2011 for a single storey side
extension with 4 roof lanterns (Ref:27846/APP/2011/1298).

obscure glazed to serve a bathroom.

As before, alterations to the front elevation of the property include a new front porch with
timbered roof above plus the introduction of a matching pitched roof to the existing bay
window at first floor.

27846/APP/2010/145

27846/APP/2010/2916

27846/APP/2011/1298

27846/APP/2011/1299

27846/APP/2012/227

19 Grove Road Northwood

19 Grove Road Northwood

19 Grove Road Northwood

19 Grove Road Northwood

19 Grove Road Northwood

Single storey front and side extension, two storey rear extension, conversion of loft space to
habitable use to include 2 rear rooflights and 4 skylights, alterations to front elevation to include
new front porch, new pitched roof to single storey front and pitched roof to existing bay windows
at first floor.

Part two storey, part single storey rear extension, single storey side/front extension, front porch,
alterations to existing elevations and conversion of roofspace for habitable use with 2 rear, 2
side, and 3 front rooflights and 3 skylights.

Single storey side extension with 4 roof lanterns (Application for a Certificate of Lawfulness for a
Proposed Development).

Conversion of roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 3 front rooflights, 4 rear
rooflights and conversion of roof from hip to gable end with 2 new gable end windows
(Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed Development)

Single storey side extension (Application for a Certificate of Lawful Development for a Proposed
Development)

13-05-2010

22-02-2011

26-07-2011

26-07-2011

13-03-2012

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Decision Date: 

Refused

Approved

Approved

Approved

Approved

1.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Planning History

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

Appeal:

11-AUG-10 Dismissed

Page 25



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

A Certificate of Lawful Development was granted in July 2011 for the conversion of the
roof space to habitable use to include a rear dormer, 3 front rooflights, 4 rear rooflights
and conversion of roof from hip to gable end with 2 new gable end windows (Ref:
27846/APP/2011/1299).

Planning permission was refused in May 2010 and subsequently dismissed on appeal for
the erection of a single storey front and side extension, two storey rear extension,
conversion of loft space to habitable use to include 2 rear rooflights and 4 skylights,
alterations to front elevation to include new front porch, new pitched roof to single storey
front and pitched roof to existing bay windows at first floor (Ref: 27846/APP/2010/145).

Also of relevance to this application is application reference 24007/APP/2010/356,
granted in July 2010 in respect of No.21 Grove Road. This was for the construction of a
basement under the existing house and single storey rear basement extension, reduction
of ground levels of existing patio/garden beyond new rear basement extension and new
patio area at basement level at rear.

Not applicable 

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

30 Local Residents and the Northwood Residents Association consulted. 3
representations have been received objecting to the proposal and 5 representations have
been received supporting the proposal.

A petition containing 39 signatures has also been received objecting to the applicant being
"permitted to reduce the amenity sought when moving here originally, i.e. privacy and
unfitting over development. They are also unwelcome to any proposals causing changes
to the general water table and property settlement by massive excavations with
consequent drain trouble, particularly in the low part of the road. The new application
increases overlooking to at least 4 nearby gardens by extended terracing beyond the
nationally accepted rear extension limit of 4m, it is totally out of keeping, and the
excavation risk on site for cellars is already apparent from nearby sites."

The individual representations of objection can be summarised as follows:

1) All the eastward backing homes already suffer rainwater flooding without the massive
excavative intrusion the proposal for cellars would incur across the whole of No.19.
2) Both the extended side walls are too near the side fences of the adjoining properties
thus increasing the totally out-of-keeping bulk extent.
3) Loss of privacy. 
4) Overdevelopment. 
5) Any alteration or excavation of natural drainage to rear gardens causes flooding and
the proposed basement would significantly worsen this problem.
6) The proposed terrace overlooks the lounge rear window of number 21, despite the 45
degree line. 

The individual representations of support can be summarised as follows:

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Page 26



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

1) It will add to the attractiveness of the road, will not interfere with the street scene and is
in keeping with the surrounding area.
2) The objections raised are entirely devoid of merit. 
3) Whilst similar applications have been made and no objections raised by neighbours, Mr
Brown's application results in serial objections.
4) I am also very disturbed by the very personal nature of those objections and the
unpleasantness that seems to underly them. I hope and am confident that the appropriate
body will consider this application on its planning merits and not the amount of invective
inspired by it.
5) Number 21 Grove Road has a basement under their complete house as well as a very
large elevated terrace. 
6) The Thames water flood map shows no risk of flooding and groundwater is very low. 
7) The addition of a basement does not add to mass bulk.
8) The applicant whilst wishing to increase spatial requirements has been considerate to
his neighbours by constructing a basement. 
9) From a street scene there is no impact, as the work is below ground and there is no
increase in roof height, overshadowing or indeed mass bulk. 
10) It is very similar to the application approved in 2011. As long as building regulations
are adhered to in the build, the addition of a basement level has little impact on
neighbours. There is no increase in the property footprint, no impact to overlooking
neighbours and no impact to the street scene. A similar basement have been approved in
the neighbouring property.
11) The proposed plan is an improvement on the existing building as it is aestheically
superior and will result in a more attractive building than the existing, it will be constructed
from superior materials to current building regulations resulting in a more environmentally
friendly building, it improves and increases the quantity and quality of living space on
existing plot without harming outlook, it is sympathetic to style and character of buildings
in the surrounding area and it will increase rateable values, increasing potential future
Council Tax Revenues, providing funding for local services.

THAMES WATER

Thames Water requests that the Applicant should incorporate within their proposal,
protection to the property by installing for example, a non-return valve or other suitable
device to avoid the risk of backflow at a later date, on the assumption that the sewerage
network may surcharge to ground level during storm conditions.

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of
surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage.
When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not
permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to discharge
to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be required.
They can be contacted on 0845 850 2777. Reason: to ensure that the surface water
discharge from the site shall not be detrimental to the existing sewerage system.

Recent legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of private
sewers) Regulations 2011 mean that the sections of pipes you share with your
neighbours, or are situated outside of your property boundary which connect to a public
sewer are likely to have transferred to Thames Water's ownership. Should your proposed

Page 27



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM14

OE1

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new
planting and landscaping in development proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and
the local area

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

Part 2 Policies:

building work fall within 3 metres of these pipes we recommend you contact Thames
Water to discuss their status in more detail and to determine if a building over/near to
agreement is required. You can contact Thames Water on 0845 850 2777 or for more
information please visit our website at www.thameswater.co.uk

THREE RIVERS DISTRICT COUNCIL: No objections.

OFFICER COMMENT: It should be noted that the plans have been amended during the
course of this application by providing alterations to the height and extent of the
terrace/patio area at the rear of the property, now accessed by steps down from the
house, and by changes to the lightwells and stairwells serving the basement.

The above representations and comments were made in the light of the planning
application as first submitted. Further consultation letters were sent in respect of the
amended plans and no further representations have been received. Any further
representations received that may raise additional concerns between the writing of this
report and its consideration by the Planning Committee will be set out within the
addendum.

4.

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

Page 28



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The main planning issues are the impact of the development on the character of the
house and the area in general and the impact on the amenities of the adjoining occupiers.
The impact on parking provision and amenity space also needs to be considered. In
assessing these issues consideration also needs to be given to the planning history of the
site, including the proposals that have already been considered acceptable (and could still
be implemented) and those works that have been indicated as being a possibility through
permitted development rights.

That said, the element of the current proposals above ground have previously been
considered as acceptable by the Council through the granting of planning permission
under reference 27846/APP/2010/2916. The key consideration is therefore whether the
basement provision and associated patio area and access arrangements would materially
impact on the site and its surroundings and thus affect the decision previously made. This
report nevertheless addresses the scheme as a whole.

The application site lies within a residential area. Grove Road is characterised by large
detached houses of varying styles and designs, some of which have been extended.
Given the character of the area, the principle of extending existing properties is
acceptable.

Design

Policy BE13 of the UDP Saved Policies September 2007 states that development will not
be permitted if the layout and appearance fail to harmonise with the existing street scene
or other features of the area which the local planning authority considers it desirable to
retain or enhance. Policy BE15 goes on to note that proposals for alterations and
extensions to existing buildings will be permitted where they harmonise with the scale,
form, architectural composition and proportions of the original building.

The Council's adopted Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential
Extensions offers guidance that must be accorded with if extensions are to be considered
satisfactory. Sections 4, 6, 7 and 8 of the SPD set out the criteria against which to assess
two-storey rear extensions, single-storey side extensions, loft conversions and front
extensions/porches and bay windows and includes the following which set the threshold
for appropriate scale and design:

Rear and side extensions
· Rear extensions should not exceed 4m in depth on a detached plot; 
· Single-storey extensions should not exceed 3.4m in height with a pitched roof;
. The width of the side extension should be considerably less than that of the main
dwelling;
. The front wall of the side extension should not protrude in front of the main house;
. The roof of the two-storey rear extension should not exceed the height of the main
dwelling roof.

The roof of the rear two-storey extension is set at the same height as that of the main
house, which complies with the SPD. The rear extension measures 4m in depth at first
floor level adjoining the boundaries with the neighbouring properties, but projects a further
2m in depth in the centre section, and a further 1m in depth at ground floor level adjoining
the boundary with 21 Grove Road. The depth and height of the two storey and single
storey element would exceed the SPD guidance in relation to the central section of the
two storey and the single storey adjoining 21 Grove Road. However, in relation to the

Page 29



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

character and appearance of the property and the street scene these elements of the
proposal are considered acceptable given the overall size of the existing property and the
size of the plot within which the extensions are set. 

The pitched roof on the single storey side and front extension is considered acceptable at
3.5m and as before is not considered to be out of scale or proportion to the main dwelling
or the adjoining properties. The single storey front/side extension would not extend
beyond the front building line of the existing bay windows, the width of the single storey
side extension is also subservient to the width of the main dwelling, the height and width
of the porch is subordinate to that of the main dwelling and the porch is in line with the
front of the bay windows. The number, size and location of the rooflights is considered
sympathetic to the appearance of the main dwelling.

With regards to the basement area, it is noted that the adjoining property at No.21 has
planning permission for a basement. The principle of a basement is therefore considered
acceptable.

With regard to the detailed deisgn of the basmement, this would be below the rear
extension and within the rear garden area. It would not therefore be visible from the street.
It would have little impact on the external appearance of the approved extensions, other
than through the provision of a stairwell and lightwells, and the patio area to be created on
the roof of the basement. Given that the amended plans show this patio area at a level
lower than that of the existing house this arrangement is considered acceptable in design
terms, and would relate satisfactorily to the design of the extended house.

Overall, and as previously considered, the proposed development would thus represent a
form of development which would harmonise with the character and proportions of the
original house and the appearance of the street scene and the surrounding area
generally, in compliance with policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the principles of the
Hillingdon Design & Accessibility Statement (HDAS): Residential Extensions.

Impact on the Amenities of Adjoining or Nearby Properties

With regards to impact on amenity, Policy BE21 of the UDP Saved Policies September
2007 is relevant and must be considered. The policy states that planning permission will
not be granted for new buildings or extensions which by reason of their siting, bulk and
proximity, would result in a significant loss of residential amenity. 

Sections 4, 6, 7 and 8 of the SPD offer further criteria against which two-storey rear
extensions, single-storey side extensions, loft conversions and front extensions/porches
and bay windows can be assessed against to consider the impact on neighbouring
properties. These include:

· retain foundations and guttering within the application site;
· not to include windows and doors that overlook neighbouring properties.
. use of materials to complement existing house
. provision of sufficient garden space

As before 17 Grove Road would be separated from the proposed extension by its
attached garage. That property does not have any windows overlooking the application
property. A 3.5m gap would be retained between the flank wall of the proposed extension

Page 30



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

RECOMMENDATION6.

and 17 Grove Road. A 3.8m gap would be retained between the flank wall of the proposed
extension and 21 Grove Road. The extension would not be within a 45 degree line of sight
from any habitable room window on either 17 or 21 Grove Road. As such, it is considered
that the proposed development would not harm the residential amenities of the occupiers
of 17 and 21 Grove Road through, overdominance and visual intrusion.

The only proposed first floor window that faces a neighbouring property (the shower
room/WC facing no.21) is conditioned to be obscure glazed and non-opening below 1.8m.
All ground floor openings that face neighbouring properties are recommended to be
conditioned to be obscurely glazed. A condition is also recommended removing permitted
development rights for any new windows facing Nos. 17 and 21. Planning permission
would therefore be required for the installation of new side facing windows on the
extension.

With regard to the proposed basement, this would not be particularly visible from the
neighbouring properties adjoining the site given that it is below ground level. The
stairwells, lightwells and patio area (as amended) would be below the slab level of the
existing house and consequently would not result in any adverse harm to the amenities of
the adjoining occupiers. Whilst the basement would extend in part beyond the rear
elevation of the previously approved extension it would not cause any harm, with its roof
area used as a patio, at a level that is appropriate to the house without causing any
adverse overlooking.

The concerns of objectors in relation to the construction of the basement are noted. As in
the case of the basement proposed for No.21 it is recommended that appropriate
construction conditions be imposed on any planning permission granted. The site is not
within a Flood Risk Area and it is a matter for the Building Regulations to ensure that the
construction is carried out in an appropriate manner.

Therefore, as before, it is considered that the proposal would not harm the residential
amenities of adjoining occupiers and would be in accordance with policies BE20, BE21
and BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

The windows to the extension and the basement area would provide an adequate outlook
and natural light to the rooms they would serve, in accordance with London Plan Policy
5.3.

As before, approximately 700sq.m of private amenity space would be retained which
would be sufficient for the enlarged house. 

With regards to parking, the application site would remain as a dwelling house and as
such, under the Council's parking standards, two off-street parking spaces should be
provided. These are to be provided within the front garden area and as such the proposal
would not result in an increase in on-street parking, in accordance with Policies AM7 and
AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

Page 31



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

HH-T8

HH-OM1

HH-M2

HH-RPD1

HH-RPD2

NONSC

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

External surfaces to match existing building

No Additional Windows or Doors

Obscured Glazing and Non-Opening Windows (a)

Non Standard Condition

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 17
and 21 Grove Road.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with Policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The windows and openings facing 17 and 21 Grove Road shall be glazed with
permanently obscured glass and shall also be non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The parking area shown on the approved plans shall be constructed and shall be for the
sole use of the occupants of the dwelling and thereafter be permanently retained and
used for no other purpose.

1

2

3

4

5

6

Page 32



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 3C of the London Plan. (February 2008).

Before any work hereby authorised begins, a written plan, programme and report of
timetabled works, materials and methodology shall be submitted to the local planning
authority (certified by two independent 'members of professional engineering and
surveying institutions') for the purpose of demonstrating that the developer has had
sufficient regard to: 
* securing the safety and stability of all parts of the dwelling through the implementation
and life of the development.
* ensuring the involvement of the Council's Building Control Department or an approved
Inspector at all relevant stages of implementation of the development.
* the consideration of and method of implementation of appropriate engineering
measures and the application of methodology to:
a. strengthen any wall or vertical surface;
b. support any ceiling, floor, roof or horizontal surface; 
c. provide protection to ensure the structural integrity of the building during the progress
of the works and for the life of the development.

No works shall commence until the local planning authority has indicated in writing its
approval of the plan, programme and report.

In this condition 'members of professional engineering and surveying institutions' means
members of relevant professional institutions, the precise institutions to be notified in
writing by the Local Planning Authority to the developer within 60 days of the grant of
planning permission and to be determined by the local planning authority in consultation
with the Council's Building Control Department and the Health and Safety Executive. 

REASON
The works to be undertaken to this dwelling require specialist engineering advice and
skills to maintain the dwelling's structural integrity for the life of the development in the
interests of its appearance in accordance with Policies BE13 and BE19 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Prior to development commencing, the applicant shall submit a demolition and
construction management plan to the Local Planning Authority for its approval. The plan
shall detail:
(i)  The phasing of development works.
(ii) The hours during which development works will occur.
(iii) A programme to demonstrate that the most valuable or potentially contaminating
materials and fittings can be removed safely and intact for later re-use or processing.
(iv)Measures to prevent mud and dirt tracking onto footways and adjoining roads
(including wheel washing facilities).
(v) Traffic management and access arrangements (vehicular and pedestrian) and
parking provisions for contractors during the development process (including measures
to reduce the numbers of construction vehicles accessing the site during peak hours).
(vi) Measures to reduce the impact of the development on local air quality and dust
through minimising emissions throughout the demolition and construction process.
(vii) The storage of demolition/construction materials on site.

7

8

Page 33



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The approved details shall be implemented and maintained throughout the duration of
the demolition and construction process.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies 2007).

INFORMATIVES

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

BE24

BE38

AM14

OE1

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and
provision of new planting and landscaping in development
proposals.

New development and car parking standards.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding
properties and the local area

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

2

Page 34



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building
Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all
            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services

Page 35



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

              Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 
            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 

Page 36



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Warren Pierson 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 37



10

18

GROVE ROAD

7
9a

7a

25

2

9

29

19

13

19

31

16

7
9

33

37
a

37

LB

35

29

31
11

35

78.6
31

a

15

Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

Def

Co Const Bdy

1.22m RH

Def

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

19 Grove Road
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

27846/APP/2012/226

Page 38



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

REAR OF 64-66 HALLOWELL ROAD NORTHWOOD

Change of use of the existing ancillary outbuilding to 4 x 1-bed residential
care units, to include alterations to elevation

01/12/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 2200/APP/2011/2927

Drawing Nos: Noise Assessment
V1201-01 Rev. B
Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
Design and Access Statement

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

The proposal involves the conversion of an existing outbuilding, previously used as a
kitchen,  laundry and storage facility in connection with the main use of the site as a care
home, to provide an extension to the care home in the form of four further units, each
comprising a sleeping area, living area and en-suite facilities.

There are no extensions proposed to the existing built development on the site and the
alterations to the fenestration details are considered in-keeping with the building to which
they would relate.

It is considered that the addition of four units is unlikely to have a significant additional
traffic or parking impact on the surrounding area sufficient to warrant the refusal of
planning permission on these grounds alone. 

Due to the noise disturbance that could be experienced by the occupants from the
adjoining railway and the additional activities that would be generated in association with
the use the submission of a noise assessment report (which was absent from the
previous refused application), is considered critical to both determination of the
application and a positive recommendation. The Council's Environmental Health Officer
has reviewed the contents of the noise report submitted with the current application and
considers the conclusions contained therein to be acceptable. 

The applicant has been able to satisfactorily demonstrate how the development will
safeguard the amenities of both the future occupants of the development and of the
nearby residential occupiers and thus the proposal would comply with policies OE1 and
OE5 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007). On this basis therefore the proposal
is recommended for approval.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HO1 Time Limit

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

1

2. RECOMMENDATION

09/12/2011Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 9

Page 39



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

COM4

D11

NONSC

B21

NONSC

Accordance with Approved Plans

Restrictions on Changes of Uses

Non Standard Condition

Noise Insulation of Residential Development

Non Standard Condition

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans [Drawing No. V1201/01 Rev B]
and including the reduction in the number of bedspaces within the main building and shall
thereafter be retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).

Notwithstanding the provisions of Part 3, Schedule 2 of the Town and Country Planning
(General Permitted Development) Order 1995, the accommodation hereby approved
shall be used only in conjunction with the main building (64-66 Hallowell Road) for
purposes within Use Class C2 of the Schedule to the Town and Country Planning (Use
Classes) Order 1987 (as amended) and shall not be used as separate units of
accommodation.

REASON
In accordance with the terms of the application and to prevent a separate and intensified
use of the site detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining residents.

The development shall not begin until a specification for acoustic fencing along the
boundary with 62 Hallowell Road has been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. The approved fencing scheme shall include such combination
of measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter, the
scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the approved
measures.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The noise mitigation measures with regard to glazing specification described in the
submitted Noise Assessment carried out by Clover Acoustics, dated 6th June 2011, shall
be implemented before occupation of the development and thereafter retained.

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by traffic noise.

The development shall not commence until details/specification of how residents of the
proposed units will communicate with/call for assistance from staff within the main
building, including details of the method of communication and noise assessment of any
equipment used, have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. The approved scheme, shall thereafter, be implemented and maintained in full
compliance with the approved measures. 

2

3

4

5

6

Page 40



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL5

TL6

Landscaping Scheme - (full apps where details are reserved)

Landscaping Scheme - implementation

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme providing full details of hard
and soft landscaping works has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority and these works shall be carried out as approved. The scheme shall
include: -
· Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
· Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
· Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities where
appropriate,
· Implementation programme.
The scheme shall also include details of the following: -
· Proposed finishing levels or contours,
· Means of enclosure,
· Car parking layouts,
- Other vehicle and pedestrian access and circulation areas,
- Hard surfacing materials proposed,
· Minor artefacts and structures (such as play equipment, furniture, refuse storage, signs,
or lighting),
· Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground (e.g. drainage,
power cables or communications equipment, indicating lines, manholes or associated
structures),
· Retained historic landscape features and proposals for their restoration where relevant.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual amenities
of the locality in compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

All hard and soft landscaping shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
landscaping scheme and shall be completed within the first planting and seeding
seasons following the completion of the development or the occupation of the buildings,
whichever is the earlier period. The new planting and landscape operations should
comply with the requirements specified in BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' and in BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General
Landscape Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. Thereafter, the areas of hard and soft
landscaping shall be permanently retained.

Any tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding shown on the approved landscaping scheme
which within a period of 5 years from the completion of development dies, is removed or
in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority becomes seriously damaged or diseased
shall be replaced in the same place or, if planting in the same place would leave the new
tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in a position to
be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority in the next planting season
with another such tree, shrub or area of turfing or seeding of similar size and species
unless the Local Planning Authority first gives written consent to any variation.

REASON
To ensure that the landscaped areas are laid out and retained in accordance with the

7

8

Page 41



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

TL7 Maintenance of Landscaped Areas

approved plans in order to preserve and enhance the visual amenities of the locality in
compliance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until a schedule of landscape maintenance for a
minimum period of 5 years has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.  The scheme shall include details of the arrangements for its
implementation.  Maintenance shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
schedule.

REASON
To ensure that the approved landscaping is properly maintained in accordance with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (September 2007).

9

I1

I2

I3

I5

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Party Walls

1

2

3

4

INFORMATIVES

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
carry out work to an existing party wall;
build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building
Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -

Page 42



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I6

I15

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

5

6

7

explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

With regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer to make
proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of
surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are
attenuated or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage.
When it is proposed to connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be
separate and combined at the final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not
permitted for the removal of Ground Water. Where the developer proposes to discharge
to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames Water Developer Services will be
required. Contact Thames Water on 0845 850 2777.

Recent legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of Private
Sewers) Regulations 2011 mean that the sections of pipes shared with neighbours, or
are situated outside of the property boundary which connect to a public sewer are likely
to have transferred to Thames Water's ownership. Should the proposed building work fall
within 3 metres of these pipes it is recommended to contact Thames Water to discuss
their status in more detail and to determine if a building over/near to agreement is
required. Contact Thames Water on 0845 850 2777 or for more information visit their
website at www.thameswater.co.uk.

Page 43



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site comprises a three-storey residential care home, situated on the
western side of Hallowell Road. The area is residential in character and the London
Underground Metropolitan Line railway runs along the rear of the property. The site is
large in relation to the neighbouring properties and contains a pair of large Victorian
houses that have been converted into a care home. The site has been in this use for
some time, with an established use certificate dating back to 1979. 

The property is red brick, with much of the original detailing evident and from the street
this appears unaltered. The property has been extended at the rear with a two storey
extension projecting 19m from the original rear elevation of the building. To the front there
are two vehicular accesses providing an in and out arrangement and the frontage has
been laid to hardstanding, although it is not clear how many vehicles could be
accommodated on this area or whether it is solely used for deliveries/collections. 

The site is within the Old Northwood Area of Special Local Character as identified in the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (UDP) (Saved Policies, September 2007).

3.2 Comment on Relevant Planning History

The site gained an established use certificate in 1979 for the use as a care home and has
received various permissions over the years for extensions and alterations in connection
with that use. It is noted from the Local Authority's Building Control records that the
outbuilding (to which this application relates) was converted into a kitchen in 1996.

More recently, applications for the erection of a two storey rear extension (involving the
demolition of the existing outbuilding to the rear) (Ref: 2200/APP/2005/2640) and for the
erection of a part two storey, part single storey rear extension, involving the re-siting of an
external stair case (and the demolition of the outbuilding to the rear) (Ref:
2200/APP/2006/2586), were both refused for the following reasons:

1. bulk and excessive depth of extension;
2. over bearing and unneighbourly; 
3. reduced external amenity area;
4. overlooking.

The current application is a resubmission of a previous application for conversion of the
outbuilding (Ref: 2200/APP/2011/159), refused in April 2011 for the following reasons:

1. In the absence of a noise report (addressing noise disturbance from adjoining railway
land) the application has failed to demonstrate that the development will safeguard the
amenities of the future occupiers of the development. The proposal is therefore contrary
to policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September
2007).

2. The proposed development by reason of the additional residential units located in a

With regard to water supply, this comes within the area covered by the Veolia Water
Company. Contact Veolia at The Hub, Tamblin Way, Hatfield, Herts. AL10 9EZ or
telephone 0845 782 3333.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 44



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

4. Planning Policies and Standards

detached position at the end of the rear garden and due to the activities generated in
association with that proposed use, would result in a material increase in noise and
disturbance to nearby residential properties. As such, the development would constitute
an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a material loss of residential amenity.
The proposal is therefore contrary to policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan Saved Policies September 2007.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE5

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE24

BE38

OE1

New development within areas of special local character

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local

Part 2 Policies:

2200/APP/2005/2640

2200/APP/2006/2586

2200/APP/2011/159

Abbeyfield Residential Care Home 64-66 Hallowell Road, Northwood 

Aronmore Care Home 64-66  Hallowell Road Northwood 

Rear Of 64-66  Hallowell Road Northwood 

ERECTION OF TWO STOREY REAR EXTENSION (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
REAR OUTBUILDING)

ERECTION OF A PART FIRST FLOOR, PART TWO STOREY AND PART SINGLE STOREY
REAR EXTENSION, INVOLVING THE RESITING OF AN EXTERNAL STAIRCASE
(INVOLVING THE DEMOLITION OF AN EXISTING REAR OUTBUILDING AND EXTERNAL
STAIRCASE)

Change of use of ancillary building to 4 no. residential units.

23-08-2006

21-11-2006

12-04-2011

Decision:

Decision:

Decision:

Refused

Refused

Refused

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Page 45



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE3

OE5

H10

R16

AM7

AM13

AM14

CACPS

HDAS-LAY

LPP 3.3

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.8

LPP 3.9

LPP 5.3

area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Siting of noise-sensitive developments

Proposals for hostels or other accommodation for people in need of care

Accessibility for elderly people, people with disabilities, women and children

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

AM13 Increasing the ease of movement for frail and elderly people and people
with disabilities in development schemes through (where appropriate): - 
(i) Dial-a-ride and mobility bus services
(ii) Shopmobility schemes
(iii) Convenient parking spaces
(iv) Design of road, footway, parking and pedestrian and street furniture schemes

New development and car parking standards.

Council's Adopted Car Parking Standards (Annex 1, HUDP, Saved Policies,
September 2007)

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

(2011) Increasing housing supply

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Mixed and Balanced Communities

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

9 adjoining and nearby occupiers consulted: Two replies received objecting to the proposal on the
following grounds:

1. Increase in residents will have knock on effects in increased traffic/parking in the street which is
getting considerably worse; 
2. Owners have moved the kitchen into the main building and the launderette into a small external
building. Why move operations that were already suited for an ancillary building? 
3. Opportunity to demolish and rebuild once the change of use is granted/possible extension
(connecting passageway) to the main building;
4. Elderly, infirm care residents shoud not be living at the rear of a property due to isolation,
warmth, emergencies, disruption to neighbours, weather conditions forcing them to stay put or slip
and injure themselves, noise from trains, health & safety issues;
5. The change of use will increase the extent to which gardens/neighbours are overlooked (invasion
of privacy);
6. Development within the conservation area (Area of Special Local Character) has led to local
roads being full of parked cars during the day. The Young Peoples Centre attracts extra cars at

Page 46



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

Trees and Landscape Officer:

No objection, subject to the following considerations and conditions TL5, TL6 and TL7.
- no trees or other landscape features of merit will be affected by the development and the proposal
will not be visible from Hallowell Road or any other public view point except the rear of the buildings
which face the Metropolitan Line railway at a lower level;
- the main opportunity for landscape enhancement is in the front garden where the institutional

certain times and no doubt the extra residents will have additional visitors/food deliveries and waste
collections;
7. Precedent of allowing residential dwellings at the rear of properties (the 1960s extension already
constitutes a massive overdevelopment of the site);
8. Expansion of existing activities is clearly for profit when existing property still requires attention,
especially the roof;
9. Variety of noises emanating from there are/would be negligible and not prevented by an acoustic
fence (majority of noise is from house) as wall is already 8-10 feet from other side;
10. Increase in light pollution for safety reasons (house is currently overwhelmed with light coming
from the care home);

In addition, a petition against the proposal (signed by 25 local residents) has been received
objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

1. Unneighbourly, overdeveloped, loss of amenities (noise, light, use of services, parking);
2. Loss of privacy to gardens - unneighbourly and thus contrary to Policy OE1;
3. Noise & other disturbances from existing use/property in state of disrepair;
4. Plans not correct (office/kitchen and laundry moved);
5. Care of elderly residents in ancillary building, detached and independent of main building would
raise issues of how this was implemented;
6. Property overdeveloped to rear may be in breach of existing covenant/previous applications
refused/change of use of outbuilding would impact on local community in an ASLC.

Northwood Residents' Association: No comments received.

Northwood Conservation Area Panel: No comments received.

Ward Councillor: Supports the objections of the residents and requests that the application is
considered by committee.

Thames Water Utilities: with regard to surface water drainage it is the responsibility of a developer
to make proper provision for drainage to ground, water courses or a suitable sewer. In respect of
surface water it is recommended that the applicant should ensure that storm flows are attenuated
or regulated into the receiving public network through on or off site storage. When it is proposed to
connect to a combined public sewer, the site drainage should be separate and combined at the
final manhole nearest the boundary. Connections are not permitted for the removal of Ground
Water. Where the developer proposes to discharge to a public sewer, prior approval from Thames
Water Developer Services will be required.

Recent legal changes under The Water Industry (Scheme for the Adoption of private sewers)
Regulations 2011 mean that the sections of pipes shared with neighbours, or are situated outside
of the property boundary which connect to a public sewer are likely to have transferred to Thames
Water's ownership. Should the proposed building work fall within 3 metres of these pipes it is
recommended to contact Thames Water to discuss their status in more detail and to determine if a
building over/near to agreement is required.

Page 47



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

Planning permission is sought for the conversion and alteration of an existing outbuilding
at the rear of the site to provide residential units in addition to the accommodation
provided within the main building, which is an established care home that currently caters
for 27 residents.

The proposed change in use of the outbuilding will provide 4no. suites for supported living
rather than residential care. The number of bedspaces in the main building will, however,
decrease from 27 to 25 (through replacement of shared rooms with single en-suite rooms,
although this in itself does not require planning permission). As such with the alteration to
the internal layout of the main building and the change of use of the outbuilding there will
be a net increase on the site of 2 bedspaces/persons.

There are currently 15 full time members of staff, of which only two utilise cars, one

appearance of the building within an otherwise residential street could be softened with
supplementary planting;
- in addition to improving the appearance of the site from the public realm, appropriate ornamental
planting would benefit the outlook for residents of the home;
- a landscape management/maintenance plan should be submitted to ensure that the landscape is
established and maintained in accordance with good practice.

Access Officer:

Plan submitted indicates that the bathrooms would be designed with suitable fixtures and fittings to
facilitate an ambulant disabled person. Whilst the provision of a fully accessible bathroom
(designed in accordance with BS 8300:2009) would normally be required in such situations, it is
recognised that to incorporate such provision within the existing structure would result in a reduced
number of bedrooms. To require an enlarged bathroom would result in the remaining bedroom
space becoming unusable. Having considered the detail contained in the Design & Access
Statement and the premises current use as a residential care home, no accessibility alterations are
required.

Urban Design & Conservation Officer:

There are no changes proposed to building and as such the change of use would have no impact
on the Area of Special Local Character. 

Environmental Health Officer:

No objection subject to a condition requiring implementation of the noise mitigation measures set
out in applicant's noise report with respect to glazing configurations, and a suitably worded
condition which references the approved glazing specification as submitted and a condition relating
to acoustic specification fencing to the boundary with No. 62 Hallowell Road. 

Highways Engineer:

Hallowell Road is a residential area that is accessed from Green Lane, and High Street, Pinner and
is benefiting from parking management and parking restriction. Currently the kitchen and ancillary
building is located at the rear of the existing residential care home and the proposal is to change
the use of ancillary building into 4 units, with some minor internal amendments to the building. It is
not considered that the addition of four units will have significant traffic/parking impact on the
surrounding area.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 48



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

required by a night shift worker on two days a week. 

As there will only be a net increase of 2 beds on site, and those two beds will be on the
basis of close care units as opposed to residential care the increase in the staff team will
be negligible. The applicant states that one additional member of staff would be on duty
during the day, on the basis of key periods during the day only i.e early morning, and late
evening, similar to the service provided by domiciliary care agencies.

The applicant has further advised that many of the residents come from the local
community, as such visitors tend to visit from the local community and walk to site when
visiting, although the majority of residents do not receive visitors. The average number of
visitors for the four week period between 16th February 2012 and 14th March 2012 was 4
on weekdays and 5 (during weekends). These visitor numbers include medical
practitioner's  visits, social service visits and third party maintenance personnel visits.

The only additional users of the site would be in respect of two bulk deliveries to the home
each week and two waste removal visits to the site each week. 

The previous use of these buildings included kitchen facilities, laundry and offices and
therefore  they generated activities between the building and the care home itself. Given
the site location within a residential area, the previous ancillary use of the existing
buildings and the minimal internal changes to the outbuilding required, the principle of
conversion is acceptable. 

However, this is properly assessed by a consideration of the standard of living conditions
of the future occupants and the potential impact on the current amenities of adjoining
occupiers. Thus, given that the building already exists and is proposed to be used in
conjunction with the existing use on the site, the principle of the use is considered
acceptable.

Not applicable to this application.

Policy BE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007)
states that all proposals should harmonise with the materials, design, style and building
heights predominant in the area.

The proposed conversion and change of use would not involve any changes to the size or
bulk of the existing outbuilding, and only minimal alterations to the fenestration details
facing the main care home would be made. In the absence of significant changes to the
external appearance, the Council's Urban Design & Conservation Officer has raised no
objection in principle to the use of the outbuilding which forms part of and is considered to
harmonise with the built character of the area as a whole which would thus not be
affected.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies, September 2007) consider the impact of proposals and whether they harmonise
with the existing street scene, with the original building in terms of scale, form and

Page 49



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.08 Impact on neighbours

proportions, and thus complement the amenity and character of the surrounding
residential area as a whole. 

The proposal would involve the conversion of an existing outbuilding within the curtilage of
the residential care home to provide 4 additional units. The building is situated at the rear
(western) boundary of the application site with the London Underground Metropolitan Line
railway.

The proposal involves the conversion of an existing out building at the rear of the site
previously used as a kitchen, laundry and storage facility in connection with the main use
of the site. This would not involve any changes to the size or bulk of this building and only
minimal alterations to the fenestration details facing the main building. As such, it is
considered the proposal would not have a material visual impact on the surrounding area
and therefore would comply with Policies BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policy BE19 requires that new development
in residential areas complements or improves the amenity and character of the area.
Policy BE21 seeks to safeguard residential amenities by preventing buildings or
extensions which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity would result in a significant
loss of such amenity. Policy BE24 states that the development should be designed to
protect the privacy of future occupiers and their neighbours. The Hillingdon Design and
Accessibility Statement (HDAS) provides further guidance in respect of these matters,
stating in particular that the distance between habitable room windows should not be less
than 21m with a 3m area of rear private amenity space.

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties whilst Policy OE3
deals with development of buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise
annoyance.

It is considered the outbuilding is existing and therefore would not change the bulk and
layout of existing built development on the site. Furthermore, as it is single storey and any
overlooking concerns could be dealt with by a screen fence condition and therefore it is
considered that the proposal would not have a material impact on the residential amenities
of adjoining properties by way of loss of light, outlook or privacy sufficient to warrant the
refusal of planning permission. As such, the proposal is considered to comply with
Policies BE19, BE20, BE21 and BE24 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies, September 2007).

The site comprises an established residential care home, the principal activities for which
take place in the main building. It is considered, however, that due to the detached
location of these new units and their position in relation to the neighbouring properties, the
activities generated within and outside them could have the potential to result in increased
noise and disturbance to adjoining properties. 

The applicant has confirmed that part of the building was used as a kitchen with
associated refrigeration and cold storage that employed a cook and a cook's assistant
between 8.00am and 4.00pm each day whilst also taking several bulk deliveries per week.
A manager and a full time administrator also worked out of an office from 8.00am to
5.00pm Monday to Friday and small daily meetings with staff, service uses and families
also took place there. There was a laundry employing two laundry assistants between the

Page 50



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09 Living conditions for future occupiers

hours of 8.00am and 3.00pm Monday to Saturday with one laundry assistant between
8.00am and 1.00pm on Sundays and involving several bulk deliveries per week. There
were also two storage rooms associated with the home which again received bulk
deliveries during a typical week.

In summary between Monday and Friday the building had 6-7 people working in it, with 4
on Saturday and 3 on Sunday in addition to the frequent visitors coming to collect the
range of goods stored and also the prepared food. These various ancillary activities were
progressively moved from this building because of the inefficiencies of housing the kitchen
and laundry here and then having to take food and linen through the open and back into
the main house. The regulator for the care home industry had concerns about food being
taken through the open air to its destination whilst the operator concluded that the location
of these ancillary services was not efficient for the home and made it harder to manage
the functions of the home.

In contrast to the movement and activities inevitably associated with these previous uses,
the applicant has identified that the proposed use would introduce different activities with
significantly less noise and disturbance. The proposed use will provide accommodation
across four units with residents living with some independence whilst taking advantage of
the facilities offered in the main house.

Furthermore, the distances involved between this building and the rear of Nos. 62 and 68
Hallowell Road is such that any impact on amenity will be minimal. In the circumstances,
the creation of a lawned area immediately in front of the building would not alter how the
existing lawned area is used during good weather. 

Whilst the existing two storey rear extension to the main house effectively screens the
western end of the site from No. 68, thus also making any potential noise disturbances
less apparent or intrusive as they are disassociated from specific activities, the applicant
has nonetheless agreed to provide mitigation in the form of an acoustic specified fence to
be erected along the full length of the rear garden boundary with No. 62 Hallowell Road.
Such an approach is considered acceptable by the Council's Environmental Health
Officer.

On this basis, the residential amenities of the nearby properties would be safeguarded at
a level they could reasonably expect to enjoy and therefore the proposal is considered to
accord with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007).

Policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September 2007)
considers proposals for noise sensitive developments in terms of the impact on the living
conditions of future occupants.

The applicant's noise report submitted with this application describes the noise monitoring
techniques used and recommends mitigation in the form of a double glazing specification
to the front of the units. Further internal acoustic treatment is possible such as
plasterboard to improve the sound insulation of the new units. The Council's
Environmental Health Officer has accepted these findings and is satisfied that any
external noise, notably from the railway line, will not be sufficient to preclude conversion of
the building for the purposes of providing habitable living accommodation.

The proposal, subject to the acoustic measures described, would therefore conform to the

Page 51



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

requirements of UDP Saved Policy OE5 in this regard.

This application relates to the re-submission of an identical previously refused application,
in which the Highway Engineer considered, that on street parking in Hallowell Road is
unrestricted and the highway is saturated with parked vehicles on both sides. The existing
dwelling is currently used as a nursing home with 23 rooms and internal re-arrangements
to convert shared rooms into single rooms plus the conversion of the rear ancillary
building into four studio units will therefore increase the number of rooms on the whole
site to 29. However, the number of bedspaces/ resident persons will only increase by two.
The creation of four new residential units, with a resultant net increase on the site of two
persons is unlikely to have a significant traffic or parking impact on the surrounding area.
Consequently no objection is raised on the highways aspects and therefore the proposal
would be in accordance with policies AM7 and AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies
September 2007).

A design and access statement has been provided with the application and the plans
indicate a number of accessible features. It is therefore recommended should permission
be granted that an informative is added stating the development would need to be
constructed in accordance with Part M of Building Regulations.

Policy AM13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies, September
2007) seeks to ensure that proposals for development increase the ease and spontaneity
of movement for the elderly, frail and people with disabilities by including where
appropriate measures to incorporate their needs. 

The Council's Principal Access Officer has confirmed that given the nature of the use of
the site and the limited space possible within these converted units, the provision of
enlarged accessible bathrooms to meet the normal standards for accommodation that
could potentially be occupied by disabled persons in the future would be impracticable. 

There are no other specified access or internal layout changes sought, however, the
bathrooms are suitably fitted, doors of an appropriate width and entrances level in addition
to which Part M of the Building Regulations would apply. In so far as these adaptations
that can be provided are incorporated therefore the proposal accords with the aims of
Policy AM13 in this regard.

Not applicable to this application.

Unitary Development Plan Saved Policy BE38 seeks the retention and utilisation of
topographical and landscape features of merit and the provision of new planting and
landscaping wherever it is appropriate.

There are no proposals to remove any significant existing landscape features, however,
the existing lawn would be extended which may involve the removal of part of a short
hedge in front and the Council's Landscape Officer has identified other opportunities,
notably at the front of the main building site to improve the visual appearance of the site
from the street. These aspects can satisfactorily be controlled by means of landscaping
conditions that require detail on the retention of existing features, new planting and hard
landscaping proposals as part of a landscape scheme for the whole site, when this
scheme was to be implemented and how the new planting would be maintained.
Accordingly, the proposal does not raise any conflict with Policy BE38.

Page 52



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

There are no new issues of waste management raised by the proposal, this aspect of the
current residential use of the main building being carried on under the existing
arrangements for collection, storage and disposal of domestic and recycling waste which
are under constant staff supervision.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

The issues of noise and disturbances generated by the occupants of the new residential
units, and of the noise levels currently experienced on the site to which they would be
subject are covered under the separate headings of impact on neighbours and living
conditions found earlier in this report.

There have been no particular concerns identified regarding general air quality issues on
this site and the location of the new residential accommodation is some distance to the
rear of the main building thus not likely to threaten the continued good health of future
occupants due to proximity to vehicle emissions from the street.

The comments received from local residents fall into four main areas of concern: the
impact on existing amenities; the activities within the site; the effect on the area in terms
of traffic/parking and possible future expansion.

There is no indication that any of the current activities or those of future occupants of the
new units associated with this residential care home would be any different to what you
might reasonably expect to find in a residential area. It is recognised that the main
difference in this case is the position of the converted building on the site at the rearward
end of the garden to the main building, but it is apparent that there are adequate
measures proposed to satisfactorily limit noise transference both in to the units and
beyond the site boundaries as far as necessary. With these controls in place, the general
peaceful ambience of the surroundings should be maintained and potential intrusion from
this source minimised.

The activities generated by the proposal would be no different from the existing use of the
site, and wholly in keeping with the surroundings with most residents' activities continuing
to take place indoors, and no noticeable change in how the garden would be used, in
daylight and warmer months of the year, with only two more residents living on the site as
a whole.

With no significant physical alterations proposed to the outbuilding itself, the potential
effect on the surrounding area is limited to the number of comings and goings associated
with the additional 2 residents and 1 more member of staff. At the current low rates of car
usage indicated  by the applicant however, there is unlikely to be any noticeable increase
in the number of staff, delivery or visitor vehicle movements throughout the day or
evening, to the detriment of highway safety or parking conditions in the locality as a result
of the proposal. 

The future use of and any proposals to extend the existing buildings or other structures on
the site would remain fully within the Council's control as planning permission would in
most instances, save for refurbishment and some minor structures (including means of

Page 53



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.20

7.21

7.22

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

enclosure) be required.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Policy OE5 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) states, proposals for the siting
of noise sensitive developments, where occupiers may suffer from noise or vibration will
not be permitted in areas that are, or expected to become, subject to unacceptable levels
of noise or vibration. Where development is acceptable in principle, it will still be
necessary to establish that the development can be designed, insulated or otherwise
protected front external noise and vibration nuisance. 

The site shares its rear boundary with London Underground (Metropolitan) Line and an
associated works compound. The Environmental Protection Unit have received a number
of complaints regarding noise nuisance arising from this compound and on this basis it
was therefore considered appropriate to ask for a noise assessment to establish if the
premises can be adequately protected from future noise nuisance. 

The survey information submitted by the applicant in a PPG24 Noise Assessment Report
in respect of this issue demonstrates that the development will safeguard the amenities of
the future occupiers. This takes into account the impact of rail traffic on internal areas and
shows how the British Standard design crieria of 30dBL for bedrooms (2300-0700 hrs.)
and 35dBL for living rooms (0700-2300 hrs.) can be achieved by glazing specification. As
such, the proposal is considered to comply with policies OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Policy R10 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) states, Local Planning
Authorities will regard proposals for new buildings to be used for community and Health
Services as acceptable in principle provided they comply with other polices in the plan.
The proposal would not conflict with other policies and the proposal is thus considered to
comply with Policy R10 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007).

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of

Page 54



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

Not applicable to this application.

10. CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the proposal is considered to be acceptable subject to the necessary
additional controls on the future use, layout and alteration of the building and in particular
the noise mitigation measures suggested to minimise the potential for any disturbance to
neighbouring occupiers arising directly from use of this outbuilding as habitable
accommodation.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010).
London Plan (July 2011).

Daniel Murkin 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 55



111

105

94

10
4

SL

2a

HIG
HFI

EL
D C

LO
SE

Milburn

Glen View

Windrush

2b

1

7

Tanglewood

1

1a

6

2

83

1b 5

3

79

77

99

71.3m

43

Mossleigh

Northwood

50

SL

1c

82

61

84
a

86

13.75

59

1d

51

Issues

60

38

71.9m

84

5

MP

O
W

E
LL R

O
A

D

70

43a

Drain

71

90

Boys Club

D
R

IV
E

LB

Hall

H
B

R
O

O
K

75

SL

to 6 1

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

Rear of 64 - 66 Hallowell Road
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

2200/APP/2011/2927

Page 56



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

5 POPLARS CLOSE RUISLIP

Single storey side/rear extension.

19/05/2011

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 61775/APP/2011/1204

Drawing Nos: 0634/Rev. 1 A S1 of S6 (Existing Floor Plans)
Design & Access Statement
0634/Rev. 1 A S1 of S6 (Location Plan and Existing Elevations)
Proposed Ground Floor Plans and Elevations Rev 1/B received 5 January
2012
Proposed First Floor Plan Rev 1/A received 25 November 2011

Date Plans Received: 25/11/2011
05/01/2012

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

The application relates to a semi-detached house dating from the 1930's on the south-
western side of Poplar Close, a cul-de-sac serving eleven dwellings and a scout hall.
Poplar Close is off Ickenham Road, near the junction of Ickenham Road with High Street.

The site is within the Developed Area as identified in the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (UDP)and the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

The proposal is for a side and rear extension that would wrap around the rear of the
existing house. The forwardmost wall of the side extension would be set 3m back from the
front corner of the house. The side extension would be 2m wide. The rear extension would
be 8.82m wide and 3.43m deep where it would adjoin the boundary with the attached
neighbour, No. 7 and would have a sloping lean-to tiled roof with a maximum height of
3.36m, sloping down to 2.3m at the eaves. The proposal would provide accommodation
as a family room linked internally through extended width to the dining room and kitchen.

1. CONSIDERATIONS

1.3 Relevant Planning History

1.1 Site and Locality

1.2 Proposed Scheme

01/06/2011Date Application Valid:

DEFERRED ON 21st February 2012 FOR SITE VISIT ON

This application was deferred from the committee of the 21st February 2012 for a site
visit.

Agenda Item 10

Page 57



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

The house has been extended in the past with a hip to gable roof alteration for a loft
conversion under Permitted Development rights. This was undertaken prior to the property
being included within the Ruislip Village Conservation Area.

Not applicable 23rd September 2011

Advertisement and Site Notice2.

2.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable 2.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

The occupiers of nine neighbouring properties together with the Ruislip Village
Conservation Area Advisory Panel and the Ruislip Residents Association were originally
consulted. A site notice was also posted and the application was advertised in the press
on 15th June 2011. A further  consultation took place on 9th January, when 12 neighbours
were consulted.

A petition signed by forty-five local residents has been received, objecting on the grounds
that the proposal would be visually detrimental to the Conservation Area,
overdevelopment, would overbear and infringe on neighbouring properties, would create a
terrace effect, would generate noise, disturbance and other inconvenience, intrusion to
private gardens and would create parking chaos.

Following the re-consultation, a total of 9 individual representations have been received, 2
of which followed the re-consultation, objecting to the proposal on the following grounds:

1) Problems caused by past development of the application property; 
2) Plans are of poor quality, of a poor design with tapered side wall & shallow roof form
and lack detail;
3) Useable size of rear garden has been reduced by a very large brick outbuilding built in
2008 at the bottom of the rear garden, the plans of the garden size indicate the garden is
bigger than it actually is and plan fails to show the outbuilding;
4) Application property already sizeably extended and this scheme adds to the effect of
cumulative over-development of the site;
5) Irregular shape on plot would be incompatible with surroundings and conservation area
status;
6) Roof would reduce daylight to No. 7 Poplars Close;
7) Hemming in effect to No. 7 Poplars Close;
8) Would extend well beyond existing building line;
9) Does not maintain existing spaces between properties;
10) Significantly reduces amenity space;
11) Terracing effect;

61775/APP/2006/1154 5 Poplars Close Ruislip

CONVERSION OF ROOF FROM HIP TO GABLE END AND INSTALLATION OF A REAR
DORMER AND TWO FRONT ROOF LIGHTS (INVOLVING DEMOLITION OF EXISTING
DETACHED GARAGE)
(APPLICATION FOR A CERTIFICATE OF LAWFULNESS FOR A PROPOSED USE OR
DEVELOPMENT)

14-06-2006Decision Date: GPD

Comment on Planning History

3. Comments on Public Consultations

Appeal:

Page 58



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.10 To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity
and the character of the area.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

BE4 New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

Part 2 Policies:

12) Obtrusive, incongruous and cramped overdevelopment of the site, out of keeping with
the layout and open character of the surrounding area;
13) Loss of a significant amount of light and suffer a blockage of the open aspect;
14) History of noise and congestion caused by last extension;
15) No consultation with direct neighbours;
16) Would cause disruption to neighbours and increase risk of road accidents during
construction as site traffic blocks access to the close. The road is used by nursery and
cubs youth club.
17) Overbearing and overcrowd No 7 Poplar Close and result in loss light/privacy, create a
'terrace view' of the Close. 
18) There is an existing large Chestnut tree in the rear garden that is within falling
distance of the existing house contrary to what is suggested on the application form.

Officer Comments: Points 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13 and 16, 17 are covered in the
main report. With regard to point 2, the plans are sufficiently detailed to be able to make a
decision on the application, point 1, 14 and 15 are not planning matters.

Ruislip Residents Association: The proposals would have a claustrophobic affect, the rear
extension would project well beyond the building line of adjacent properties, the character
of dwelling would be altered to its detriment and an unfavourable aspect would be created
for nearby residents.

Nick Hurd MP has written to register his concerns following contact by a constituent.

Ward Councillor: Has requested that the application be considered at committee.

Conservation and Urban Design Officer:

BACKGROUND: This is an attractive semi-detached property from 1930s, and has been
added in the  Ruislip Village Conservation Area in 2009. The house has been extended in
the past with a loft conversion and hip to gable end under permitted development rights.
This was undertaken prior to the area being designated as conservation area. Following
the designation, any new extension should be designed to enhance the character of the
conservation area. 

COMMENTS: Following the previous comments the scheme has been revised and would
be considered acceptable.

CONCLUSION: Acceptable

4.

Page 59



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

5. MAIN PLANNING ISSUES 

The main considerations are the design and impact of the extension on the house and
wider locality, the impact on the amenities of adjoining occupiers and car parking
considerations.

With regard to impact on neighbouring amenity, Policy BE21 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) is relevant and should be
considered. The policy states that planning permission will not be granted for new
buildings or extensions which by reason of their siting, bulk and proximity, would result in
a significant loss of residential amenity. 

The Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) HDAS: Residential Extensions provides
the following guidance in respect of house extensions:

With regard to loss of light or outlook to adjoining occupiers, Section 3 of the SPD sets out
criteria to assess single storey rear extensions against. This includes the following
thresholds:

· Para 3.4: Extensions should not exceed 3.6m in depth on a semi-detached plot with a
width greater than 5m; 
· Para 3.7: The roof should not exceed 3.4m in height in the case of a pitched roof,
including a mono-pitch. 

The plot is some 11m wide at the position of the proposed rear extension and the
proposed single storey rear extension would not exceed 3.6m in depth and would in fact
be below this at a depth of 3.4m and would also be within the standard guidance height of
3.4m. It is therefore, considered that the proposal would not result in unacceptable loss of
sunlight or outlook such as to warrant a refusal of permission. Therefore this aspect of the
proposal is considered to comply with Policies BE19, BE20 and BE21 of the UDP (Saved
Policies, September 2007).

With regard to any loss of privacy, it is considered that the proposal would not have an
adverse affect on the amenity of adjoining residents. The proposal would involve no
additional side facing windows. The proposal is thus, considered to accord with Policy
BE24 of the UDP Saved Policies, September 2007 and the Supplementary Planning

Page 60



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

T8

OM1

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

1

2

RECOMMENDATION6.

Document HDAS: Residential Extensions.

It is considered that all of the proposed habitable rooms, and those altered by the
development, would maintain an adequate outlook and source of natural light. Most of a
rear kitchen wall and a rear dining room wall would be removed to create 2 archways
enabling adequate natural light to be maintained to these existing rooms. The rear
extension would have three units of glazing that would face a southerly direction. The
proposal is considered to comply with Policy BE20 of the UDP (Saved Policies,
September 2007).

With regard to the design and appearance of the proposal, Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) requires that the layout and
appearance must harmonise with the existing street scene and Policy BE15 goes on to
state that extensions must be in keeping with the scale, form and architectural
composition of the original building. 

The application is considered acceptable in general design approach with its regular
shaped proposed side and rear single storey extension finished with a tiled pitched roof
built to a depth of the back wall and width of the original flank wall of the house to comply
with the respective relevant paragraphs 3.1 and 4.5 of the Supplementary Planning
Document HDAS: Residential Extensions. The scale of glazing on the rear elevation is not
considered excessive or out of character to the property and its surrounding neighbours.
Accordingly the scheme is considered to preserve the character of the Conservation Area
in which it is set and therefore complies with Policies BE4, BE13, BE15 and BE19 of the
UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

The house has at least four bedrooms and as such would require 100sq.m garden space
to meet the standard set out at paragraph 3.13 of the Supplementary Planning Document
HDAS: Residential Extensions. Taking into account an outbuilding in the back garden, an
amenity area of some 144sq.m would remain. The proposal is acceptable with regard to
Policy BE23 of the UDP (Saved Policies, September 2007).

Policy AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies September 2007) refers to the Council's car
parking standards contained under Annex 1. The standards indicate that a maximum of 2
car parking spaces would be permitted in order to comply with the policy. The former front
garden of the application property has been hardsurfaced and can accommodate two
cars. The proposal would comply with Policy AM14 of the UDP (Saved Policies,
September 2007).

Page 61



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

M2

RPD1

External surfaces to match existing building

No Additional Windows or Doors

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

The materials to be used in the construction of the external surfaces of the development
hereby permitted shall match those used in the existing building.

REASON
To safeguard the visual amenities of the area and to ensure that the proposed
development does not have an adverse effect upon the appearance of the existing
building in accordance with Policy BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing 3 and
7 Poplars Close.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

3

4

INFORMATIVES

1           The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to 
             all relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council
             policies, including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it
             unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically
             Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family
             life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14
             (prohibition of discrimination). 

Standard Informatives 

BE4

BE13

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street
scene.

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to
the policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) set out below, and to all relevant material
considerations, including Supplementary Planning Guidance:
 Policy No.

2

Page 62



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE15

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE23

BE24

AM14

HDAS-EXT

LPP 5.3

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of
the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy
to neighbours.

New development and car parking standards.

Residential Extensions, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted December 2008

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

3          You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the
            approved drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must
            be constructed precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any 
            deviation from these drawings requires the written consent of the Local 
            Planning Authority.

4          You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches
            by either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning
            application will have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a
            development that results in any form of encroachment.

5          Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the
            Building Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover
            such works as - the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building
            or structure, the extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings,
            installation of services, underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape
            works. Notice of intention to demolish existing buildings must be given to the
            Council's Building Control Service at least 6 weeks before work starts. A
            completed application form together with detailed plans must be submitted for
            approval before any building work is commenced. For further information and
            advice, contact - Planning, Enviroment and Community Services, Building
Control,
            3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

6          You have been granted planning permission to build a residential extension. 
            When undertaking demolition and/or building work, please be considerate to your
            neighbours and do not undertake work in the early morning or late at night or at 
            any time on Sundays or Bank Holidays. Furthermore, please ensure that all

Page 63



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

            vehicles associated with the construction of the development hereby approved 
            are properly washed and cleaned to prevent the passage of mud and dirt onto the
            adjoining highway. You are advised that the Council does have formal powers to
            control noise and nuisance under The Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air
            Acts and other relevant legislation. For further information and advice, please
            contact - Environmental Protection Unit, 4W/04, Civic Centre, High Street,
            Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel. 01895 250190).

7          The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal
            agreement from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
             - carry out work to an existing party wall;
             - build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
             - in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining
               building.
            Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building
            owner and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. 
            The Building Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any
            necessary agreements with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by 
            the Council should be taken as removing the necessity for the building owner to
            comply fully with the Party Wall Act. Further information and advice is to be found
            in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 - explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM,
            available free of charge from the Planning, Enviroment and Community Services
              Reception, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

8          Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
            property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission 
            does not empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the 
            specific consent of the owner. If you require further information or advice, you
            should consult a solicitor.

9          Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The
            Control of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In
            particular, you should ensure that the following are complied with: -

            A) Demolition and construction works should only be carried out between the
            hours of 08.00 hours and 18.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours 
            of 08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on
            Sundays Bank and Public Holidays.

            B) All noise generated during such works should be controlled in compliance with
            British Standard Code of Practice BS 5228: 1984.

            C) The elimination of the release of dust or odours that could create a public 
            health nuisance.

            D) No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

            You are advised to consult the Council's Environmental Protection Unit, 3S/02,
            Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW (Tel.01895 277401) or to seek 
            prior approval under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate 

Page 64



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Gareth Gwynne 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

            any difficulty in carrying out construction other than within the normal working
            hours set out in (A) above, and by means that would minimise disturbance to
            adjoining premises.

10        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to avoid spillage of mud, soil or related building materials onto the
            pavement or public highway. You are further advised that failure to take 
            appropriate steps to avoid spillage or adequately clear it away could result in 
            action being taken under the Highways Act.

11        To promote the development of sustainable building design and construction
            methods, you are encouraged to investigate the use of renewable energy
            resources which do not produce any extra carbon dioxide (CO2) emissions,
            including solar, geothermal and fuel cell systems, and use of high quality
            insulation.

12        You are advised that care should be taken during the building works hereby
            approved to ensure no damage occurs to the verge or footpaths during
            construction. Vehicles delivering materials to this development shall not override
            or cause damage to the public footway. Any damage will require to be made 
            good to the satisfaction of the Council and at the applicant's expense. For further
            information and advice contact - Highways Maintenance Operations, Central 
            Depot - Block K, Harlington Road Depot, 128 Harlington Road, Hillingdon,
            Middlesex, UB3 3EU (Tel: 01895 277524).

Page 65



82

54.3m

28b

26

15

6

6

2

14

8

14

3

4a

10

Rosedene

10

4a

10
2

KINGSEND

POPLARS CLOSE

20

Scout Hall

11

26b

88

73

Bank

1

11
0

18

R
E

G
E

N
C

Y
 D

R
IV

E

18a

Methodist

2

7

4

Bank

22

CLOSE

1

7

30 to 52

81 83

10a

98

52.1m

22

27

Woodstock

HIG
H STREET

11a

B
ank

34a

Court

Ruislip

8

6

86

Church

9

SOVEREIGN
11

5

16

2 to
 20

28

ICKENHAM ROAD

63

2

75 to 791

84

6

4

1

11

20

26a

El Sub Sta

1

17

15

23a

TCBs

10

The Thomas More Building

1 to 44

Beech
TreeChestnut Tree

Mimosa

30

1 to 11

Elthorne Court

´

February
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

5 Poplars Close
Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

61775/APP/2011/1204

Page 66



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

214 WHITBY ROAD RUISLIP

Change of use of ground floor from retail (Use Class A1) to dental surgery
(Use Class D1)

24/01/2012

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 35710/APP/2012/171

Drawing Nos: Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
Planning Statement
0061_GA_op1 Rev. A

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

Planning permission is sought for a change of use from Class A1 (retail) to a Use Class
D1 (Non-Residential Institutions) for use as a dental surgery involving no material
external physical alterations to the appearance of the building. The change of use would
comply with Policy S7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies
September 2007) and it is considered that the proposal would not impact on the
amenities of adjoining occupiers, subject to conditions. The proposal is therefore
considered acceptable in this instance.

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

HH-T8

HH-OM1

OM7

Time Limit - full planning application 3 years

Development in accordance with Approved Plans

Refuse and Open-Air Storage

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in strict accordance with the
plans hereby approved unless consent to any variation is first obtained in writing from the
Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that the external appearance of the development is satisfactory and complies
with Policy BE13 and BE15 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

Details of on-site refuse storage (including any open-air storage facilities) for waste
material awaiting disposal, including details of any screening, shall be indicated on plans
to be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. Such facilities shall be
provided prior to occupation of the development and thereafter permanently retained.

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

30/01/2012Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 11

Page 67



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

A20

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Access to Buildings for People with Disabilities

REASON
To ensure that residential amenities are not prejudiced, in accordance with policy OE3 of
the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The premises shall only be used between the hours of 0900 and 1900 on Mondays to
Fridays, 0900 to 1600 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays, Bank and Public Holidays.
There shall be no staff allowed on the premises outside these hours.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas in accordance with policy OE3 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The use hereby approved shall not commence until a scheme for the control of noise
transmission to the adjoining dwellings has been submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include such combination of sound
insulation and other measures as may be approved by the Local Planning Authority.
Thereafter, the scheme shall be implemented and maintained in full compliance with the
approved measures.

REASON:
To safeguard the amenity of the occupants of surrounding properties in accordance with
policy OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The rating level of the noise emitted from any plant or equipment shall be at least 5dB
below the existing background noise level. The noise levels shall be determined at the
boundary of the nearest noise sensitive premises. The measurements and assessment
shall be made in accordance to the latest British Standard 4142, `Method for rating
industrial noise affecting mixed residential and industrial areas'.

REASON: To safeguard the amenity of the surrounding area in accordance with policy
OE1 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan.

The premises shall not be used for deliveries and collections, including waste collections
other than between the hours of 08:00 and 18:00, Mondays to Fridays, 08:00 to 13:00
Saturdays and not at all on Sundays and Bank and Public Holidays.

REASON
To safeguard the amenity of surrounding areas, in accordance with Policy OE1 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Notwithstanding the submitted plans, the following adaptations to the building shall be
made before the use hereby approved commences:

i) Level access to the building entrance;
ii) A minimum door width of 1000mm for the access door;
iii) The Passageway to the treatment rooms should have a minimum width of 1200mm;
iv) The doorways to the treatment rooms should have a minimum width of 850mm.

4

5

6

7

8

Page 68



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Once implemented these measures shall be maintained as long as the use remains.

REASON
To ensure that people with disabilities and families have adequate access to the
development in accordance with the Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement
(2010) and Policy 7.2 of the London Plan (July 2011).

I52

I53

I1

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

Building to Approved Drawing

1

2

3

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings

S6

S7
S12
BE13
BE15
BE19

BE38

OE1

OE3

OE7

OE8

AM14
AM2

AM7
LPP 4.8
LPP 7.2

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping
areas
Change of use of shops in Parades
Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
Alterations and extensions to existing buildings
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood
protection measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
New development and car parking standards.
Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact
on congestion and public transport availability and capacity
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
(2011) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector
(2011) An inclusive environment

Page 69



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I15

I2

I3

I5

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

Party Walls

4

5

6

7

requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council¿s Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the
extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

The Party Wall Act 1996 requires a building owner to notify, and obtain formal agreement
from, any adjoining owner, where the building owner proposes to:
carry out work to an existing party wall;
build on the boundary with a neighbouring property;
in some circumstances, carry out groundworks within 6 metres of an adjoining building.
Notification and agreements under this Act are the responsibility of the building owner
and are quite separate from Building Regulations, or Planning Controls. The Building

Page 70



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is in the middle of a terrace of purpose built three storey buildings with
commercial uses on the ground floor and flats above. The surrounding area is residential
in character and appearance and is within a Developed Area as identified in the policies of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

No planning history exists for the site.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal is to change the use of the vacant ground floor unit from A1 to D1 (Dental
Surgery). The first floor would remain in residential use. The applicant intends the Dental
Surgery to be used for one dentist, one nurse and one receptionist but would be intended
later to increase to 2 dentists and two nurses. The proposed opening times would be
Monday to Friday from 9.00am to 6.00pm with late opening to 7.00pm on Wednesdays
and Thursdays. Saturdays would be from 9.00am to 4.00pm.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

S6

S7

S12

BE13

BE15

BE19

BE38

OE1

Change of use of shops - safeguarding the amenities of shopping areas

Change of use of shops in Parades

Service uses in Secondary Shopping Areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Alterations and extensions to existing buildings

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Part 2 Policies:

Control Service will assume that an applicant has obtained any necessary agreements
with the adjoining owner, and nothing said or implied by the Council should be taken as
removing the necessity for the building owner to comply fully with the Party Wall Act.
Further information and advice is to be found in "the Party Walls etc. Act 1996 -
explanatory booklet" published by the ODPM, available free of charge from the Planning
& Community Services Reception Desk, Level 3, Civic Centre, Uxbridge, UB8 1UW.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 71



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

OE3

OE7

OE8

AM14

AM2

AM7

LPP 4.8

LPP 7.2

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development in areas likely to flooding - requirement for flood protection
measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

New development and car parking standards.

Development proposals - assessment of traffic generation, impact on congestion
and public transport availability and capacity

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

(2011) Supporting a Successful and Diverse Retail Sector

(2011) An inclusive environment

Not applicable

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Internal Consultees

Landscape Officer: No objections.

Environmental Protection Unit: No objections subject to conditions relating to noise, hours of
operation and waste. 

Access Officer: The Equality Act 2010 seeks to protect people accessing goods, facilities and
services from discrimination on the basis of a 'protected characteristic', which includes those with a
disability. As part of the Act, service providers are obliged to improve access to and within the
structure of their building, particularly in situations where reasonable adjustment can be
incorporated with relative ease. The Act states that service providers should think ahead to take
steps to address barriers that impede disabled people.

The following observations are provided:

1. Level access and adequate front door width are assumed. If this is not the case, level access
should be provided via a minimum door width of 1000mm for a single door. 
2. The treatment rooms are accessed via a passageway which is shown to be 1100mm wide. This
should be increased to 1200mm, with the internal doors leading into the said rooms, no less than
850mm wide. 
3. The accessible toilet facility, whilst shown to be of a suitable width, appears not to be of the
correct depth of 2.2m. However, taking into account the existing layout and the proposal to create
two treatment rooms, there is no apparent solution to incorporate an accessible cubicle without

External Consultees

30 neighbouring properties and the Eastcote Residents Association were consulted on 1 February
2012. One reply has been received making comments relating to what arrangement have been put
in place regarding the storage, security and collection of clinical Waste. 

Case Officer Comment: Refuse disposal conditions have been recommended.

Page 72



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01

7.02

7.03

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

The principle of the development

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

The principle policy relating to changes of use within a parade is Policy S7, which requires
essential shop uses to be retained in a parade to provide a range and choice of shops to
suit the locality and for the proposal to accord with Policy S6 relating to shopfront design,
compatibility of use, residential amenity and traffic related issues.

There are currently two vacant shops amongst the six premises that comprise this side of
the local parade, including this site which has been vacant since July 2011. The proposed
change of use to a dental surgery (Use Class D1) would provide a useful local function
within this parade of shops. Essential shop uses are defined in the UDP as chemist, Post
Office counter, grocer, baker, butcher, greengrocer and newsagent. Within this parade
are food stores, a newsagent and a chemist. The proposal is therefore considered to be
complimentary to the balance of uses. The remaining policies of the Local Plan are
designed for much larger areas and in this case are considered not to outweigh the overall
acceptability of the reuse of a vacant shop for a complimentary use within this small local
parade subject to conditions. Accordingly the proposal is considered to be acceptable and
in compliance with Policies S6 and S7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

Not applicable to this application.

No material alterations are proposed to the external appearance of the building.

In terms of assessing the effects of the proposal on residential amenity, the relevant
factors are those of noise, smell and disturbance. 

Policy OE1 states permission will not be granted for uses which are likely to become
detrimental to the character or amenities of surrounding properties and policy OE3 states
buildings or uses which have the potential to cause noise annoyance will only be permitted
if the impact can be mitigated. 

The proposed development would be set within an existing commercial area where the
free flow of movement and commercial uses are expected. The nearest residential
properties lie adjacent, above and opposite to the application unit. Conditions requiring
details of soundproofing, noise attenuation, waste disposal and hours of operation have
been recommended.

compromising the entire proposal. To this end, it would be acceptable to permit the undersized
toilet facility, as a smaller facility would be preferable to not providing a facility for disabled people
at all.

Conclusion: On the basis that revised plans would be submitted to address the detail raised in point
2 above, no objection is raised.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 73



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

7.18

7.19

7.20

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Subject to these conditions, the proposal is considered be acceptable and in compliance
with Policies OE1, S6 and S7 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved
Policies September 2007).

Not applicable to this application.

The Council's Parking Standards (Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan
(Saved Policies September 2007) requires 1 space per 25sqm for non-shop uses. This
requirement is the same for shop uses. As no additional floorspace is proposed, no
additional parking spaces are required. 

Public car parking currently exists at the front of the the parade of shops and thus the
proposal complies with policies AM2, AM7(ii) and AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and the Council's Parking Standards
(Annex 1, adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan, Saved Policies, September
2007).

Not applicable to this application.

The Access Officer raises no objections subject to a condition requiring the access
corridor to be widened, which has been recommended. Subject to this the proposal is
considered to be in accordance with HDAS: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010).

Not applicable to this application.

No objection has been received from the Landscape Officer.

A condition has been recommended requiring details of waste management to be
submitted to and approved by the Council. Sufficient space is available to the rear of the
site for such provision to be made.

Not applicable to this application.

With regards to a Flood Risk Assessment (FRA), the site is in Flood Risk area Zone 2.
However, as no external alterations are proposed mitigation requirements are not
considered to be necessary. This scheme therefore complies with Policies OE7 and OE8
of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The ground floor unit has residential properties above and adjoining the site, who may be
affected by the use of machinery within the surgery. However, this can ber overcome by
the provision of sound insulation and conditions relating to the provision of such insulation
and the control of any noise that may be generated from the proposal are recommended.
Subject to these the prioposal is considered to comply with Policies OE1 and OE3 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).

The issue of waste disposal has been covered in the main report.

Not applicable to this application.

Page 74



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.21

7.22

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues
Not applicable to this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest
infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

The change of use would comply with Policy S7 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development
Plan (Saved Policies September 2007) and it is considered that the proposal would not
impact on the amenities of adjoining occupiers, subject to conditions. The proposal is
therefore considered acceptable in this instance.

11. Reference Documents

Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan (Saved Policies September 2007).
Hillingdon Design and Accessibility Statement: Accessible Hillingdon (January 2010).
London Plan (July 2011).

Clare Wright 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 75



125

2

1a

9

21

177

G
R

E
E

N
C

R
O

F
T

157

Yeading Brook

RUSSELL CLOSE

175

206

Q
U

E
E

N
S

 W
A

L
K

14

19
3

39.0m

236

38.4m

46

19
1

Whitby Parade

39

Lutherian Church

TCB

38.4m

Surgery

141

58

131

Sub Sta

133

1

39.0m

27

MOUNT

234

238

169

El

232

218

27

St Andrew's

5

153

34

183

18
7

14

25
a

175a

194

165

18
9

182

PO

WHITBY ROAD

13

1

1

17
7

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

214 Whitby Road
Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

35710/APP/2012/171

Page 76



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE SWAN PH BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD 

Two storey detached building to contain 2 one-bedroom and 4 two-bedroom,
self contained flats with associated parking and amenity space and
alterations to existing vehicle crossover to front, (involving demolition of
existing building).

31/01/2012

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 18239/APP/2012/242

Drawing Nos: 11/3252/14
11/3252/13
Photographs Sheets 1-4
Design and Access Statement
Energy and Sustainability Statement
Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
11/3252/11 Rev. D
11/3252/10 Rev. C
11/3252/12 Rev. A

Date Plans Received: 31/01/2012
10/04/2012

Date(s) of Amendment(s):

1. SUMMARY

This application, together with an application for conservation area consent
(18239/APP/2012/244) which is also being presented to this committee meeting seeks
permission to demolish the existing un-used and vacant Swan Public House and erect a
two storey detached block containing 2 x one-bedroom and 4 x two-bedroom flats, with
off-street parking in the rear garden and a disabled person's space in the front garden
area.

This follows previous applications for planning permission and conservation area consent
(18239/APP/2011/1596 and 1588) for a block containing 6 x two bedroom flats which
was refused permission and an appeal was subsequently dismissed in an Inspector's
decision letter dated 12/03/12 which is attached at Appendix 1.

The scheme has been amended by reducing the size and bulk of the building, amending
its design and the number of bedrooms and re-siting it further forward on site. Off-street
parking has been re-sited at the rear with 6 off-street spaces, served by a side access,
with a disabled person's space at the front.

Although the Council objected in principle to the loss of the building and its contribution to
the character and appearance of the Harefield Village Conservation area, this was not
supported by the Inspector. As regards the reasons for dismissing the appeal, namely,
mutual overlooking, unsightly bin store and the poor outlook and natural lighting of front
facing windows adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy, it is considered that this revised
scheme has overcome the Inspector's concerns.

As regards the current application, although the internal floor area of the two bedroom
flats are undersized, this is minimal and not of such significance as to justify refusal of
permission. No objections are raised to car parking in the rear garden, given the nature

06/02/2012Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 12

Page 77



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

of the surrounding area. The new access road does involve crossing the root protection
area of an adjoining protected Ash tree which is not ideal, but a condition has been
added to ensure that the construction of the road safeguards this tree.

The application is recommended for approval.

RES3

RES4

RES6

Time Limit

Accordance with Approved Plans

Levels

The development hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of three years
from the date of this permission.

REASON
To comply with Section 91 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990

The development hereby permitted shall not be carried out except in complete
accordance with the details shown on the submitted plans and shall thereafter be
retained/maintained for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development complies with the provisions of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the London Plan (July 2011).

No development shall take place until plans of the site showing the existing and proposed
ground levels and the proposed finished floor levels of all proposed buildings have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be

1

2

3

2. RECOMMENDATION

That delegated powers be given to the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces
to grant planning permission, subject to the following:

1. That the Council enter into a legal agreement with the applicants under Section
106/Unilateral Undertaking of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as
amended) or other appropriate legislation to secure:

(i) An education contribution of £11,186. 
 
(ii) That all construction and administration costs in raising/renewing existing
kerbs and reinstatement of the public footway adjacent to the application site are
met by the developer.

2. That the applicant meets the Council's reasonable costs in the preparation of
the S106 Agreement and any abortive work as a result of the agreement not being
completed.
3. If the S106 Agreement has not been finalised within 6 months, the application to
be referred back to the Planning Committee for determination at the discretion of
the Director of Planning and Community Services.
4. That officers be authorised to negotiate and agree the detailed terms of the
proposed agreement.
5. That on completion of the S106 Agreement, the application be deferred for
determination by the Head of Planning, Sport and Green Spaces under delegated
powers.
6. That if the application is approved, the following conditions be attached:

Page 78



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES7

NONSC

NONSC

NONSC

Materials (Submission)

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

Non Standard Condition

shown in relation to a fixed and know datum point. Thereafter the development shall not
be carried out other than in accordance with the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the development relates satisfactorily to adjoining properties in
accordance with policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

No development shall take place until details of all materials and external surfaces, ,
including details of balconies have been submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the development shall be constructed in accordance
with the approved details and be retained as such.

Details should include information relating to make, product/type, colour and
photographs/images.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Details of the window cills & arches, string course, chimneys & pots and the eaves
should be submitted at 1:5 scale or as appropriate.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until details of  the 'Swan' faience tile to be
safeguarded, appropriately repaired and reinstated on the main elevation. have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
development shall be constructed in accordance with the approved details and be
retained as such.

REASON
To ensure that the development presents a satisfactory appearance in accordance with
Policy BE13 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

Prior to the commencement of works on site, a tree report, tree protection plan and
arboricultural method statement to BS5837:2005 shall be submitted to and approved by
the Local Planning Authority to demonstrate how the access road will be constructed
without causing damage to the roots of the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3).

REASON
To ensure that the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3) can and will be retained
and not damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms
with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September

4

5

6

7

Page 79



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

NONSC

RES8

RES9

Non Standard Condition

Tree Protection

Landscaping (including refuse/cycle storage)

2007).

The access road shall must have a permeable surface and be constructed on site prior to
the commencement of work on the flats.

REASON
To ensure that the adjoining protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3) can and will be retained
and not damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms
with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No site clearance or construction work shall take place until the details have been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority with respect to:

1. A method statement outlining the sequence of development on the site including
demolition, building works and tree protection measures.

2. Detailed drawings showing the position and type of fencing to protect the entire root
areas/crown spread of trees, hedges and other vegetation to be retained shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority for approval. No site clearance works or
development shall be commenced until these drawings have been approved and the
fencing has been erected in accordance with the details approved. Unless otherwise
agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority such fencing should be a minimum
height of 1.5 metres.

Thereafter, the development shall be implemented in accordance with the approved
details. The fencing shall be retained in position until development is completed.
The area within the approved protective fencing shall remain undisturbed during the
course of the works and in particular in these areas:
2.a There shall be no changes in ground levels;
2.b No materials or plant shall be stored;
2.c No buildings or temporary buildings shall be erected or stationed.
2.d No materials or waste shall be burnt; and.
2.e No drain runs or other trenches shall be dug or otherwise created, without the prior
written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

REASON
To ensure that trees and other vegetation can and will be retained on site and not
damaged during construction work and to ensure that the development conforms with
policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007).

No development shall take place until a landscape scheme has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall include: -

1.    Details of Soft Landscaping
1.a  Planting plans (at not less than a scale of 1:100),
1.b  Written specification of planting and cultivation works to be undertaken,
1.c  Schedule of plants giving species, plant sizes, and proposed numbers/densities
where appropriate

8

9

10

Page 80



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES10 Tree to be retained

2. Details of Hard Landscaping
2.a Refuse Storage (inc. elevations if appropriate)
2.b Cycle Storage (inc. elevations if appropriate)
2.c Means of enclosure/boundary treatments (inc. elevations if appropriate)
2.d Car Parking Layouts (including details of the access road, which may need to be
raised to bridge the roots of the adjoining protected Ash Tree and how this will be
assimilated into the landscape scheme).
2.e Hard Surfacing Materials
2.f External Lighting
2.g Other structures (such as play equipment and furniture)

3. Details of Landscape Maintenance
3.a Landscape Maintenance Schedule for a minimum period of 5 years.
3.b Proposals for the replacement of any tree, shrub, or area of surfing/seeding within
the landscaping scheme which dies or in the opinion of the Local Planning Authority
becomes seriously damaged or diseased.

4. Schedule for Implementation

5. Other
5.a Existing and proposed functional services above and below ground
5.b Proposed finishing levels or contours

Thereafter the development shall be carried out and maintained in full accordance with
the approved details.

REASON
To ensure that the proposed development will preserve and enhance the visual
amenities of the locality and provide adequate facilities in compliance with policies BE13,
BE38 and AM14 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September
2007) and Policy 5.17 (refuse storage) of the London Plan.

Trees, hedges and shrubs shown to be retained on the approved plan shall not be
damaged, uprooted, felled, lopped or topped without the prior written consent of the
Local Planning Authority. If any retained tree, hedge or shrub is removed or severely
damaged during construction, or is found to be seriously diseased or dying another tree,
hedge or shrub shall be planted at the same place or, if planting in the same place would
leave the new tree, hedge or shrub susceptible to disease, then the planting should be in
a position to be first agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority and shall be of a
size and species to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and shall be
planted in the first planting season following the completion of the development or the
occupation of the buildings, whichever is the earlier. Where damage is less severe, a
schedule of remedial works necessary to ameliorate the effect of damage by tree
surgery, feeding or groundwork shall be agreed in writing with the Local Planning
Authority. New planting should comply with BS 3936 (1992) 'Nursery Stock, Part 1,
Specification for Trees and Shrubs' 
Remedial work should be carried out to BS BS 3998:2010 'Tree work -
Recommendations' and BS 4428 (1989) 'Code of Practice for General Landscape
Operations (Excluding Hard Surfaces)'. The agreed work shall be completed in the first
planting season following the completion of the development or the occupation of the
buildings, whichever is the earlier.

11

Page 81



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES12

RES13

RES15

No additional windows or doors

Obscure Glazing

Sustainable Water Management (changed from SUDS)

REASON
To ensure that the trees and other vegetation continue to make a valuable contribution to
the amenity of the area in accordance with policy BE38 of the Hillingdon Unitary
Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and to comply with Section 197 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or
without modification), no additional windows, doors or other openings shall be
constructed in the walls or roof slopes of the development hereby approved facing Apple
Trees, Breakspear Road North.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24.

The first floor bedroom window facing Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North shall be
glazed with permanently obscured glass and non-opening below a height of 1.8 metres
taken from internal finished floor level for so long as the development remains in
existence.

REASON
To prevent overlooking to adjoining properties in accordance with policy BE24 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the
provision of sustainable water management has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall clearly demonstrate that
sustainable drainage systems (SUDS) have been incorporated into the designs of the
development in accordance with the hierarchy set out in accordance with Policy 5.15 of
the London Plan and will:
i. provide information about the design storm period and intensity, the method employed
to delay and control the surface water discharged from the site and the measures taken
to prevent pollution of the receiving groundwater and/or surface waters; 
ii. include a timetable for its implementation; and 
iii. provide a management and maintenance plan for the lifetime of the development
which shall include the arrangements for adoption by any public authority or statutory
undertaker and any other arrangements to secure the operation of the scheme
throughout its lifetime. 
The scheme shall also demonstrate the use of methods to minimise the use of potable
water through water collection, reuse and recycling and will:
iv. provide details of water collection facilities to capture excess rainwater;
v. provide details of how rain and grey water will be recycled and reused in the
development.
Thereafter the development shall be implemented and retained/maintained in accordance
with these details for as long as the development remains in existence.

REASON
To ensure the development does not increase the risk of flooding in accordance with
Policy OE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 5.12.

12

13

14

Page 82



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES16

RES17

RES18

RES22

RES23

Code for Sustainable Homes

Sound Insulation

Lifetime Homes/Wheelchair Units

Parking Allocation

Visibility Splays - Pedestrian

The dwelling(s) shall achieve Level 3 of the Code for Sustainable Homes. No
development shall commence until a signed design stage certificate confirming this level
has been received.  The design stage certificate shall be retained and made available for
inspection by the Local Planning Authority on request.

The development must be completed in accordance with the principles of the design
stage certificate and the applicant shall ensure that completion stage certificate has been
attained prior to occupancy of each dwelling.

REASON
To ensure that the objectives of sustainable development identified in London Plan (July
2011) Policies 5.1 and 5.3.

Development shall not begin until a scheme for protecting the proposed development
from (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. All works which form part of the
scheme shall be fully implemented before the development is occupied and thereafter
shall be retained and maintained in good working order for so long as the building
remains in use.

REASON
To ensure that the amenity of the occupiers of the proposed development is not
adversely affected by (road traffic) (rail traffic) (air traffic) (other) noise in accordance with
policy OE5 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
and London Plan (July 2011) Policy 7.15.

All residential units within the development hereby approved shall be built in accordance
with 'Lifetime Homes' Standards. Further 10% of the units hereby approved shall be
designed and constructed to be fully wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for
residents who are wheelchair users, as set out in the Council's Supplementary Planning
Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'.

REASON
To ensure that sufficient housing stock is provided to meet the needs of disabled and
elderly people in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 3.1, 3.8 and 7.2

No unit hereby approved shall be occupied until a parking allocation scheme has been
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Thereafter the
parking shall remain allocated for the use of the units in accordance with the approved
scheme and remain under this allocation for the life of the development.

REASON
To ensure that an appropriate level of car parking provision is provided on site in
accordance with Policy AM14 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and Chapter 6 of the London Plan (July 2011).

The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x
2.4m pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both

15

16

17

18

19

Page 83



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

RES24 Secured by Design

directions and shall be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of
0.6m and 2.0m above the level of the adjoining highway.

REASON
In the interests of highway and pedestrian safety in accordance with policy AM7 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

The dwelling(s) shall achieve 'Secured by Design' accreditation awarded by the
Hillingdon Metropolitan Police Crime Prevention Design Adviser (CPDA) on behalf of the
Association of Chief Police Officers (ACPO). No dwelling shall be occupied until
accreditation has been achieved.

REASON
In pursuance of the Council's duty under section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998
to consider crime and disorder implications in excising its planning functions; to promote
the well being of the area in pursuance of the Council's powers under section 2 of the
Local Government Act 2000, to reflect the guidance contained in the Council's SPG on
Community Safety By Design and to ensure the development provides a safe and secure
environment in accordance with London Plan (July 2011) Policies 7.1 and 7.3.

20

I52

I53

Compulsory Informative (1)

Compulsory Informative (2)

1

2

INFORMATIVES

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to all relevant
planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies, including The
Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the Council to act
incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair hearing); Article 8
(right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol (protection of
property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT planning permission has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

NPPF
LPP 3.4
LPP 3.5
LPP 3.8
LPP 3.16
LPP 5.2
LPP 5.3
LPP 5.13
LPP 5.15
LPP 7.2
LPP 7.3
LPP 7.4
LPP 7.6
LPP 7.8
BE1

National Planning Policy Framework
(2011) Optimising housing potential
(2011) Quality and design of housing developments
(2011) Housing Choice
(2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure
(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions
(2011) Sustainable design and construction
(2011) Sustainable drainage
(2011) Water use and supplies
(2011) An inclusive environment
(2011) Designing out crime
(2011) Local character
(2011) Architecture
(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
Development within archaeological priority areas

Page 84



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I1

I2

I3

Building to Approved Drawing

Encroachment

Building Regulations - Demolition and Building Works

3

4

5

You are advised this permission is based on the dimensions provided on the approved
drawings as numbered above. The development hereby approved must be constructed
precisely in accordance with the approved drawings. Any deviation from these drawings
requires the written consent of the Local Planning Authority.

You are advised that if any part of the development hereby permitted encroaches by
either its roof, walls, eaves, gutters, or foundations, then a new planning application will
have to be submitted. This planning permission is not valid for a development that results
in any form of encroachment.

Your attention is drawn to the need to comply with the relevant provisions of the Building
Regulations, the Building Acts and other related legislation. These cover such works as -
the demolition of existing buildings, the erection of a new building or structure, the

BE4
BE13
BE19

BE20
BE21
BE22

BE23
BE24

BE38

H4
R17

OE1

OE3

OE8

H8
AM7
AM9

AM14
AM15
LDF-AH

HDAS-LAY

SPD-PO

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.
New development must improve or complement the character of the
area.
Daylight and sunlight considerations.
Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.
Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.
Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to
neighbours.
Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of
new planting and landscaping in development proposals.
Mix of housing units
Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of
recreation, leisure and community facilities
Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties
and the local area
Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation
measures
Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional
surface water run-off - requirement for attenuation measures
Change of use from non-residential to residential
Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.
Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design
of highway improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking
facilities
New development and car parking standards.
Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons
Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted January 2010
Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement,
Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2006
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted
July 2008

Page 85



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I6

I15

Property Rights/Rights of Light

Control of Environmental Nuisance from Construction Work

6

7

8

9

3.1 Site and Locality

The application site is located on the eastern edge of the Harefield Village centre, directly
opposite the village green and pond. It is sited on the south western side of Breakspear

extension or alteration to a building, change of use of buildings, installation of services,
underpinning works, and fire safety/means of escape works. Notice of intention to
demolish existing buildings must be given to the Council's Building Control Service at
least 6 weeks before work starts. A completed application form together with detailed
plans must be submitted for approval before any building work is commenced. For further
information and advice, contact - Planning & Community Services, Building Control,
3N/01 Civic Centre, Uxbridge (Telephone 01895 250804 / 805 / 808).

Your attention is drawn to the fact that the planning permission does not override
property rights and any ancient rights of light that may exist. This permission does not
empower you to enter onto land not in your ownership without the specific consent of the
owner. If you require further information or advice, you should consult a solicitor.

Nuisance from demolition and construction works is subject to control under The Control
of Pollution Act 1974, the Clean Air Acts and other related legislation. In particular, you
should ensure that the following are complied with:-

A. Demolition and construction works which are audible at the site boundary shall only be
carried out between the hours of 08.00 hours Monday to Friday and between the hours of
08.00 hours and 13.00 hours on Saturday. No works shall be carried out on Sundays,
Bank or Public Holidays.

B. All noise generated during such works shall be controlled in compliance with British
Standard Code of Practice BS 5228:2009.

C. Dust emissions shall be controlled in compliance with the Mayor of London's Best
Practice Guidance' The Control of dust and emissions from construction and demolition.

D. No bonfires that create dark smoke or nuisance to local residents.

You are advised to consult the Council¿s Environmental Protection Unit
(www.hillingdon.gov.uk/noise Tel. 01895 250155) or to seek prior approval under Section
61 of the Control of Pollution Act if you anticipate any difficulty in carrying out
construction other than within the normal working hours set out in (A) above, and by
means that would minimise disturbance to adjoining premises.

You are advised that it is contrary to Section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface
water from private land to drain onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage.

The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the
construction of the vehicle crossover and relocation of lamp columns.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

Page 86



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Road North, some 70m to the east of its junction with High Street and is roughly
rectangular in shape, tapering towards the rear with a 24m frontage and an overall depth
of 42m. The site comprises a detached two-storey building, which was formerly in use as
a public house known as The Swan, but is now vacant and the site boarded up. The main
elevation of the building is set back from the front boundary of the site by approximately
3.3m to 4.0m and this area was used for car parking which appears to have involved
overhanging of the public footway.

The building was built by Charles Brown, a local builder and opened as a public house in
1908. The building is of rough cast render and a plain tiled roof with two asymmetric mock
timber frame gables fronting the street with a decorative swan tile incorporated into the
larger left hand side gable. There is a projecting hipped wing with a cat slide roof at the
rear. Above the windows, there are attractive tile creased arches. The building originally
had an attractive glazed brick string course detail, which has now been vandalised. There
is a more modern porch to the front and side and rear single storey extensions.

Immediately adjoining the whole eastern side boundary of the site is a part single storey,
part two storey building which is in use a retail pharmacy at the front with residential
above, and as a repair garage further to the rear of the site. The garage use also wraps
around to the rear of the application site. To the west are detached residential houses.
The south eastern side, the boundary of the site is formed by an older buttressed wall
which appears to pre-date the public house, although it is not listed. Adjoining this wall,
within the front garden area of the neighbouring house is a large protected Ash tree which
has been crudely lopped on one side.

The application site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area and forms part of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. It is also located within the Harefield Local Centre
and covered by a Tree Protection Order (TPO_3). It also forms part of the Colne Valley
Regional Park.

3.2 Proposed Scheme

The proposal involves the demolition of the existing public house building, and erection of
a new two storey detached building to provide 4 two-bedroom and 2 one-bedroom flats.
The building would be slightly angled to the road and set back from the back edge of the
footway by approximately 4.5m to 6.3m. It would be 14.4m wide, set off the side boundary
adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy by 1m and by 4.5m to 6.0m on the side boundary
adjoining Apple Trees.

As on the previous scheme, the building would have an eaves height of 5.1m and ridge
height of 9.1m. The building would still be double fronted, although the roof design has
been simplified, with two, two-storey projecting gable roofed bays. On the ground floor, in
between the bays would be a flat roofed storm porch. The building would have an overall
depth of 16.7m which would comprise an off-set projecting hipped roof wing on the north
western side of the building at the rear, with an adjoining smaller projecting two storey
element on the south-eastern side of the rear wing.

Parking for 6 vehicles would be provided at the rear of the site, accessed by a driveway
on the eastern side of the building. A disabled parking space would be provided at the
front of the building. Provision for refuse storage/recycling would be made at the side of
the building, adjacent to the access road with a cycle store at the end of the rear garden.

This application differs from the previous scheme in that the bulk of the building has been
reduced, with its overall width and depth reducing by approximately 1.3m and 0.8m

Page 87



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

A previous scheme (18239/APP/2011/1588) for a two storey detached building comprising
6 two-bedroom flats with associated parking and amenity space and alterations to the
existing vehicular crossover to the front (involving the demolition of the existing public
house building) was refused on 27/10/11 for the following reasons:- 

1. In the absence of a full structural survey or similar and/or a financial viability appraisal,
the proposal fails to demonstrate that all options for the renovation and repair of the Swan
PH have been explored. Until such time that all options have been explored, it is
considered that its demolition is premature. The proposal is therefore considered to be
contrary to PPS5.

2. The proposal, by reason of its layout, siting, bulk, excessive habitable room density and
roof design, including the introduction of an extensive area of hardstanding to the front of
the building, represents a cramped and incongruous form of development that fails to
leave adequate space around the building, commensurate with the character of the
surrounding area and fails to harmonise with the pattern, scale and design of surrounding
residential development. The proposal would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the

respectively and moved forward on site by approximately 6.5m so as to retain wider gaps
on the boundary with Apple Trees. The design of the building has been simplified, with
more traditional roof being proposed that avoids the need for crown roof elements. The
main area of off-street parking has moved to the rear of the site, with refuse/storage
provision made at the side of the building. 

A number of reports have been submitted in support of the application, namely:

Design and Access Statement:

This provides the background to the scheme and describes the site and surroundings.
The design component of the scheme is assessed and advises of the changes made
since the previous refusal. The access component is then assessed. The report then goes
on to describe the landscaping. The reasons for refusal of the previous scheme and
identified and the report concludes that these have now been overcome.

Building Assessment by Dr Mervyn Miller:

This provides the background to the report and includes the qualifications and experience
of the author. A historical context and site description is provided. The report states that
the building was inspected on 27/07/11. The building dates to the first quarter of the last
century and is described as having a general Arts and craft character although it is not a
sophisticated design. It has been disfigured with awkward extensions, which are described
and the interior of the building is noted as being in disarray, being damaged and
vandalised. The conservation area context of the building is then described, and its
contribution to that character. National and local policy is then considered.

Energy and Sustainability Statement:

This lists the measures that will be employed to reduce the impact of the building on the
environment. As regards renewable energy, it states that in order to satisfy Level 3 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes, either solar panels or photo-voltaic cells will supplement the
conventional system.

3.3 Relevant Planning History

Comment on Relevant Planning History

Page 88



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

street scene and would fail to maintain or enhance the character and appearance of the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. The proposal is therefore contrary to policies BE4,
BE13, BE19 and BE22 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved
Policies (September 2007) and the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS:
Residential Layouts.

3. The proposed development by reason of the siting of the proposed building and its
windows would result in the overlooking of the first floor flat at the adjoining Harefield
Garage, Breakspear Road North, causing an unacceptable loss of privacy to the
occupiers. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

4. The proposed development by reason of its overall size, height, siting and length of
projection would result in an overdominant/visually obtrusive form of development in
relation to the neighbouring property, Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North and as such
would constitute an un-neighbourly form of development, resulting in a material loss of
residential amenity. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy BE21 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

5. The proposal, by reason of overlooking of the windows from the adjoining first floor flat
at Harefield Garage in the rear elevation and the poor outlook from the lounge windows of
the ground and first floor flats adjoining the Malthouse Pharmacy due to the length of
projection of the building at the front of the building, would fail to provide an acceptable
standard of residential accommodation, contrary to policy BE19 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the adopted
Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

6. The proposed bin store, due to its siting, size, scale and excessive height, would
appear as a visually intrusive and incongruous feature, detrimental to the visual amenity of
the street scene and harmful to the character and appearance of the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. As such, the proposal is contrary to policies BE4, BE13 and BE19 of
the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
the adopted Supplementary Planning Document HDAS: Residential Layouts.

7. The development is estimated to give rise to a significant number of children of school
age and additional provision would need to be made in the locality due to the shortfall of
places in schools serving the area. Given that a legal agreement at this stage has not
been offered or secured, the proposal is considered to be contrary to Policy R17 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and the
adopted London Borough of Hillingdon Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning
Document (July 2008).

A subsequent appeal was dismissed on 12/03/12 and the Inspector's decision letter is
attached at Appendix 1.

An application for conservation area consent (18239/APP/2012/244) also forms part of the
current submission which is also being reported to this committee.

4. Planning Policies and Standards

Page 89



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

PT1.7

PT1.8

PT1.10

PT1.16

PT1.30

PT1.39

To promote the conservation, protection and enhancement of the archaeological
heritage of the Borough.

To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

To seek to ensure that development does not adversely affect the amenity and
the character of the area.

To seek to ensure enough of new residential units are designed to wheelchair and
mobility standards.

To promote and improve opportunities for everyone in Hillingdon, including in
particular women, elderly people, people with disabilities and ethnic minorities.

To seek where appropriate planning obligations to achieve benefits to the
community related to the scale and type of development proposed.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

NPPF

LPP 3.4

LPP 3.5

LPP 3.8

LPP 3.16

LPP 5.2

LPP 5.3

LPP 5.13

LPP 5.15

LPP 7.2

LPP 7.3

LPP 7.4

LPP 7.6

LPP 7.8

BE1

BE4

BE13

BE19

BE20

BE21

BE22

BE23

National Planning Policy Framework

(2011) Optimising housing potential

(2011) Quality and design of housing developments

(2011) Housing Choice

(2011) Protection and enhancement of social infrastructure

(2011) Minimising Carbon Dioxide Emissions

(2011) Sustainable design and construction

(2011) Sustainable drainage

(2011) Water use and supplies

(2011) An inclusive environment

(2011) Designing out crime

(2011) Local character

(2011) Architecture

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

Development within archaeological priority areas

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

New development must improve or complement the character of the area.

Daylight and sunlight considerations.

Siting, bulk and proximity of new buildings/extensions.

Residential extensions/buildings of two or more storeys.

Requires the provision of adequate amenity space.

Part 2 Policies:

Page 90



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

BE24

BE38

H4

R17

OE1

OE3

OE8

H8

AM7

AM9

AM14

AM15

LDF-AH

HDAS-LAY

SPD-PO

Requires new development to ensure adequate levels of privacy to neighbours.

Retention of topographical and landscape features and provision of new planting
and landscaping in development proposals.

Mix of housing units

Use of planning obligations to supplement the provision of recreation, leisure and
community facilities

Protection of the character and amenities of surrounding properties and the local
area

Buildings or uses likely to cause noise annoyance - mitigation measures

Development likely to result in increased flood risk due to additional surface water
run-off - requirement for attenuation measures

Change of use from non-residential to residential

Consideration of traffic generated by proposed developments.

Provision of cycle routes, consideration of cyclists' needs in design of highway
improvement schemes, provision of cycle  parking facilities

New development and car parking standards.

Provision of reserved parking spaces for disabled persons

Accessible Hillingdon , Local Development Framework, Supplementary Planning
Document, adopted January 2010

Residential Layouts, Hillingdon Design & Access Statement, Supplementary
Planning Document, adopted July 2006

Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, adopted July 2008

Not applicable14th March 2012

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

External Consultees

47 neighbouring properties have been consulted and 5 responses have been received, making the
following comments:

(i) Development does not respect the current village kerbside frontage,
(ii) Proximity of building to adjoining properties will lead to a loss of natural light,
(iii) There will be a significant level of overlooking from the proposed upper floor accommodation
leading to loss of privacy to adjoining properties and their gardens, which would be exacerbated by
removal of trees,
(iv) Proposal represents a significant improvement in terms of previous application and its impact
upon the adjoining property, Apple Trees and street scene as bulk has been reduced, block moved
to front which now has more character. Side windows to the left should be translucent and render
on front should be in keeping with the street scene, 
(iv) Parking provision for the flats is totally inadequate given that surrounding areas are heavily
parked, particularly Pond Close, the nearest residential street and parking prohibited on
Breakspear Road North. This scheme is likely to require at least 10-12 spaces, plus 3 for visitors. A
further influx of cars will exacerbate an already serious situation and have further detrimental

Page 91



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

Internal Consultees

URBAN DESIGN/CONSERVATION OFFICER:

BACKGROUND: Following the appeal dismissal, discussions were held with agent and applicant.
The scheme has been revised as per advice. 

COMMENTS: The main contention was the rear elevation and the resulting roof form. The advice
to reduce the width of the rear element would be detrimental to the scheme's viability. However, the
'butterfly hip' has been revised with a single hip, albeit with a shallower slope. Whilst this is not ideal
and perhaps not the best design solution, it would not be visible from the street scene and would
help to resolve the rear elevation. Therefore, there would be no objections to the proposed roof
form in this instance.

The revisions proposed re the new location of the bins, the defensive space to the rear and the
minor design elements to the front elevation are acceptable.

In lieu of above, it is felt that, whilst the loss of the existing building is regrettable, the new building

impact on emergency services attending the bottom of Pond Close,
(v) Proposed access has poor sight lines, Council should consider road crossing at front of property
to assist with increased pedestrian traffic,
(vi) Parking at rear will introduce open access, resulting in security risk for adjoining properties,
(vii) Proposal, with small amenity area which appears inadequate for the proposed occupancy, will
involve area being intensively used, resulting in noise disturbance with little screening provided for
neighbours,
(viii) Excavations and development will endanger root structure of adjacent TPO'd trees and historic
wall from Harefield House estate,
(ix) Contributions to education funding will not solve problem of an oversubscribed school and a
village with a lack of facilities for young people and familites,
(x) Prior to demolition, Council should conduct  a thorough building and site survey to identify all
hazardous material and that it is removed safely and residents be given a copy of results,
(xi) Site security should be a high priority and the Council should ensure contractor fully enforces
this,
(xii) As Breakspear Road is very busy, provision needs to be made for contractor's parking,
(xiii) Contractor's hours need to be specified,
(xiv) 48 hours notice required for those residents who will suffer disruption of utilities,
(xv) Doorway width appears to be under 800mm which is going to be very tight for a wheelchair,
(xvi) Proximity of building to adjoining properties, particularly the vehicle workshops will be a fire
risk,

Harefield Village Conservation Panel:

The Panel has no objection to the proposal which would be a suitable replacement for the 'Swan'.
The plaque with the image of a swan on the front elevation of the pub should be preserved and
included in the front elevation of the new building by condition.

Campaign for Real Ale:

Object to this application, unless it can be shown that a reasonable effort has been made to sell the
place, at a realistic price, to pub companies and breweries for use as a public house.

Thames Water:

Standard advice provided - no objections raised.

Page 92



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

would not be considered detrimental to the appearance of the area and would relate to the local
street scene. It is therefore acceptable. Following conditions should be attached:

Re demolition Consent:

1. Any hidden historic features which are revealed during the course of works shall be retained in
situ, work suspended in the relevant area of the building and the Council as local planning authority
notified immediately. Provision shall be made for the retention proper recording, as required by the
Council

Re new development:

1. All materials should be traditional- clay tiles for the roof and timber doors and windows in
particular. Samples for render, brick, tiles, timber boards (included in the gables) and finials & ridge
tiles, should be submitted for approval to the Council.
2. Details of the window cills & arches, string course, chimneys & pots and the eaves should be
submitted at 1:5 scale or as appropriate.
3. The 'Swan' faience tile to be reinstated on the main elevation should be safeguarded and
appropriately repaired. Further details re the same should be submitted.

Reason: To achieve a high quality of design and standard of materials in order to enhance the
appearance of the conservation area.

CONCLUSION: Demolition Consent should be approved. New development should be approved
with conditions as above.

HIGHWAY OFFICER:

Breakspear Road runs from Ickenham Road in the south to the Harefield village in the north and is
classified as Borough Secondary Distributor Road. The site which used to trade as a public house
is located close to the Harefield village centre, southern side of Breakspear Road, fronting a large
green open space and is currently vacant. 

Currently the site is benefiting from single yellow line parking restriction in carriageway and 1.5m
wide concrete footway with a drop kerb across its entire frontage.

Proposal is to demolish existing building and construct a two storey building containing 4 x 2 bed
and 2 x 1 bed flats with associated six secured and covered cycle stands and six off street car
parking spaces at the rear with a single disabled parking space on the front of the development,
which complies with minimum standard required by the Council's UDP. Policy AM14 of the UDP
refers to the Council's vehicle parking standard contained in the Annex 1. The standard requires 6
vehicle parking spaces for similar dwellings. It is also proposed that the existing in/out vehicle
access would slightly be relocated to provide an easy access into the rear off street parking area.

proposal is therefore unlikely to result in an additional on street demand for car parking to the
detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, and is not considered to result in a noticeable increase
(if any) in traffic when compared with existing use of the property. 

Consequently, no objection is raised subject to the following conditions and informatives being
applied:

Conditions
1. A suitable condition being attached to ensure that all construction and administration costs in
raising/renewing existing kerbs and reinstatement of footway outside the applicant's property is

Page 93



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

covered by the applicant.
2. The use of the land for vehicle parking shall not be commenced until the area has been laid out,
surfaced and drained and shall be permanently maintained and available for the parking of vehicles
at all times thereafter to the Authority's satisfaction
3. The access for the proposed car parking shall be provided with those parts of 2.4m x 2.4m
pedestrian visibility splays which can be accommodated within the site in both directions and shall
be maintained free of all obstacles to the visibility between heights of 0.6m and 2.0m above the
level of the adjoining highway.

Informatives
1. It is contrary to section 163 of the Highways Act 1980 for surface water from private land to drain
onto the highway or discharge into the highway drainage system.
2. The applicant is advised to contact the Council's Highways Team in respect of the construction
of the vehicle crossover and relocation of lamp columns. 

TREE/LANDSCAPE OFFICER:

TPO/Conservation Area: This site is covered by TPO 3 and also located within the Harefield Village
Conservation Area. Therefore, all trees not covered by the TPO are protected by virtue of their
location within the Conservation Area.
 
Significant trees/other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (on-site): There are two
small Larch trees at the end of the rear garden and a small Hawthorn along the side boundary.
Whilst the trees do not constrain the development of the site, they should be retained for their
screening value.
 
Significant trees/other vegetation of merit in terms of Saved Policy BE38 (off-site): There is a large,
protected Ash (T54 on TPO 3) to the side of the site (at Apple Trees, Breakspear Road North),
close to the front, eastern boundary. The tree has been lopped on one side (eastern side - within
Apple Trees) and now appears un-balanced. However, the tree is re-sprouting and, given time,
should recover. 
 
The main access to the proposed parking area (at the rear of the proposed building) is likely to cut
across half of the Ash tree's root protection area (RPA). No relevant tree-related details have been
provided to show how the proposed access road will be constructed without causing long-term
damage to the protected Ash.
 
Scope for new planting: The plans appear to show new trees within the site. However the trees are
not detailed. The plans should be amended to show the species of tree and specification (i.e.
standard size and short-staked). However, this matter can also be dealt with by condition at a later
stage.
 
The plans also appear to show soft landscaping around the proposed car park(s). No further details
have been provided, however this matter can also be dealt with by condition at a later stage.
 
Does scheme conform to HDAS/SUDS: The proposed scheme appears to show that about 25% of
the frontage has been set aside for soft landscaping. The applicant should also provide details of
materials to be used. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.
 
Recommendations: In accordance with BS 5837 (2005), a tree report, tree protection plan and
arboricultural method statement should be provided to show how the proposed access road will be
constructed without causing damage to the protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3).
 
Conclusion (in terms of Saved Policy BE38): As it stands, this scheme is unacceptable because it

Page 94



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

does not make provision for the protection and long-term retention of the protected Ash tree (T54
on TPO 3). Please re-consult on receipt of the requested information.

Further comments

Further to my original advice below and our conversation today, the following points must be
addressed. As explained in my original advice, the current design is unacceptable because it does
not make provision for the protection and long-term retention of the adjacent protected Ash (T54 on
TPO 3). It may be the case that any tree-related information that is provided at this late stage may
still not be acceptable.
 
In accordance with BS5837:2005, a tree report, tree protection plan and arboricultural method
statement must be provided to show how the access road will be constructed without causing
damage to the roots of the protected Ash tree (T54 on TPO 3). A 'no-dig' design that bridges the
roots of the tree and/or the use of Geoweb is likely to be required. 
 
The access road must have a permeable surface.
 
The access road must be constructed before the flats.
 
A landscaping scheme should also be provided to show how the access road will be incorporated
into the proposed scheme (because it is likely to be several centimetres higher than the existing
ground level).
 
This tree-related information must be provided before the Committee meeting.

Access Officer:

In assessing this application, reference has been made to London Plan July 2011, Policy 3.8
(Housing Choice) and the Council's Supplementary Planning Document 'Accessible Hillingdon'
adopted January 2010.

The above SPD states that a residential development comprising five or more units should
incorporate a passenger lift designed in accordance with the building regulations. However, as 50%
of the proposed units would be at ground floor level, and as the number of units proposed is only
one above the minimum threshold, the provision of a lift would likely render the scheme unviable. It
is considered therefore, that the design as proposed is principally acceptable in this instance.

In most other respects, the proposal satisfies the core principles of the Lifetime Home Standards.

The following access observations are provided:

1. Level access into the proposed development should be demonstrated through the submission of
a topographical survey.

2. Details of the floor gully drainage should be provided within the bathrooms, should be specified
on plan.

3. The plans should preferably indicate a void to allow installation of a future passenger lift within
the communal areas.

Conclusion: On the proviso that revised plans would be received to address the above
observations, no objection would be raised from an accessibility perspective.

Page 95



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.01 The principle of the development

No objections were raised by officers, Members or the Inspector on the previous appeal
as regards the loss of the public house use. The officers report noted that policy 3.16 of
the London Plan (July 2011) protects social infrastructure, but only where there is a
defined need for that type of infrastructure. This could apply to public houses, particularly
where they provide a strong focus for the community, but that is not the case here, where
there are a number of alternative licensed premises in the vicinity. No objections can
therefore be raised to the loss of the use. 

As regards the principle of demolition of the existing building, the Inspector on the
previous appeal considered the issue in some detail. In paragraph 8 of the decision letter
dated 12/03/12, he states that 'although the building is not unattractive, it is not part of a
cohesive group and little of its important original detailing survives intact. PPS5 advises
that we should protect what is 'significant' about an asset rather than protecting everything
for its own sake. In this instance, the Council's stance appears to be one of protecting the
building for its own sake and converting it to residential use, notwithstanding the extent of
damage it has incurred or the appellant's indication that it is not readily capable of
conversion for residential use. Although the Council refer to it as a heritage asset they
clearly do not hold it in such high regard to warrant placing it on the local listing. The
building is not designated a heritage asset and I find it is not of sufficient historic or design
significance to warrant its retention, restoration and conversion.'

The replacement of PPS5 with the National Planning Policy Framework in March 2012
does not materially compromise the Inspector's assessment, as this emphasises that
heritage assets should be afforded protection proportionate to their significance.

SUSTAINABILITY OFFICER:

I have no objections to the proposed development subject to the following conditions:

CONDITION
No development approved by this permission shall be commenced until a scheme for the provision
of sustainable drainage systems to drain surface water runoff has been submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The scheme shall demonstrate that runoff can be
attenuated as close to the source as possible in compliance with the London Plan's drainage
hierarchy. The development shall proceed in accordance with the approved scheme.

REASON
To prevent the increased risk of flooding and aid adaptation to climate change in accordance with
PPS25, and London Plan policies.

CONDITION
Prior to the commencement of development, the applicant shall submit a design stage certificate
demonstrating the proposals will meet Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3. The certificate must
be signed by a licensed Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor on behalf of the BRE.

Prior to the occupancy of the development, the applicant shall submit a completion certificate
demonstrating the development has been built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 3. The
certificate must be signed by a licensed Code for Sustainable Homes Assessor on behalf of the
BRE.

REASON
To ensure compliance with London Plan policies.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

Page 96



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.02

7.03

Density of the proposed development

Impact on archaeology/CAs/LBs or Areas of Special Character

Given the Inspector's assessment, it is considered that no further objection to the
demolition of the Swan Public House can be maintained.

Policy 3.4 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that Boroughs should ensure that
development proposals maximise housing output having regard to local context, design
principles, density guidance in Table 3.2 and public transport accessibility. Table 3.2
establishes a density matrix to establish a strategic framework for appropriate densities at
different locations.

The site is located within a suburban area and has a Public Transport Accessibility Level
(PTAL) of 1b, where 6 is the most accessible and 1 the least. Paragraph 4.2 of the
Council's HDAS: Residential Layouts advises that for the purposes of calculating habitable
room density, habitable rooms over 20sqm should be counted as two rooms where they
could be sub-divided. However, that is not the case here as accepted by a planning
Inspector on a similar scheme at 8 Sunningdale Avenue (19038/APP/2010/770), which
had a similar room arrangement.

Taking the site parameters into account, the matrix recommends a density of 50-75 u/ha
and 150-200 hr/ha, with an average unit size of 2.7 hr/u. This proposal equates to a
density of 75 u/ha and 200 hr/ha, which accords with the Mayor's guidance in terms of the
maximum acceptable residential density on this site. It should also be noted that the
Inspector in considering the previous scheme, did not consider the higher habitable room
density of 225 to be a factor which in it self itself warranted a refusal of permission.

The application site is located within an Archaeological Priority Area. On the previous
application, English Heritage (Archaeology) advised that in this instance, the proposals
are not considered to have any significant affect on any heritage assets of archaeological
interest and there is no requirement for a pre- or post-determination archaeological
condition. As such, the scheme is considered to comply with policy BE1 of the adopted
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2011). 

Officers consider this scheme to be a significant improvement in design terms on the
previous application. In particular, the building has been reduced in size and moved
forward on site so that it would maintain a more traditional relationship with the road,
splitting the difference between the set backs of the adjoining properties, with the
adjoining Malthouse Pharmacy being sited on the back edge of the pavement and Apple
Trees being some 13m back from the road. The revised siting also allows for a larger
undeveloped gap to be retained to the side boundary with Apple Trees, a particular
concern of the previous scheme.

The design of the scheme has also been amended, with a more traditional and simplified
roof form which avoids the need for crown roof elements. Having said that, the Inspector
on the previous scheme was not particularly critical of the building's layout or design,
noting that the character and appearance of surrounding buildings was extremely diverse.

A significant change with this application is that the off-street car parking has been re-
sited from within the front garden area to the rear, accessed via a side driveway. It is
considered that placing the parking at the rear removes the previously proposed large
area of hardstanding from within the front garden area. Furthermore, as noted by the
Inspector, the application site is at a point of transition between a housing area and the
commercial core of the village. Both the adjoining garage and the hall at the rear of the
site are extensively hard surfaced, mainly providing vehicular access and parking so that

Page 97



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.04

7.05

7.07

7.08

Airport safeguarding

Impact on the green belt

Impact on the character & appearance of the area

Impact on neighbours

the proposed parking in the rear garden would not be out of character in this context.

The only aspect that was criticised by the Inspector was the bin store. Agreeing with the
Council, the Inspector considered the 5.6m long, 1.5m deep and 2.4m high bin store
within 2m of the pavement to be very prominent and unsightly, harmful to the appearance
of the Conservation Area. The bin store has now been re-sited against the side wall of the
proposed building, where is would not appear as a prominent structure, being viewed
against the bulk of the building. 

The Council's Design Officer does not raise any objections to the scheme, subject to
recommended conditions to control materials, details of window cills and arches, string
courses, chimneys & pots and eaves and the 'swan tile to be retained and restored. The
application is therefore considered to accord with policies BE4, BE13 and BE19 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and
overcomes refusal reasons 2 and 7.

Not applicable to this application.

The application does not form part of or is conspicuous from the Green Belt and therefore
no Green Belt issues are raised by the application.

This is dealt with in Section 7.03 above.

The adjoining residential flats in Malthouse Mews do not contain any windows in their side
elevation which overlook the application site, with their only windows on this side being
skylights on the main roof that would not be materially affected by the proposal.

There are ground floor offices and the owner's first floor flat connected to the garage use
further to the rear of the Malthouse Mews flats that contain side windows that do overlook
the application site. It was previously considered that given the commercial nature of the
ground floor office windows and the fact that the proposed building would not have
previously been sited immediately in front of them, the scheme was acceptable in terms of
the ground floor windows. However, the relationship of the proposed flats with the first
floor flat, which would have had a habitable room window sited some 5.5m beyond the
rear elevation of the proposed building was considered to result in an unacceptable loss of
privacy, with windows in the rear elevation of the proposed block being some 8m from the
first floor flat window within a 45º line of sight. The Inspector also considered this
relationship to be unacceptable in terms of overlooking, having regard to the Council's
design guidance which requires a minimum 21m separation distance.

The current proposal has re-sited the building further forward on its plot so that it would
now be some 14m from the nearest first floor habitable room window and the 45 line of
sight would not be breached. As such, the potential for overlooking and loss of privacy
would be minimal and the scheme complies with Policy BE24 of the adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007) and design guidance. 

The Council also had a concern as regards the length of projection of the proposed
building beyond the rear elevation of the adjoining property to the south west, Apple
Trees, although this was not accepted by the Inspector. With the re-siting of the block, this
relationship is much improved, and the proposed building would not now project beyond
the extended ground floor of this property.

Page 98



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.09

7.10

7.11

7.12

Living conditions for future occupiers

Traffic impact, car/cycle parking, pedestrian safety

Urban design, access and security

Disabled access

The proposal is therefore considered to have overcome the Inspector's overlooking
concerns in relation to the adjoining flat within the garage and refusal reason 3 of the
previous application.

The proposed one and two bedroom flats would have 52sqm and 60sqm internal floor
areas. Although the one-bedroom flats satisfy the Mayor's 50sqm guidance for one-
bedroom flats, the two bedroom flats are very marginally undersized to satisfy the Mayor's
61sqm guidance. However, it is considered that the minimal shortfall is not significant and
would not justify a refusal of the application.

The Inspector also agreed that there would be mutual overlooking of the rear elevation
from the adjoining flat at the garage, but similarly, with the re-positioning of the block, this
concern has been overcome by this proposal.

It was previously considered that with the building being set back on its plot, the habitable
room windows adjoining the Malthouse pharmacy would be poor, as this building would
project some 11.3 beyond them, encroaching upon their 45º line of sight. The Inspector
also cited this as a reason to dismiss the appeal. The building would now only project by
4m to 5m beyond the nearest habitable room windows so that there would only be minimal
encroachment upon the 45º line of sight and their outlook and natural lighting has been
greatly improved.

Private amenity space:

Design guidance requires shared amenity space to be usable and a minimum 20m² and
25m² provided for each one and two-bedroom flat respectively. In this instance, some
170m² of shared amenity space would be provided, which would satisfy this standard. The
plans also show defensive planting in front of all ground floor habitable room windows to
safeguard the privacy of their occupiers.

The Council's car parking standards advise that the maximum car parking provision for
this proposal would be 9 off-street spaces. The Council's Highway Engineer advises that
the proposed 6 off-street parking spaces with a disabled person's space at the front are
acceptable and that the proposal is unlikely to result in additional on street demand for car
parking to the detriment of highway and pedestrian safety, and would not result in any
noticeable increase in traffic when compared with the existing use of the property.

The access at the side of the building also represents an improvement as compared to
the existing situation with the public house use involving customers reversing out onto
Breakspear Road North.

A cycle store is shown in the rear garden and 1 cycle space per flat would be provided.

The Highway Engineer raises no objections, subject to conditions relating to re-instating
public footpath, car parking to be provided prior to use commencing and a visibility splay.
As such, the scheme is considered to comply with policies AM7, AM9 and AM14 of the
adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2011).

Given the scale of the development, it is considered that 4 x two-bedroom and 2 x one-
bedroom flats would be appropriate to comply with policy H4 of the Adopted Hillingdon
Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Page 99



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.13

7.14

7.15

7.16

7.17

Provision of affordable & special needs housing

Trees, Landscaping and Ecology

Sustainable waste management

Renewable energy / Sustainability

Flooding or Drainage Issues

Policy 3.8 of the London Plan (July 2011) advises that all new housing development
should be built in accordance with Lifetime homes standards. Further guidance on these
standards is provided within the Council's Supplementary Planning Document: Accessible
Hillingdon, January 2010.

The Council's Access Officer advises that the scheme satisfies the core principles of
Lifetime homes standards, but a number of detailed matters need revision to ensure full
compliance with Lifetime homes standards. A condition has been added to ensure that the
scheme fully complies with standards.

Not applicable to this application, given the nature of the proposed development.

The Council's Tree Officer advises that the site is covered by a TPO and is within the
Harefield Village Conservation Area. There are no trees on the site that would constrain
the development. However, there are two small Larch trees at the end of the rear garden
and a small Hawthorn along the side boundary which should be retained for their
screening value.

Of more importance is a protected Ash Tree (T54 on TPO 3) on the side boundary in the
front garden of the adjoining property, Apple Trees. This should be a significant feature in
the local landscape but has been subject to some crude tree surgery on the east and
south sides only of its upper crown which has un-balanced its appearance and made the
tree more susceptible to limb breakage in high wind. However, the tree is re-sprouting
and, given time, should recover. 

The Tree Officer advises that the main access to the proposed parking area is likely to cut
across half of the Ash tree's root protection area (RPA). No relevant tree-related details
have been provided to show how the proposed access road will be constructed without
causing long-term damage to the protected Ash.
 
The plans also appear to show new trees within the site. However the trees are not
detailed. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.
 
The plans also appear to show soft landscaping around the proposed car park(s). No
further details have been provided, however this matter can also be dealt with by condition
at a later stage.
 
The proposed scheme appears to show that about 25% of the frontage has been set
aside for soft landscaping. The applicant should also provide details of materials to be
used. This matter can be dealt with by condition at a later stage.
 
Although not ideal in terms of the protected Ash tree, conditions have been added to take
account of the matters raised by the Tree Officer.

The proposal makes provision for refuse and recycling storage within a store at the side of
the proposed building.

An Energy and Sustainability Statement has been submitted with the application. The
Council's Sustainability Officer advises that the scheme is acceptable on sustainability
grounds, subject to conditions.

Page 100



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

7.18

7.19

7.20

7.21

7.22

Noise or Air Quality Issues

Comments on Public Consultations

Planning Obligations

Expediency of enforcement action

Other Issues

The application does not lie within an area prone to flooding. A condition has been added
to ensure a sustainable drainage scheme is provided.

This application raises no specific noise or air quality issues. A noise insulation scheme to
ensure the flats were adequately protected from noise generation by other occupants
within the building has been controlled by condition.

As regards the responses received, points (i) - (vi), (viii) and (xvi) have been dealt with in
the main report. Point (vii) would be mitigated with secure by design condition. As regards
point (ix), tree matters have been covered in the report, whereas the wall would be
unlikely to be affected by the proposals. As regards the other matters raised, these are
not planning matters.

Policy R17 of the adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) is concerned with securing planning obligations to offset the additional
demand on recreational open space, facilities supporting arts, cultural and entertainment
activities, and other community, social and education facilities through planning
obligations in conjunction with other development proposals. These UDP policies are
supported by more specific supplementary planning guidance.

Given the nature and scale of the scheme, only a potential contribution towards additional
educational provision would be generated. A contribution towards additional education
space of £11,186 is required (Nursery - £1,215, Primary - £4,978, Secondary - £3,076 and
Post-16 - £1,917).

No enforcement issues are raised by this application.

There are no other issues raised by this application.

8. Observations of the Borough Solicitor

When making their decision, Members must have regard to all relevant planning
legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies. This will enable them to
make an informed decision in respect of an application.

In addition Members should note that the Human Rights Act 1998 (HRA 1998) makes it
unlawful for the Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights. Decisions by the
Committee must take account of the HRA 1998. Therefore, Members need to be aware of
the fact that the HRA 1998 makes the European Convention on Human Rights (the
Convention) directly applicable to the actions of public bodies in England and Wales. The
specific parts of the Convention relevant to planning matters are Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First Protocol
(protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

Article 6 deals with procedural fairness. If normal committee procedures are followed, it is
unlikely that this article will be breached.

Article 1 of the First Protocol and Article 8 are not absolute rights and infringements of
these rights protected under these are allowed in certain defined circumstances, for
example where required by law. However any infringement must be proportionate, which
means it must achieve a fair balance between the public interest and the private interest

Page 101



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

infringed and must not go beyond what is needed to achieve its objective.

Article 14 states that the rights under the Convention shall be secured without
discrimination on grounds of 'sex, race, colour, language, religion, political or other
opinion, national or social origin, association with a national minority, property, birth or
other status'.

9. Observations of the Director of Finance

10. CONCLUSION

It is considered that this scheme overcomes the Inspector's concerns as regards a
previous appeal for a similar flatted development on this site.

Furthermore, the revised proposal, with the flatted block amended involves a reduced
bulk, simplified design and a siting further forward on its plot is considered to present a
satisfactory appearance within the Conservation Area and would safeguard the amenities
of adjoining residents. It would also provide adequate amenities for its future occupiers. A
significant change has been the siting of 6 off-street parking spaces in the rear garden
which would involve the access passing within the root zone of a protected Ash tree,
which would need to be mitigated by an appropriate construction for the road, which has
been controlled by condition.

The application is recommended for approval.

11. Reference Documents

National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012)
London Plan (July 2011)
Adopted Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007)
HDAS: Residential Layouts & Accessible Hillingdon
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, July 2008
Consultation responses

Richard Phillips 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

Page 102



��

�
������������	
��������������
���������

�
�
�

�

����������	
	��
�
������������
��������������
���� !��

��������������	�����������������������

�����
�����������	�������������������������������������� �	�	�
�����!�������"��������

���	
	�������#�$%�&�����%'$%�

�
��������#����(�))$'(�($$(%$**$)$�
�+������,�����-
����������.����,�/����	���,�01�	����0�2�*.��
�� "���
���
	�����
������������������� �
���#���$�����%	
�����&'������(��	�����
���

)������
�����*��
�+�*���!,, �

�����
���$��
	�����
����������
�����
��
����������
�� "���
���
	�����
������-����-��������)	�
������.�����'���

�������������������$�����

)�����	��$�����'������(�������$�.�		�������
�� "���
��	��
�����/�$�!0�1,�*%%�� !!�!2034��
�����0�3�!!4��
����$����������������
����

�#�! �!!��
�� "�������	�����������������������	�������$������5��������������������
��������	�����
�

�
��������#����(�))$'(�($$(%$**$)3�
�+������,�����-
����������.����,�/����	���,�01�	����0�2�*.��
�� "���
���
	�����
�����������������#0��$�����"����
���)�������%	
�����*���!,, �



�����
���$��
	�����
����	
�����������������
�� "���
���
	�����
������-����-��������)	�
������.�����'���

���������)�����	��$�����

'������(�������$�.�		�������
�� "���
��	��
�����/�$�!0�1,�*%%�� !!�!2004��
�����0�3�!!4��
����$����������������
����

�#�! �!!��
�� "�������	���������������������������������
��������	�����������
���3�������������

��	$�����
�����$	
��������
�����
�����
�����
���
���������
���
���
	���
���������
�5�����������	��������������������$�����&����	��������	�������$��5���������	���+��

���	
	��
�

!�� *���
	�*�����������������

��� *���
	�(����������������

&�	���

 �
�

*���
	�*� �

1�� "����
������������*���
	�*������������������
�����$$�����������������6����$������
����	�������$������5���������	����
����$�������������
������	���������������
��
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����)������
�����*��
��

*���
	�(�

��� "����
�������������*���
	�(�
����������������������������	����������	������

+����������������
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����.
��$��	����		
��)������
�����
*��
7���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�+��
�������	�����������������$������
���������������������	����7��������������
�+���������
��������
��
����$�����
���
������	����$���$�����������
���7�
������
�+��
�����
��8�
�������������������������$�����
�������$�
�����������

Page 103



*���
	�9���������*%%�/22! �:�!!��!33!2!4�*%%�/22! �*�!!��!33!2��
�

�
������������	
��������������
�������������������������

���
��
�

*���
	�*�

2�� "���)�����	������
�����
��������
��������6�����������������	���������	�����$�����
���	���������
���;��
����
�������
	�����������
����������
�����
�����������
����

�
����.������4����	��������
�����	������
��������
���������
���
������	��
'������(��	���4�������	������������	��
	�	�����$����	������$�
����������
	����
�����������������4��������������	���������
�������
�������������
�	��
	����	����

����������
��
��������!, 0�
�������
����
���
���������
�	����������
����
�
�������������������������������
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����.
��$��	����		
��
)������
�����*��
���"���)�����	<��)������
�����=$$�������
�������
���
����

����������
	���������$��������4��������������������������������
������
��
�����
$�����������������$�%%�2�
������$����������������
	�������������������
�������
����	��������;������
��������$�
���������������������
	������������������
��	����

�����������$���$��������������6����$����������	�������$��������	���4�����
)�����	��������������������������
		���
�
�	���$�����������
�����$��������������
���������������
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����)������
�����*��
���

3�� "������	��������������������������������		
���������������	�����������������		
��
�����
����������"������	�����
��������
�
���$�������������
�������
�������
���6��������
��
	������*�����������;��
����
�������
�
������������	�����
��
�5��������
���������������������
��������
��������������>��	���%�	����.:#�3�
���%%�2�
���������
������������$���	����
�����	��������
�
������������	����
����	���������������$
������$����
������������4�;��
�������������������������
���������
��4����������������
�����
���
�����������������	���$�
�������
������$�
�
������
��
	����
������
	����$������

#�� "�����������$���������$�		����
��
���������������
��
�����	���$������������
$��
���
	���
��	����$����������������4�
�������
���		
��������
��������������
���
	
������$��������	���������������
��	��	��������	$�������������
	������������
���;�
�
������
���
��������������4������
���
�����
������"���)�����	���
�������
���	����������
������
��
����4�����;����	��
�������������
���		
��<��
����������
9��-�		��<���������
���������$�
�������������
������������
���
����������6�������
	
���4�������
��������5������������1���������;�
	����
����
��������
		������
��
���6�������
�!,3 ���
������4���������������
�����������
	�������
	�$�
�������$�
��������
�������9����
�������	����5����
		���
��	
��	�����������������
���
������	����������������
�	�;��
�����������
������$��������$�����
�	�4�������
�������
�����������������	
������
���������������
�������������������

0�� ;�����
���
��
	��$�����)������
�����*��
4�;��
����
���������
�����
�����������
�
����$����	������$��
��������	��4�
���
��������
���������
�����
��	��

��
������������13 ��������
���
�
�$����������		
���������*	����������
���	�������������
���
�����4������������
����$�
���������������
���	���	���$�����
������
��������
	����
�	���������������
�����%%�2�
���������
���������	��
����������
�����?����$��
��<�
�����
��
������
�������
����������������������$���
���������
�����;�����������
���4�����)�����	<����
����
���
��������������$�
�����������������	����$������������
���
����������������������������
	����4�
���������
����������5������$��
�
������
������������������
���		
��<��
�����
�������
��������������
��	���
�
�	���$������������$������������
	�������
*	����������)�����	���$���������
��
������
��
�����������	�
�	�����������	��������
�����������
�������
��
����	
��������������	��
	�	��������"������	�����������
�����
����
��
������
��
�����
���;�$���������������$���$$�������������������������
����$��
��������
��
����������������4�������
�����
����������������*	��4������
�
��	���������	����������	������������������
���$
�������
�����
��
��������

Page 104



*���
	�9���������*%%�/22! �:�!!��!33!2!4�*%%�/22! �*�!!��!33!2��
�

�
������������	
��������������
�����������������������1�

,�� -������	������������������$�������������.
��$��	����		
��)������
�����%
��	�
�
����������6�����������������������	�����$�
���	�����	������
���
��
����������
����	������������		
�������
���������������������������	�������	������$�
�
���	��
�����@����
�������������
��
�����
�	�����	
�������
���������������
��
�	
8�������	���������������
�����������
������������������	�����

! ��;��	�����$�����
����4�;�����	������
�������
	����$�������	
����������
��
��������
��	
����	��	��4�����������
6�������$��������
�	���$�
�������$���������������
�
�	��
�
�
������
	��
�����������
�����
������	����������������������������$����$�
�����������������
������������$���
	�������;���
���������$
������
�������
��$$�����������������6����$����������	�������$������5���������	�������6�������
�����������
��
�����
�	����������$�������	�������������	
��������;������$����
������
		�
���
������������	�������������
	����*���
	�(���������

*���
	�(�

����������	
��������������������������
��	�����������������

!!��;������$����������4�����)�����	������������
	��$����������4���
	��
���	
������$�����
������������	���4�����$
��
����������������$	�����������
�	��������
�
�����
���
������
���
������"���A�����
������	����������
���$�����������������������
��
�����5����������������
����5������	������������$	
��������
�������.������4�����
��
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$��������	����������
����5�����	����������
���;�
���������������������
������$�
�	����������$������	��
�������$	�����
����������
	�
$�
������$�������������5���������	������"����������������	����������
���������

��������
��%.�
���
	������������	����������4�������	���������$�������
�
��
$����������
�������������������$���������������������$��������$��	
����
����
�������������	������������������*	����������)�����	���
�����
�������������������
�$�
���5��������
��
��$��
������$
�����
��������	��
���
������
		������������

�������������4����������
��
��������������
	��������������$����
�������
�
���������
������������$$��
�����$�����������
��������
		���
������$
������"���

�6
�����
�
��
	����
��$����������
�����
�������������
����B����*������;�
������������$����
������
��$����������
��������
	�����������
���
�
�����$�����

��
�
���;������������
�������������
����
�������������$���
����������������
�
�������
��
�
���������������
	�������$���������	�������

!���*	����������������������	���<�����$�������
	������������$��������������������
)�����	���������������	�������$�������	��������$�$	
��C�����D����$4����������	��
���������
��	��
��
�����$���������������������
������	�������������������
��

��
�$��������
	������$�������	
���
��	���������������4�������	��������������

���;���
�������������
��������
��$���	��������������������������������$���$�
����1��������!,3 ���
����������
��"���%��	
�������
����1 ��������$�������������

!1��"���)�����	��
���
�������������������	�������	��������������
����
�����
�	��
�������������$�����	������4��
������
������%�	����1����$�����
�������'������
%	
����"���������
����������������������
�	���
��������	����%"*'�
��
�����������
���������
���5����"
�	��1��������
����
����������
����$�2 �#2���
�
���!2 �
�  ����
����	�����
�������
�����"���������
	��8�
�������
����������$�#2���
�

�����2����
4�
�������)�����	��������������������5������������������$�����
��������
�
�������$��
���
�	����������>��	���������������$����
�������
�����$�
����
�������
��������$�
�����	�������;������������������$�������������������
����������
5�����
���������
���
��������
�$��8�������������$��������������
��
������"����$���4�;����������
��������$
������������	$�����
��
�����$��
	����
��
��������
	��
����
����$�����������������	�������	���
�����
����������
����
�	�����
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����)������
�����*��
����

Page 105



*���
	�9���������*%%�/22! �:�!!��!33!2!4�*%%�/22! �*�!!��!33!2��
�

�
������������	
��������������
�������������������������

!���>��	�������)�����	�������������������
�����������$�����������������	����
���
������������	�����������5������$�������
��
��������	����������������
		��
�������������������$����%����)	�������������
�4�;��
����
��������	��������������
����
����
�
��$����������
��
��������
�������	����������������	������	��������
����������������������!,# ����������������$�����������-�������4�����$	
���
�	��
����������
������������������������������
���������������$���������
������
���(��
����
��/�
��E�����
����������	��$�������	�������5�����
������	��
��������������
���������	����������
��	�����������������

!2��(����������������	�����
��4�������	��
	�������$����
�����������
�6
�����
���		���C*��	��"����D�
���������������������������
������$���������������
���
������������$�����
�������>��	���������������������������
����������6������������
������������������������������������������
�������
�������	���
	��������
�����������$������������������������5���������������
���
	�����4������������
�����
	
���4�����������
��������
�����
����������������
����������
����$�����
���	���<����
������������"���
�������
	��5������
��
��$�$	
����
		��$�����

�6��������
��
�����������������������$�������������	
����
����	
��������

!3��.������4�����)�����	������������������
��������@��
����������$���������������

	��������
�����������
������	���������
		������������
����
�
����������
���������������;�
������
��������
��
��������������������
������2�3�������
���������������!�2�����������������������������$������
�������
���
�	���
���
����������	��������������������
���������	��
����
�������
���
�
�����$�
����)������
�����*��
���"���>
�������������9��
����������������
�����
��
�����
����
��������	���$���3�$	
������	�����
�������
���������������
�����
��
����1���	�������������������	������������
����$$���������"�����������������
���������������$�����������������
	��
�����������������$�������
�
��$��������
�
�������
�����������
�����	��������
��������������
����������
���
�
����
���������������������
����
		����
�6����4����������������������������
	����
�����;��
����
��������$�
������
�	������������
������������	����
�������	���
����
����
����
��$
��	������
�����8������������	�����
�����
�	�4�;�
����
�	�����
���
��������;����	���
���$
�����	���������
��������������
�������������
�������;�
�����$����$����������������������4���
	��
����������$������������������������
���	���
���������
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����)������
�����*��
��

���������
���������������������������������������
�����������������

!#��"���)�����	<���������������������������������	
�������������
����$�����������
	�
����������
�������*��	��"�������������
���
�������$	
��
��
�6
�����.
��$��	��
A
�
�����������������;����	������
		��
�������������
���		
�����
������
��
����$�����$�����������$	
������	�����������	���������$���
	��������	�����
�����������$��������
�����$���������������������		��������������$��������
		��
	����������
����������
����$������������
�����
������������
	��$�
�	
���
��������������������������
��
�������
�6��������������
��������*��	��"��������

!0��E�������	���4�����)�����	�����������������6��������$�����������������	����

����5��
��	��,���������������
���	��
������$�����������������	�������$�*��	��
"�����
���
�����3��$���������
���������	����������
������	�����������
�������
�������	����$������
�������������.������4�
������
���		
�����������
���4����
�
����$������������	�������	����
������
��2�������	������
���$���������������
�$�*��	��"�����
���
������������
�
���������
�����$�3�2�����	����������������
*�������������������	�������
�����
�
��$�������������
���
���
�	�����
�
����	���	���������
�����������
��$�����������6�������
��4�;�
�������������
���	������
���
�����������
�����������������$�������������
����������4��������

���������
��
�����$��
	���

Page 106



*���
	�9���������*%%�/22! �:�!!��!33!2!4�*%%�/22! �*�!!��!33!2��
�

�
������������	
��������������
�����������������������2�

!,��"����������������������������$�����$	
��
������
�6
�����.
��$��	��A
�
���
���
	��������5����������
���
�������
���	��
������������	��
�����$
����������	�������
����$����������
�������"�����
����$������$������
��
����
��
���������
���$���
�������������$	
������	�������������������������
������	���������
		�����
�������������������$�����
�����.������4����������������������	�����5�������
�����������������������
������$���������4���
���������������������$	
������	��
����	��������������
������$��������������������
�
��$	
�4�������������
�
�����
����
���������6����0����"���)�����	���$�������������
�����
�	����������
��
������!��������������2�������	�����$�����4�
�������$��������������������������
*	����������
���		
���������������
����	
�������$
�����
���
�	��������������
����
���4�
�����
��
����	�8�����������������������
��	����8����������
���
���
�
���������
���4�;����	��$������������
��������������������������������$���
�
	����������
��������������������
��������

� ��)����8����	�4��
������
���������������
	�0�����
�
���������
������������
�����
�������$
�����
�����������������������������������	��������	������������
�����2�������	�����$�����4�;�$�������������	�������������������
	�$�������
	�
����	��������9�����������
������$�����������������
�������������������
������������������������$	
��4�;�����������������������	�����
�������
������
����
�����������	��������8�������������������������	
@������$�5����������;�
�����$��������	��������������
	����	��������������
���
	�
�����������������
	�
����	��������������������
�����������$��������������$	
���
�������$	
��
��
.
��$��	��A
�
��
����������������
�����'��
	�%	
��%�	������(:�!�
���(:������

��������������������������������������������������

�!��>������
���������������������4�����)�����	����������������������������
�����$�
�������������$	
������	���
���
��������
��
����$����������
	�
��������������
����	������
��������
��$��������$�����$	������������$�����$	
��
������
�6
�����
.
��$��	��A
�
����"���������������		
����$��������������������������;��
���
$��������������	�����
����
�����
�	��	�����$�����
����������
���
	�
���
��������������	��������;�������������������
��
�����$
������������
����������
�������������
���
���������
���$�����������������$	����$	
����	�������������

�
��$	
�4���������������	���������	�����$�	���
�����	
�	��
����	�������������
�����
	����
�
���������
������*	����������
���		
����
���
������
�������
�����
���	�����
�
����$���������
�����
����	
���������$	
������������������
�������
�5���������	���	���$�����
���
�����������$
��	��������4�������	�
�	��
������
���
����$	
���
����
�
�	���$�$
��	�������
��������
�����
�����$�������8������������
��������
��
���������
�������������������$�����
�������$�
�����������

����;��
�������4�����)�����	�����������������	����$��������	��������������$�����
$�����$	
����	���������������
��
������	����������������������
		����6������
!!�1��$���
����$�����4�
�����$�����������2�������	�����$��������E�����	��
���	������������������$	
����
		4������������6����!��
�
��$��������������$�����
������������	���4�
���
��������
����
����	��������������4�������	��
	���������
��������������	���	��$�	������������������	������������
����������������$
����
�	��
�������>��	�������
���		
��������
�������������	�����	����$����������
���
���������������������$��������	���4�
��������
���8�������
		�
��������������6����
!��$��������$	
����
		��$�������
��
��4���������	������������	��
����������$�

�������
	�	���������������������������	������;������$��������	������������������
��
����������	����������	����������
��������
��
����$�����
��4����	����
���
	����������������$������
���	�����������
�������
���
���������
����$�������$�
����$	
���
�������������
�����'��
	�%	
��%�	������(:��4�(:�!�
���(:� �
���
���
�����������
�������.9*���/��������
	�'
�������%9���

Page 107



*���
	�9���������*%%�/22! �:�!!��!33!2!4�*%%�/22! �*�!!��!33!2��
�

�
������������	
��������������
�����������������������3�

������������������������������������������������

�1�����
		�4��������������������������$���4�����
���		
�������������
�F��	
���
	�
F�����
�����
����!1������
���� !��������������$��
����
�$��
���
	�
����������������
�������������������$�����
�����$
��	��������"���
���		
����
��

�����������������$��������
���������������
�������
�$����	
����
	��	
���������
�����������)�����	<������	�����
���%	
�����9������������	����$����
���
	�

�����������$������
�������
���������������	��
���������
�������
�����8��������
���$��������	��	
������;�
���
���$������
�����������$�G!!41���
���$
���
�������������
������	�����$���������������
���
�����
��������	�������
������
��������������$�����)���������;�$�
����������'����/��	
��������"���
)�����	�
	��������
������������
�	��
�����������������$��
	���������������
���
����	����������������
	�����	���������'��
	�%	
��%�	����/!#���

	�����������

����E�������	���4�$���������
����������
�����;�����������������)�����	���
������
����	����������*���
	�(����	����
���������
�
�����
���
���
�
�����$�����
.
��$��	����		
��)������
�����*��
�����������������4���@��
���	��
������$�����
������������������7�����	�������
�����
�	������
	�����	��������������������
��
���������$��������������$	
���
�������$	
��
��.
��$��	��A
�
�7�
�����������
�
�������
��
����$�����
��4����	����
���	����������������$������
���	�����������

�������
���
���������
����$�������$��������������$	
�����;������
��������$�
��

�����
�	����������$�������	�������$�����������4�;��������������	�������$�����
���	�������*���
	�*����	��������������
��������	��
�������������)������
�����
*��
�
������������
���������
�
�����
���
���
�
������*�������	�4����
������
$���	���
	
�������������4�;�����	������
�����������
���
	������	����������������

�

�����������	�
;���������

�

�

�

�

Page 108



18
The

3

2

2

1

1

29

1 to
 10

PO

5

1

St Marys

1

LB88.1m

12
f

Church
25

15

PC

(PH)

12
a

10
26

27

Hall

Apple

9

Harefield House

GP

4

POND C
LOSE

Swan

G
ar

ag
e

2

11

12

15

10

H
IG

H
 S

TR
E

ET

17

Pond

Ashley

Pea
r

9

34

9

Tr
ee

s

Cricket Ground

3

Pavilion

War

South Cottage

24

3

36

Tr
ee

s

8

1a

31

El Sub Sta

PH

23

Harefield

The Green

The

33

10

Memorial

Taylor Close

16

1

12
d

14

3

88.7m

88.7m

35

TCBs
Arms
King's

The Poplars

Garage

Cedar
House

The Coach House

Car Park

Hig
h

Pi
n

Pond Cottage

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

The Swan P.H.
Breakspear Road North

Harefield

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

18239/APP/2012/242

Page 109



Page 110

This page is intentionally left blank



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

THE SWAN PH BREAKSPEAR ROAD NORTH HAREFIELD 

Demolition of existing two-storey detached building (Application for
Conservation Area Consent)

01/02/2012

Report of the Head of Planning & Enforcement Services

Address

Development:

LBH Ref Nos: 18239/APP/2012/244

Drawing Nos: Conservation Area Statement
Letter Supporting Conservation Area Statement
Location Plan to Scale 1:1250
11/3252/14
Photographs Sheets 1-4

Date Plans Received: Date(s) of Amendment(s):

APPROVAL  subject to the following: 

CA1

CA3

NONSC

Time Limit (5 years) - Conservation Area Consent

Demolition - requirement for a development contract related

Non Standard Condition

The works hereby permitted shall be begun before the expiration of five years from the
date of this consent.

REASON
To comply with Section 18 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990.

No demolition shall take place until a contract for the associated development provided
for in planning permission 18239/APP/2012/242 has been made.

REASON
To ensure that premature demolition does not occur in accordance with Policy BE4 of the
Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies (September 2007).

Should any hidden historic features be revealed during the course of the works, which
have not previously been identified, the feature(s) shall be retained in situ, work
suspended in the relevant area of the building and the Council as local planning authority
notified immediately. Provision shall be made for the retention and proper recording, as
required by the Council.

REASON
To safeguard the special architectural and/or historic interest of the building in
accordance with Policy BE8 of the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007).

1

2

3

I52 Compulsory Informative (1)1

INFORMATIVES

2. RECOMMENDATION

06/02/2012Date Application Valid:

Agenda Item 13

Page 111



North Planning Committee - 26th April 2012
PART 1 - MEMBERS, PUBLIC & PRESS

I53 Compulsory Informative (2)2

PT1.8 To preserve or enhance those features of Conservation Areas which contribute to
their special architectural and visual qualities.

UDP / LDF Designation and London Plan

The following UDP Policies are considered relevant to the application:-

Part 1 Policies:

LPP 7.8

BE4

BE13

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology

New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas

New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Part 2 Policies:

Not applicable14th March 2012

Advertisement and Site Notice5.

5.1 Advertisement Expiry Date:-

Not applicable5.2 Site Notice Expiry Date:-

6. Consultations

Richard Phillips 01895 250230Contact Officer: Telephone No:

The decision to GRANT Conservation Area Consent has been taken having regard to all
relevant planning legislation, regulations, guidance, circulars and Council policies,
including The Human Rights Act (1998) (HRA 1998) which makes it unlawful for the
Council to act incompatibly with Convention rights, specifically Article 6 (right to a fair
hearing); Article 8 (right to respect for private and family life); Article 1 of the First
Protocol (protection of property) and Article 14 (prohibition of discrimination).

The decision to GRANT Conservation Area Consent has been taken having regard to the
policies and proposals in the Hillingdon Unitary Development Plan Saved Policies
(September 2007) set out below, including Supplementary Planning Guidance, and to all
relevant material considerations, including the London Plan (July 2011) and national
guidance.

MAIN PLANNING ISSUES7.

3. CONSIDERATIONS

3.3 Relevant Planning History

LPP 7.8
BE4
BE13

(2011) Heritage assets and archaeology
New development within or on the fringes of conservation areas
New development must harmonise with the existing street scene.

Page 112



18
The

3

2

2

1

1

29

1 to
 10

PO

5

1

St Marys

1

LB88.1m

12
f

Church
25

15

PC

(PH)

12
a

10
26

27

Hall

Apple

9

Harefield House

GP

4

POND C
LOSE

Swan

G
ar

ag
e

2

11

12

15

10

H
IG

H
 S

TR
E

ET

17

Pond

Ashley

Pea
r

9

34

9

Tr
ee

s

Cricket Ground

3

Pavilion

War

South Cottage

24

3

36

Tr
ee

s

8

1a

31

El Sub Sta

PH

23

Harefield

The Green

The

33

10

Memorial

Taylor Close

16

1

12
d

14

3

88.7m

88.7m

35

TCBs
Arms
King's

The Poplars

Garage

Cedar
House

The Coach House

Car Park

Hig
h

Pi
n

Pond Cottage

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with 
the authority of the Head of Committee
 
Services pursuant to section 47 of the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents
 
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant 
exception to copyright.

The Swan P.H.
Breakspear Road North

Harefield

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH 
OF HILLINGDON

Planning, 
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database 
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 
100019283

18239/APP/2012/244

Page 113



Page 114

This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH PLANNING 
COMMITTEE 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF PLANNING, 
ENVIRONMENT, EDUCATION AND COMMUNITY 
SERVICES 

26th April 2012 CONTACT OFFICER: Nikki Wyatt 
 EXTENSION: 8145 

Item No. S.106/278 PLANNING AGREEMENTS - QUARTERLY FINANCIAL 
MONITORING REPORT

SUMMARY 

This report provides financial information on s106 and s278 agreements in the North 
Planning Committee area up to 31 December 2011 where the Council has received and 
holds funds. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Members note the contents of this report. 

INFORMATION 

1. Circular 05/05 and the accompanying best practice guidance requires local 
planning authorities to consider how they can inform members and the public of 
progress in the allocation, provision and implementation of obligations whether 
they are provided by the developer in kind or through a financial contribution. 

2. The information contained in this report was reported to Cabinet on 29 March 
2012 and updates the information received by Cabinet in December 2011.  The 
attached Appendix 1 provides updated financial information on s106 and s278 
agreements in the North Planning Committee area up to 31 December 2011, 
where the Council has received and holds funds. 

3. Appendix 1 shows the movement of income and expenditure taking place during 
the financial year.  The agreements are listed under Cabinet portfolio headings.  
Text that is highlighted in bold indicates key changes since the previous report of 
January 2012 to the Planning Committee.  Figures shown in bold under the 
column headed ‘Total income as at 31/12/11’ indicate new income received.  
Agreements asterisked under the column headed ‘case ref’ are those where the 
Council holds funds but is unable to spend for a number of reasons.  These 
include cases where the funds are held as a returnable security deposit for works 
to be undertaken by the developer and those where the expenditure is 
dependant on other bodies such as transport operators.  In cases where 
schemes have been completed and residual balances refunded, the refund 
amount is either the amount listed in the “Balance of Funds” column or where the 

Agenda Item 14

Page 115



amount listed in this column is zero the difference between the amounts listed in 
the columns titled “Total Income as at 30/09/11” and “Total Income as at 
31/12/11”. 

4. Members should note that in the Appendix, the ‘balances of funds’ held include 
funds that may already be committed for projects such as affordable housing and 
school expansion projects.  Expenditure must be in accordance with the legal 
parameters of the individual agreements and must also serve a planning purpose 
and operate in accordance with legislation and Government guidance in the form 
of Circular 05/2005. The Council has adopted Supplementary Planning Guidance 
for Planning Obligations that provides the framework in which the Council will 
operate. 

5. Members should also note that the listed “balances of funds”, i.e. the difference 
between income received and expenditure, is not a surplus.  As explained in a 
previous report, a majority of the funds is linked to projects that are already 
underway or programmed but have not been drawn down against the relevant 
s106 (or s.278) cost centre.  The column labelled “balance spendable not 
allocated” shows the residual balance of funds after taking into account funds 
that the Council is unable to spend and those that it has committed to projects. 

Financial implications 
6. This report provides information on the financial status on s106 and s278 

agreements up to 31 December 2011.  The recommendation to note has no 
financial implications.   

CORPORATE CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 

Legal
It is a requirement of the District Audit report into planning obligations and the 
Monitoring Officers report that regular financial statements are prepared. 

EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS CARRIED OUT 

There are no external consultations required on the contents of this report. 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 

ODPM Circular 05/2005 ‘Planning Obligations’ 
District Auditor’s “The Management of Planning Obligations” Action Plan May 1999 
Monitoring Officers Report January 2001 
Cabinet Report December 2002 / March 2003 / October 2003 / January 2004 / June 
2004 / September 2004 / November 2004 / March 2005 / July 2005 / October 2005 / 
December 2005 / March 2006 / July 2006 / Sept 2006 / November 2006 / March 2007 / 
July 2007 / September 2007 / December 2007 / March 2008 / June 2008 / September 
2008 / December 2008 / March 2009/ June 2009 / September 2009 / December 2009 / 

Page 116



March 2010/ June 2010/ September 2010 / December 2010/ March 2011/ June 2011/ 
September 2011/ December 2011/March 2012 
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document Adopted July 2008. 

Page 117



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
78

 

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G

P
T

27
8/

46
/1

35
*3

2
N

or
th

w
oo

d
10

A
 S

an
dy

 L
od

ge
 W

ay
, N

or
th

w
oo

d 
   

54
67

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

2/
54

7,
45

8.
07

7,
45

8.
07

2,
45

8.
00

2,
45

8.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
07

0.
00

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t o

f v
is

ib
ili

ty
 fo

r 
ju

nc
tio

n 
of

 S
an

dy
 L

od
ge

 W
ay

 &
 

W
oo

dr
id

ge
 W

ay
.  

E
C

U
 fe

es
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
la

im
ed

 a
nd

 £
5,

00
0 

se
cu

rit
y 

re
m

ai
ns

. W
or

ks
 s

ub
st

an
tia

lly
 c

om
pl

et
e 

12
 m

on
th

 
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 p

er
io

d,
 e

nd
ed

 1
6 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
06

. F
in

al
 

ce
rt

ifi
ca

te
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

pr
ep

ar
ed

.  
S

ec
ur

ity
 h

el
d 

to
 p

ar
t o

ff
se

t 
ou

ts
ta

nd
in

g 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

w
hi

ch
 is

 b
ei

ng
 s

ou
gh

t v
ia

 
le

ga
l p

ro
ce

ed
in

gs
.

P
T

27
8/

63
/1

75
A

   
   

  
*4

9
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

B
F

P
O

, R
.A

.F
 N

or
th

ol
t 

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

20
91

5,
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

£5
k 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

th
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

de
po

si
t f

or
 th

e 
du

e 
an

d 
pr

op
er

 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 ju

nc
tio

n 
w

or
ks

 a
t t

he
 W

hi
te

 H
ou

se
 G

at
e 

en
tr

an
ce

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
S

ig
na

ls
 c

om
pl

et
e 

an
d 

in
 

op
er

at
io

n.
  C

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
ith

in
 1

2 
m

on
th

 m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 p
er

io
d.

 D
at

e 
of

 fi
na

l c
om

pl
et

io
n 

to
 b

e 
co

nf
irm

ed
.  

P
T

/2
78

/6
4/

17
3

E
as

tc
ot

e 
&

 
E

as
t R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

. E
as

tc
ot

e 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

19
,2

00
.0

0
19

,2
00

.0
0

12
,2

01
.1

3
12

,2
01

.1
3

0.
00

6,
99

8.
87

0.
00

E
ng

in
ee

rs
 fe

es
 p

ai
d 

pr
io

r 
to

 th
e 

ex
ec

ut
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ag
re

em
en

t t
o 

se
cu

re
 a

cc
es

s 
w

or
ks

 a
ss

oc
ia

te
d 

w
ith

 th
is

 a
pp

lic
at

io
n.

 W
ai

tin
g 

re
st

ric
tio

n 
in

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n.

 E
lm

 A
ve

/L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

 
ju

nc
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t p
en

di
ng

. E
lm

 A
ve

 P
ed

es
tr

ia
n 

cr
os

si
ng

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l p

en
di

ng
.(

£5
,5

00
) 

de
si

gn
 fe

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

pl
us

 
fu

rt
he

r 
£6

,7
00

 fo
r 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 fo

ot
pa

th
 w

or
ks

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t b

y 
LB

H
. 

£7
,5

00
 e

ng
in

ee
rin

g 
fe

es
 c

la
im

ed
. F

un
ds

 s
pe

nt
 to

w
ar

ds
 

te
m

po
ra

ry
 fo

ot
pa

th
 w

or
ks

. F
ur

th
er

 £
5,

00
0 

se
cu

rit
y 

de
po

si
t f

or
 

pr
op

er
 e

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 h

ig
hw

ay
 w

or
ks

.

P
T

/2
78

/7
2/

23
1A

   
   

   
   

   
*6

6
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 P

ar
k)

 
D

es
ig

n 
ch

ec
k 

on
 S

27
8 

D
es

ig
ns

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

53
,9

86
.5

7
53

,9
86

.5
7

27
,4

86
.5

7
27

,4
86

.5
7

0.
00

26
,5

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s.
 P

el
ic

an
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

an
d 

si
gn

al
s 

on
 L

on
g 

La
ne

. S
27

8 
ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l 

pe
nd

in
g.

F
ur

th
er

 £
18

,0
00

 r
et

ur
na

bl
e 

de
po

si
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
re

in
st

at
em

en
t o

f t
em

po
ra

ry
 c

ro
ss

ov
er

 o
n 

A
ly

sh
am

 D
riv

e.
 

F
ur

th
er

 fe
es

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

fe
es

 a
nd

 tr
af

fic
 

or
de

rs
. S

pe
nd

 to
w

ar
ds

 fe
es

 &
 in

sp
ec

tio
n.

P
T

/2
78

/7
3

S
ou

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
R

.A
.F

 N
or

th
ol

t.,
 S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

M
ai

n 
G

at
e 

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

13
21

2,
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
00

0.
00

0.
00

F
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s.

 J
un

ct
io

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t 
W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d/

 B
rid

ge
w

at
er

 R
oa

d.
 S

27
8 

ag
re

em
en

t a
nd

 
te

ch
ni

ca
l a

pp
ro

va
l p

en
di

ng
.

P
T

/2
78

/7
5/

21
8A

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
T

he
 H

ar
ef

ie
ld

 A
ca

de
m

y,
 H

ar
ef

ie
ld

 
11

09
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
82

5
72

,0
11

.0
8

72
,0

11
.0

8
59

,5
55

.0
7

48
,3

09
.9

9
14

,5
83

.4
8

12
,4

56
.0

1
0.

00
F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s.
 A

lte
ra

tio
n 

to
 A

ca
de

m
y 

en
tr

an
ce

 a
nd

 p
ro

po
se

d 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

.S
27

8 
ag

re
em

en
t a

nd
 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
pp

ro
va

l p
en

di
ng

 . 
fe

es
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s 
fo

r 
pe

de
st

ria
n 

cr
os

si
ng

. £
68

,0
11

.0
8 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 
ze

br
a 

cr
os

si
ng

 o
n 

N
or

th
w

oo
d 

R
oa

d.
S

ch
em

e 
co

m
p

le
te

, 
aw

ai
ti

n
g

 in
vo

ic
es

.

P
T

/2
78

/7
7/

19
7 

   
   

   
  

*6
2

R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
W

in
dm

ill
 H

ill
 P

ub
lic

 H
ou

se
, P

em
br

ok
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
 1

19
24

/A
P

P
/2

63
2

24
,0

00
.0

0
24

,0
00

.0
0

1,
00

0.
00

1,
00

0.
00

0.
00

23
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

ee
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 fo
r 

de
si

gn
 c

he
ck

s 
(£

1,
00

0)
. £

23
,0

00
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 

a 
se

cu
rit

y 
de

po
si

t t
o 

en
su

re
 w

or
ks

 a
re

 c
ar

rie
d 

at
 to

 a
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

st
an

da
rd

. £
1,

00
0 

en
gi

ne
er

in
g 

fe
es

 c
la

im
ed

.

P
T

/2
78

/7
8/

23
8G

   
*7

6
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

m
r 

M
ill

 W
or

ks
, B

ur
y 

S
tr

ee
t, 

R
ui

sl
ip

 
61

57
/A

P
P

/2
00

9/
20

69
19

,7
82

.0
0

19
,7

82
.0

0
14

,7
82

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

5,
00

0.
00

0.
00

F
ee

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fo

r 
de

si
gn

 c
he

ck
s 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
&

 s
up

er
vi

si
on

. 
£5

,0
00

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 a
 s

ec
ur

ity
 d

ep
os

it 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

hi
gh

w
ay

 w
or

ks
 

ar
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

ou
t t

o 
a 

sa
tis

fa
ct

or
y 

st
an

da
rd

. F
ee

s 
cl

ai
m

ed
 f

o
r 

d
es

ig
n

 c
h

ec
ks

 &
 m

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 (

£1
4,

75
2)

.

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 2
78

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
20

3,
43

7.
72

20
3,

43
7.

72
11

7,
48

2.
77

91
,4

55
.6

9
14

,5
83

.4
8

85
,9

54
.9

5
0.

00

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
06

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 R

E
C

Y
C

L
IN

G

P
T

/2
5/

56
*2

4
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

J 
S

ai
ns

bu
ry

, 1
1 

Lo
ng

 D
riv

e,
 R

ui
sl

ip
  

33
66

7/
T

/9
7/

06
84

 
37

,4
25

.0
9

37
,4

25
.0

9
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
37

,4
25

.0
9

0.
00

H
ig

hw
ay

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

th
e 

si
te

. L
eg

al
 a

dv
ic

e 
st

at
ed

 th
at

 b
ec

au
se

 o
f t

im
e 

th
at

 h
as

 e
la

ps
ed

, i
t w

ou
ld

 n
ot

 b
e 

re
as

on
ab

le
 to

 p
ro

ce
ed

 w
ith

ou
t S

ai
ns

bu
ry

's
 a

gr
ee

m
en

t. 
O

ff
ic

er
s 

in
ve

st
ig

at
in

g 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l t

o 
ut

ili
se

 th
es

e 
fu

nd
s 

fo
r 

tr
af

fic
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

at
 th

at
 ju

nc
tio

n 
to

 c
om

pl
em

en
t c

ur
re

nt
 

w
or

ks
 th

at
 h

av
e 

be
en

 c
om

m
is

si
on

ed
 fo

r 
th

at
 lo

ca
tio

n.
 A

 p
or

tio
n 

of
 la

nd
 o

w
ne

d 
by

 S
ai

ns
bu

ry
's

 w
ou

ld
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
de

di
ca

te
d 

as
 

pu
bl

ic
 h

ig
hw

ay
 fo

r 
th

e 
sc

he
m

e 
to

 b
e 

fe
as

ib
le

.  
T

ra
ff

ic
 

co
ng

es
tio

n 
m

iti
ga

tio
n 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 fu

lly
 fu

nd
ed

. O
ff

ic
er

s 
in

ve
st

ig
at

in
g 

w
he

th
er

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 c
ou

ld
 b

e 
tie

d 
in

to
 1

14
 b

us
 

ro
ut

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
E

xc
es

s 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

r 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f t

he
 F

in
al

 A
cc

ou
nt

. 

P
ag

e 
1 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 118



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
P

T
/7

6/
11

9
N

or
th

w
oo

d
La

nd
 a

t 6
4 

D
uc

ks
 H

ill
 R

oa
d 

N
or

th
w

oo
d/

 2
69

00
L/

99
/1

07
7

35
,2

53
.5

6
35

,2
53

.5
6

28
,1

19
.1

5
28

,1
19

.1
5

2,
89

2.
92

7,
13

4.
41

0.
00

T
o 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
sp

ee
d 

ca
m

er
a,

 a
nt

i-s
ki

d 
su

rf
ac

e 
an

d 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 
ro

ad
 m

ar
ki

ng
s 

in
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d.
 S

pe
ed

 c
am

er
a 

ca
nn

ot
 b

e 
in

st
al

le
d 

in
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n,
 a

s 
th

e 
ac

ci
de

nt
 r

at
e 

in
 th

is
 lo

ca
tio

n 
is

 
be

lo
w

 th
e 

th
re

sh
ol

d 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
by

 T
fL

. D
ee

d 
of

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
no

t 
re

qu
ire

d.
si

te
 in

cl
ud

ed
ed

 in
 v

eh
ic

le
 a

ct
iv

at
ed

 s
ig

n 
(V

A
S

) 
fo

rw
ar

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e.
 O

ff
ic

er
s 

lo
ok

in
g 

in
to

 fe
as

ib
ili

ty
 o

f '
D

riv
er

 F
ee

db
ac

k 
S

ig
n'

.  
Im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

du
e 

S
pr

in
g 

20
07

, s
ub

je
ct

 to
 fe

as
ib

ili
ty

. 
Q

uo
te

s 
be

in
g 

so
ug

ht
 w

ith
 th

e 
vi

ew
 to

 p
os

si
bl

e 
pu

rc
ha

se
 o

f 
si

gn
s.

 In
te

re
st

 a
cc

ru
ed

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 U
til

iti
es

 w
or

ks
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 N

ov
 0

8.
 S

ch
em

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

ed
 fo

r 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

A
pr

il/
M

ay
 2

01
0.

S
pe

nd
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

nt
i s

ki
d 

an
d 

el
ec

tr
ic

al
 w

or
k.

 V
A

S
 s

ig
ns

 in
st

al
le

d,
 s

ch
em

e 
co

m
pl

et
e,

 a
w

ai
tin

g 
in

vo
ic

es
.

P
T

/1
12

/2
05

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

7,
50

2.
15

7,
50

2.
15

55
0.

00
55

0.
00

0.
00

6,
95

2.
15

0.
00

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

Lo
nd

on
 c

yc
le

 
ne

tw
or

k 
w

ith
in

 a
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 1
50

0m
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
by

 S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
13

. F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

(2
6/

10
/2

01
0)

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 c

yc
le

 s
he

lte
r 

as
 p

ar
t o

f E
as

tc
ot

e 
S

ta
tio

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
.

P
T

/1
17

/2
31

B
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 

P
ar

k)
, H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

  
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 c

yc
le

 r
ou

te
 

89
/n

et
w

or
k 

93
 a

s 
pa

rt
 o

f t
he

 L
on

do
n 

C
yc

le
 N

et
w

or
k.

 F
un

ds
 to

 
be

 s
pe

nt
 w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

N
ov

 2
01

5)
.

P
T

/1
20

/2
41

A
R

ui
sl

ip
 

28
 &

 2
8a

 K
in

gs
en

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

57
40

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

12
14

2,
50

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

2,
50

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

un
de

rt
ak

in
g 

of
 a

 T
A

 to
 a

ss
es

s 
th

e 
cu

m
ul

at
iv

e 
tr

af
fic

 im
pa

ct
 o

f f
la

tte
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
ts

 in
 K

in
gs

en
d.

 
F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

A
pr

il 
20

16
).

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 
&

 R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
11

2,
68

0.
80

11
2,

68
0.

80
28

,6
69

.1
5

28
,6

69
.1

5
2,

89
2.

92
84

,0
11

.6
5

30
,0

00
.0

0

P
L

A
N

N
IN

G
 T

R
A

N
S

P
O

R
T

A
T

IO
N

 
&

 R
E

C
Y

C
L

IN
G

 T
O

T
A

L
31

6,
11

8.
52

31
6,

11
8.

52
14

6,
15

1.
92

12
0,

12
4.

84
17

,4
76

.4
0

16
9,

96
6.

60
30

,0
00

.0
0

   
P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

C
U

L
T

U
R

E
, S

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 L

E
IS

U
R

E

C
S

L/
6/

18
9A

R
ui

sl
ip

30
 K

in
gs

 E
nd

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
46

29
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

21
65

7,
67

4.
48

7,
67

4.
48

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
67

4.
48

0.
00

T
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
im

m
ed

ia
te

 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

. E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 M
an

or
 

F
ar

m
 L

ib
ra

ry
. S

ub
je

ct
 to

 fo
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 fu

nd
in

g.

C
S

L/
7/

19
5A

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
24

94
9,

57
8.

00
9,

57
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
9,

57
8.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s 

on
 th

e 
ex

pe
nd

itu
re

 o
f f

un
ds

. C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 P

oo
l. 

C
ab

in
et

 
M

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

1/
09

/2
01

1.

C
S

L/
9/

19
9A

R
ui

sl
ip

41
, K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
27

92
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
34

51
9,

33
8.

43
9,

33
8.

43
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
9,

33
8.

43
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
co

ns
tr

ai
nt

s.
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 M

an
or

 
F

ar
m

 L
ib

ra
ry

. S
ub

je
ct

 to
 fo

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
of

 fu
nd

in
g.

C
S

L/
10

/2
00

B
M

an
or

F
or

m
er

 R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
 L

ib
ra

ry
, V

ic
to

ria
 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 1

45
39

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

21
02

5,
20

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
20

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 n

ea
ry

 b
y 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

 L
ib

ra
ry

 a
nd

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 C

en
tr

e.
 S

ub
je

ct
 to

 fo
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

of
 

fu
nd

in
g.

 C
S

L/
11

/2
05

B
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

27
7,

13
1.

54
27

7,
13

1.
54

16
1,

98
8.

37
16

1,
98

8.
37

11
3,

48
4.

57
11

5,
14

3.
17

0.
00

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f l

ei
su

re
, 

yo
ut

h 
an

d/
or

 c
ul

tu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

ith
in

 E
as

co
te

 a
nd

 E
as

t R
ui

sl
ip

 
w

ar
d 

bo
un

da
ry

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

. £
26

5k
 

fr
om

 th
is

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
ha

s 
be

en
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 

po
ol

 im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e.
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 

re
ce

iv
ed

 1
/0

9/
20

11
. 

C
S

L/
12

/2
15

A
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

- 
11

, R
es

er
vo

ir 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

  
61

13
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
0

13
,3

38
.0

0
13

,3
38

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

13
,3

38
.0

0
13

,3
38

.0
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y.
 N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

en
d.

 E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 
R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

, L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

. S
ub

je
ct

 to
 fo

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.

P
ag

e 
2 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 119



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
C

S
L/

15
/2

31
D

R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 R
A

F
 R

ui
sl

ip
 (

Ic
ke

nh
am

 P
ar

k)
, 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

   
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

26
9,

75
0.

00
26

9,
75

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

26
9,

75
0.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 fa

ci
lit

y 
or

 th
e 

ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 a
n 

ex
is

tin
g 

fa
ci

lit
y 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 fo

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

le
is

ur
e,

 e
ld

er
ly

, y
ou

th
 a

nd
/o

r 
cu

ltu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

iti
hn

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y 

of
 th

e 
la

nd
. F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
15

.F
un

ds
 

ea
rm

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ss

 T
he

at
re

, 
su

bj
ec

t t
o 

an
 e

lig
ib

le
 s

ch
em

e 
an

d 
fo

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.

C
S

L/
17

/2
38

A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

31
,6

45
.2

5
31

,6
45

.2
5

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
,6

45
.2

5
31

,6
45

.2
5

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 c
om

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

sc
he

m
es

 o
r 

m
ea

su
re

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. F

ur
th

er
 

£1
6,

13
5.

84
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 r

em
ai

ni
ng

 5
0%

 o
f c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n.
F

un
ds

 e
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 n

ew
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

y 
at

 th
e 

fo
rm

er
 R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

, L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

. 
S

ub
je

ct
 to

 fo
rm

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

C
S

L/
18

/2
38

B
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

3,
26

8.
46

3,
26

8.
46

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
26

8.
46

3,
26

8.
46

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 li
br

ar
y 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
an

d/
or

 
lib

ra
ry

 b
oo

ks
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. 

C
S

L/
19

/2
37

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42

24
,1

30
.1

4
24

,1
30

.1
4

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

24
,1

30
.1

4
24

,1
30

.1
4

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

nd
 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. F
un

ds
 to

 
be

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
16

.F
un

ds
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
si

on
 o

f a
 n

ew
 c

om
m

un
ity

 fa
ci

lit
y 

at
 th

e 
fo

rm
er

 R
A

F
 R

ui
sl

ip
, 

Li
m

e 
G

ro
ve

. S
ub

je
ct

 to
 fo

rm
al

 a
llo

ca
tio

n.

C
S

L/
20

/2
39

A
E

as
tc

ot
e

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

tc
ot

e 
R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
, 1

06
22

/A
P

P
/2

00
6/

22
94

 
&

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
25

04

22
,3

50
.0

0
22

,3
50

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

22
,3

50
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

le
is

ur
e,

 e
ld

er
ly

, y
ou

th
 a

nd
/o

r 
cu

ltu
ra

l s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
. F

un
ds

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 P

oo
l i

m
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e,
 C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
ap

pr
ov

al
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

1/
09

/2
01

1 
.

C
S

L/
22

/2
41

B
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

9a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
3,

25
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
3,

25
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
ex

pa
ns

io
n 

of
 lo

ca
l c

om
m

un
ity

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t 

w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
A

pr
il 

20
16

).

C
S

L/
23

/2
43

A
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

.H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

14
,3

00
.0

0
14

,3
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
,3

00
.0

0
14

,3
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

C
S

L
/2

9/
26

3A
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
F

o
rm

er
 S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
R

o
ad

, R
u

is
lip

 (
p

lo
t 

A
).

  
67

08
0/

A
P

P
/2

01
0/

14
19

35
6.

03
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
35

6.
03

35
6.

03
C

o
n

tr
ib

u
ti

o
n

 r
ec

ei
ve

d
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
o

r 
im

p
ro

ve
m

en
t 

to
 li

b
ra

ry
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 a
n

d
/o

r 
lib

ra
ry

 b
o

o
ks

 in
 

H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
. N

o
 t

im
e 

lim
it

s 

C
U

L
T

U
R

E
, S

P
O

R
T

 A
N

D
 

L
E

IS
U

R
E

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
69

1,
31

0.
33

69
0,

95
4.

30
16

1,
98

8.
37

16
1,

98
8.

37
11

3,
48

4.
57

52
9,

32
1.

96
90

,2
87

.8
8

   
 P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

 A
N

D
 C

H
IL

D
R

E
N

'S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
Y

L/
66

/1
44

N
or

th
w

oo
d

68
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

11
90

0/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
10

87
18

3,
04

4.
65

18
3,

04
4.

65
99

,8
19

.5
7

99
,8

19
.5

7
0.

00
83

,2
25

.0
8

0.
00

T
ow

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 

pl
ac

es
 in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 £
16

,4
00

 s
pe

nt
 o

n 
R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l. 

£7
5,

85
2.

85
 s

pe
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 R
ui

sl
ip

 H
ig

h 
S

ch
oo

l c
os

ts
. E

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
fo

r 
P

rim
ar

y 
S

ch
oo

l e
xp

an
si

on
s 

in
 

no
rt

h 
R

ui
sl

ip
/N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
s.

 F
ur

th
er

 £
1,

42
3 

sp
en

t t
ow

ar
ds

 
R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l. 

£5
,0

00
 s

pe
nt

 to
w

ar
ds

 S
ac

re
d 

H
ea

rt
 

P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l m

od
er

ni
sa

tio
n.

E
Y

L/
87

/1
43

B
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

D
ai

ry
 F

ar
m

, B
re

ak
sp

ea
r 

R
d,

 H
ar

ef
ie

ld
   

27
31

4/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
84

4
10

3,
12

2.
52

10
3,

12
2.

52
74

,9
35

.5
2

74
,9

35
.5

2
0.

00
28

,1
87

.0
0

28
,1

87
.0

0
F

or
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l p
la

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. F

un
ds

 
no

t s
pe

nt
 b

y 
25

 A
ug

us
t 2

01
4 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

pa
id

. E
ar

m
ar

ke
d 

fo
r 

pr
im

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l e

xp
an

si
on

s 
in

 n
or

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
/N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
s.

 
F

un
ds

 s
pe

nt
 to

w
ar

ds
 S

ac
re

d 
H

ea
rt

 P
rim

ar
y 

S
ch

oo
l 

m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n.
 F

ur
th

er
  £

28
,1

87
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

fo
r 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l p

la
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h.

 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
 o

n 
sp

en
d.

E
Y

L/
10

2/
19

6
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

19
, V

er
no

n 
D

riv
e,

 H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

57
49

8/
A

P
P

/2
00

8/
30

31
73

9.
00

73
9.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
73

9.
00

73
9.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 n

ur
se

ry
 s

ch
oo

l p
la

ce
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
10

3/
19

7A
R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

W
in

dm
ill

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

, P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
 1

19
24

/A
P

P
/2

63
2

68
,6

89
.0

0
68

,6
89

.0
0

34
,9

80
.7

9
34

,9
80

.7
9

0.
00

33
,7

08
.2

1
33

,7
08

.2
1

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
lo

ca
lit

y.
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(F
eb

 2
01

4)
. £

34
,9

80
.7

9 
sp

en
t t

ow
ar

ds
 R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l.

P
ag

e 
3 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 120



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
E

Y
L/

10
5/

19
9B

R
ui

sl
ip

41
, K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
27

92
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
34

51
37

,4
59

.2
0

37
,4

59
.2

0
37

,4
59

.2
0

37
,4

19
.2

0
40

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
pl

ac
es

 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

sp
en

d.
 F

un
ds

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

or
m

 o
f e

nt
ry

 a
nd

 s
ix

th
 

fo
rm

 c
en

tr
e 

at
 R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

sc
ho

ol
. (

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

de
ci

si
on

 
21

/1
0/

20
10

).
 £

37
,4

19
.2

0 
sp

en
t t

ow
ar

ds
 R

ui
sl

ip
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l. 

E
Y

L/
10

8/
20

2
Ic

ke
nh

am
17

9,
 S

w
ak

el
ey

s 
R

oa
d,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

. 
52

29
3/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

23
60

8,
03

7.
00

8,
03

7.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8,
03

7.
00

8,
03

7.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it 

on
 s

pe
nd

.

E
Y

L/
11

0/
20

5C
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

3,
73

4,
76

7.
17

3,
73

4,
76

7.
17

1,
00

0,
84

8.
79

97
3,

33
9.

50
65

4,
00

3.
75

2,
73

3,
91

8.
38

2,
72

9,
55

3.
09

F
irs

t a
nd

 s
ec

on
d 

in
st

al
m

en
ts

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l p
la

ce
s 

in
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 to

 n
ur

se
ry

, p
rim

ar
y 

or
 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
sc

ho
ol

s 
in

 th
e 

N
or

th
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 P
la

nn
in

g 
A

re
a.

 
N

ur
se

ry
 (

£4
21

,0
26

.7
6)

, p
rim

ar
y 

(£
75

0,
52

5.
95

) 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

(£
65

8,
99

8.
39

).
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 o

f 
th

e 
fir

st
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

(S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
16

).
 S

ec
on

da
ry

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
(£

65
8,

99
8)

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l 

fo
rm

 o
f e

nt
ry

 a
nd

 s
ix

th
 fo

rm
 c

en
tr

e 
at

 R
ui

sl
ip

 H
ig

h 
sc

ho
ol

. 
(C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
de

ci
si

on
 2

1/
10

/2
01

0)
. £

34
2,

00
0 

fr
om

 th
e 

N
ur

se
ry

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 D
ea

ns
fie

ld
 E

ar
ly

 Y
ea

rs
 

C
en

tr
e.

 (
C

ab
in

et
 M

em
be

r 
de

ci
si

on
 2

8/
10

/2
01

0)
.

T
hi

rd
 a

nd
 fi

na
l 

in
st

al
m

en
t r

ec
ei

ve
d 

th
is

 q
ua

rt
er

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

sa
m

e 
pu

rp
os

e.
 

N
ur

se
ry

 (
£4

37
,0

00
),

 P
rim

ar
y 

(£
77

9,
00

0)
 a

nd
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 
(£

68
4,

00
0)

. S
p

en
d

 t
h

is
 q

u
ar

te
r 

to
w

ar
d

s 
R

u
is

lip
 H

ig
h

 
p

ro
je

ct
.  

E
Y

L/
11

2/
20

8
N

or
th

w
oo

d
11

0,
 G

re
en

 L
an

e,
 N

or
th

w
oo

d 
   

46
54

3/
A

P
P

/2
00

5/
26

97
4,

08
5.

75
4,

08
5.

75
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
4,

08
5.

75
4,

08
5.

75
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
ar

ea
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
11

3/
21

1
Ic

ke
nh

am
1a

, W
oo

ds
to

ck
 D

riv
e,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

.  
65

75
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
0

8,
95

3.
00

8,
95

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

8,
95

3.
00

8,
95

3.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

if 
th

e 
si

te
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
11

5/
21

5B
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

to
 1

1 
R

es
er

vo
ir 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
.  

   
  

61
13

4/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
26

0
22

,0
87

.1
3

22
,0

87
.1

3
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
22

,0
87

.1
3

22
,0

87
.1

3
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ill
in

gd
on

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

sp
en

d.

E
Y

L/
11

7/
21

3
N

or
th

w
oo

d
1,

 O
ak

hu
rs

t, 
 N

or
th

ga
te

, N
or

th
w

oo
d.

 
30

77
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
36

4,
44

1.
00

4,
44

1.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

4,
44

1.
00

4,
44

1.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
an

d 
nu

rs
er

y 
pl

ac
es

 w
ith

in
 a

 3
 

m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
12

0/
21

7A
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

34
 H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

   
 

25
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

23
91

7,
19

3.
00

7,
19

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
19

3.
00

7,
19

3.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it 

on
 s

pe
nd

.

E
Y

L/
12

1/
22

1
R

ui
sl

ip
 M

an
or

2,
 W

in
dm

ill
 H

ill
, R

ui
sl

ip
. 

35
59

5/
A

P
P

/2
00

8/
29

51
6,

43
8.

00
6,

43
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6,

43
8.

00
6,

43
8.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
si

on
 o

f a
dd

iti
on

al
 n

ur
se

ry
 a

nd
 

pr
im

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
 p

la
ce

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

3/
23

3
Ic

ke
nh

am
6,

 W
ar

re
n 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
   

65
99

0/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
93

4
15

,4
92

.0
0

15
,4

92
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
15

,4
92

.0
0

15
,4

92
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

nu
rs

er
y,

 p
rim

ar
y 

&
 s

ec
on

da
ry

 s
ch

oo
l c

hi
ld

 
yi

el
d 

ar
is

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it 

on
 s

pe
nd

.

E
Y

L/
13

4/
23

4
R

ui
sl

ip
12

5a
, H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
 

20
61

/A
P

P
/2

00
9/

21
75

5,
05

4.
00

5,
05

4.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

5,
05

4.
00

5,
05

4.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 

ed
uc

at
io

na
l f

ac
ili

tie
s 

w
iti

hn
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 to
 

ac
co

m
m

od
at

e 
th

e 
pr

im
ar

y 
an

d/
or

 s
ec

on
da

ry
 s

ch
oo

l c
hi

ld
 y

ie
ld

 
ar

is
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

5/
23

5
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

32
5,

 V
ic

to
ria

 R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
  

63
60

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
22

88
12

,8
96

.0
0

12
,8

96
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
12

,8
96

.0
0

12
,8

96
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 
ac

co
m

m
od

at
e 

th
e 

ch
ild

 y
ie

ld
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

6/
23

6
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

C
as

a 
D

e 
B

oa
 V

is
ta

, B
el

fr
y 

A
ve

nu
e,

 
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

, 6
46

13
/A

P
P

/2
00

9/
21

80
16

,2
16

.0
0

16
,2

16
.0

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
16

,2
16

.0
0

16
,2

16
.0

0
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 a

dd
iti

on
al

/im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

na
l 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

iti
hn

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
si

te
 to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
nu

rs
er

y,
 p

rim
ar

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ar
y 

ch
ild

 y
ie

ld
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
13

7/
23

7B
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42

42
6,

34
6.

97
42

6,
34

6.
97

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

42
6,

34
6.

97
42

6,
34

6.
97

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 p

rim
ar

y 
ed

uc
at

io
n 

pl
ac

es
 to

 p
rim

ar
y 

sc
ho

ol
s 

in
 P

rim
ar

y 
A

re
a 

3 
. F

un
ds

 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

E
Y

L/
13

8/
23

8C
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

51
2,

74
2.

69
51

2,
74

2.
69

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

51
2,

74
2.

69
51

2,
74

2.
69

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 5

0%
 o

f t
he

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
co

nt
rib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 

th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 n
ur

se
ry

, p
rim

ar
y 

an
d 

se
co

nd
ar

y 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

S
ee

 le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 d

et
ai

ls
 o

f f
un

di
ng

 
sp

lit
).

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
. F

ur
th

er
 

£2
61

,4
46

.3
5 

re
ce

iv
ed

 a
s 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

P
ag

e 
4 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 121



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
E

Y
L/

13
9/

23
9B

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

64
,9

20
.0

0
64

,9
20

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

64
,9

20
.0

0
64

,9
20

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 o

r 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
14

3/
24

1C
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

8a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
6,

06
3.

75
6,

06
3.

75
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
6,

06
3.

75
6,

06
3.

75
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 
ed

uc
at

io
na

l f
ac

ili
tie

s 
to

 a
cc

om
m

od
at

e 
ch

ild
 y

ie
ld

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t .
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t b

y 
A

pr
il 

20
16

.

E
Y

L/
14

5/
24

3B
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

.H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

75
,9

89
.0

0
75

,9
89

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

75
,9

89
.0

0
75

,9
89

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

du
ca

tio
na

l 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h.
 F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f 

re
ce

ip
t (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

E
Y

L/
14

7/
 2

51
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

La
nd

 b
et

w
ee

n 
10

 &
 1

6 
M

an
or

 G
ar

de
ns

, 
R

ui
sl

ip
.  

   
   

   
63

73
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
8/

19
63

10
,7

69
.0

0
10

,7
69

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
,7

69
.0

0
10

,7
69

.0
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 o
r 

im
pr

ov
ed

 e
du

ca
tio

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

 to
 a

cc
om

m
od

at
e 

ch
ild

 
yi

ed
 a

ris
in

g 
fr

om
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
Y

L/
15

2/
25

5
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

La
nd

 b
et

w
ee

n 
11

 B
ra

ck
en

br
id

ge
 D

riv
e 

&
 4

8 
W

hi
te

bu
tts

 R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
.  

   
   

   
56

80
5/

A
P

P
/2

01
1/

43
6

66
,0

38
.0

0
66

,0
38

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

66
,0

38
.0

0
66

,0
38

.0
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 fo
r 

sp
en

d.

E
Y

L/
15

3/
25

6
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

F
or

m
er

 g
ar

ag
es

 s
ite

, r
ea

r 
of

 3
4-

44
 

S
ul

liv
an

 C
re

sc
en

t, 
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

.  
   

60
65

3/
A

P
P

/2
01

1/
90

7

46
,3

47
.0

0
46

,3
47

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

46
,3

47
.0

0
46

,3
47

.0
0

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 

ed
uc

at
io

n 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

 a
ris

in
g 

fr
om

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 fo
r 

sp
en

d.

E
Y

L
/1

60
/2

63
B

S
o

u
th

 R
u

is
lip

F
o

rm
er

 S
o

u
th

 R
u

is
lip

 L
ib

ra
ry

, 
V

ic
to

ri
a 

R
o

ad
, R

u
is

lip
 (

p
lo

t 
A

).
  

67
08

0/
A

P
P

/2
01

0/
14

19

12
,7

04
.4

3
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
12

,7
04

.4
3

12
,7

04
.4

3
F

u
n

d
s 

re
ce

iv
ed

 t
o

w
ar

d
s 

th
e 

co
st

s 
o

f 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 a

n
d

 o
r 

im
p

ro
ve

d
 e

d
u

ca
ti

o
n

al
 f

ac
ili

ti
es

 w
it

h
in

 t
h

e 
L

o
n

d
o

n
 B

o
ro

u
g

h
 

o
f 

H
ill

in
g

d
o

n
. N

o
 t

im
e 

lim
it

s.

E
D

U
C

A
T

IO
N

, Y
O

U
T

H
 A

N
D

 
L

E
IS

U
R

E
 S

U
B

 -
 T

O
T

A
L

5,
46

0,
63

5.
26

5,
44

7,
93

0.
83

1,
24

8,
04

3.
87

1,
22

0,
49

4.
58

65
4,

04
3.

75
4,

21
2,

59
1.

39
4,

12
5,

00
1.

02

   
  P

O
R

T
F

O
L

IO
: 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 &
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
E

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00

 P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
, P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
S

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 S

A
F

E
T

Y

P
P

R
/5

7/
23

8D
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

20
,6

79
.2

1
20

,6
79

.2
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

20
,6

79
.2

1
20

,6
79

.2
1

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 in
iti

at
iv

es
  w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

).

P
P

R
/5

8/
23

9C
 

E
as

tc
ot

e
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

. 1
06

22
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

9,
66

7.
50

9,
66

7.
50

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

9,
66

7.
50

9,
66

7.
50

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 c

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 a
 w

or
k 

pl
ac

e 
co

-o
rd

in
at

or
 w

iti
hn

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

.

P
P

R
/6

2/
23

1C
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 W
es

t R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 

P
ar

k)
, H

ig
h 

R
oa

d 
, I

ck
en

ha
m

. 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

75
,0

00
.0

0
75

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

75
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
in

st
al

la
tio

n 
of

 3
 C

C
T

V
 c

am
er

as
 

an
d 

as
so

ci
at

ed
 in

fr
as

tu
ru

ct
ur

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
N

ov
 

20
15

).
F

un
ds

 tr
an

sf
er

re
d 

fr
om

 P
T

/1
18

/2
31

C
.

P
P

R
/6

5/
26

3C
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
F

o
rm

er
 S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
R

o
ad

, R
u

is
lip

 (
p

lo
t 

A
).

  
67

08
0/

A
P

P
/2

01
0/

14
19

9,
78

2.
64

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

9,
78

2.
64

9,
78

2.
64

F
u

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
co

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 
tr

ai
n

in
g

 c
o

u
rs

es
 d

el
iv

er
ed

 b
y 

re
co

g
n

is
ed

 p
ro

vi
d

er
s 

an
d

 t
h

e 
p

ro
vi

si
o

n
 o

f 
a 

co
n

st
ru

ct
io

n
 w

o
rk

 p
la

ce
m

en
t 

co
o

rd
in

at
o

r 
w

it
h

in
 H

ill
in

g
d

o
n

. N
o

 t
im

e 
lim

it
s.

P
E

R
F

O
R

M
A

N
C

E
, 

P
A

R
T

N
E

R
S

H
IP

S
  &

 
R

E
G

E
N

E
R

A
T

IO
N

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L

11
5,

12
9.

35
10

5,
34

6.
71

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
5,

12
9.

35
40

,1
29

.3
5

  P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
F

IN
A

N
C

E
 P

R
O

P
E

R
T

Y
 &

 B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

E
/4

6/
17

6B
N

or
th

w
oo

d
F

or
m

er
 T

ru
e 

Lo
ve

rs
' K

no
t P

ub
lic

 
H

ou
se

, R
ic

km
an

sw
or

th
 R

oa
d,

 
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
 2

77
17

/A
P

P
/2

00
7/

14
40

21
,1

95
.0

0
21

,1
95

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

21
,1

95
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t "
T

he
 G

ra
ve

l P
its

" 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t o
r 

ot
he

r 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

B
or

ou
gh

. N
o 

tim
e 

co
ns

tr
ai

nt
s.

 A
re

a 
of

fic
er

 is
 d

ra
w

in
g 

up
 a

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

of
 w

or
ks

 to
 

be
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
at

 th
is

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 a

llo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 s
ch

em
e 

of
 im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 a

t T
he

 G
ra

ve
l P

its
.(

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

9/
20

10
).

P
ag

e 
5 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 122



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
E

/4
7/

17
7B

M
an

or
41

-5
5,

 W
in

dm
ill

 H
ill

, R
ui

sl
ip

 p
la

nn
in

g 
re

f.4
82

83
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
23

53
38

,2
58

.3
9

38
,2

58
.3

9
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
38

,2
58

.3
9

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

e 
an

d 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

la
nd

.  
T

hi
s 

su
m

 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

pp
ro

xi
m

at
el

y 
£8

k 
fo

r 
bi

ns
 a

nd
 b

en
ch

es
 a

nd
 £

30
k 

fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n'

s 
pl

ay
 s

pa
ce

.  
F

un
ds

 n
ot

 s
pe

nt
 w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(2
4 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

12
) 

ar
e 

to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
. O

ff
ic

er
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 
dr

aw
in

g 
up

 a
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 w
or

ks
 fo

r 
W

ar
re

nd
er

 P
ar

k.
 F

un
ds

 
al

lo
ca

te
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
 s

ch
em

e 
of

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t W

ar
re

nd
er

 
P

ar
k 

(C
ab

in
rt

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

9/
20

10
).

 

E
/4

8/
18

1A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
B

ur
y 

W
ha

rf
, B

ur
y 

S
tr

ee
t R

ui
sl

ip
.  

P
la

nn
in

g 
re

f. 
19

03
3/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

32
69

2,
03

0.
70

2,
03

0.
70

1,
31

5.
31

1,
31

5.
31

0.
00

71
5.

39
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
an

 in
te

rp
re

ta
tio

n 
si

gn
 to

 b
e 

lo
ca

te
d 

in
 th

e 
ne

ar
by

 p
lo

t o
f l

an
d 

kn
ow

 a
s 

M
ur

ph
y'

s 
fie

ld
, m

or
e 

pa
rt

ic
ul

ar
ly

 
de

sc
rib

ed
 a

s 
P

ub
lic

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

 to
 th

e 
so

ut
h 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t s
ite

 im
m

ed
ia

te
ly

 a
dj

oi
ni

ng
 D

uc
ks

 H
ill

 R
oa

d.
  

In
te

re
st

 a
cc

ru
ed

 m
us

t b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

to
 th

e 
ab

ov
e 

pu
rp

os
e.

  F
un

ds
 

no
t s

pe
nt

 p
rio

r 
to

 8
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
13

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
re

fu
nd

ed
.P

ro
je

ct
 

co
m

pl
et

e,
 a

w
ai

tin
g 

in
vo

ic
es

. S
pe

nd
 a

ga
in

st
 r

ev
en

ue
 a

cc
ou

nt
, 

co
st

s 
to

 b
e 

jo
ur

na
le

d 
to

 s
ho

w
 fo

r 
M

ar
ch

 q
ua

rt
er

. J
ou

rn
al

 
co

m
pl

et
ed

.

E
/5

0/
18

0B
N

or
th

w
oo

d 
H

ill
s

16
,W

at
fo

rd
 R

d 
an

d 
36

, B
ro

ok
en

d 
D

riv
e,

 N
or

th
w

oo
d 

pl
an

ni
ng

 r
ef

. 
62

53
5/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

27
26

20
,2

53
.0

0
20

,2
53

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
20

,0
00

.0
0

20
,0

00
.0

0
25

3.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

s 
of

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 lo

ca
l o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

at
 F

irt
hw

oo
d 

P
ar

k 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

r 
ot

he
r 

gr
ee

n 
sp

ac
es

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 
of

 
H

ill
in

gd
on

.  
N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
. O

ff
ic

er
s 

lo
ok

in
g 

at
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
of

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
F

rit
hw

oo
d 

P
ar

k.
 F

un
ds

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 a

 n
ew

 p
la

y 
ar

ea
 a

t F
rit

hw
oo

d 
P

ar
k.

 (
C

ab
in

rt
 

M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

9/
20

10
).

  S
ch

em
e 

co
m

p
le

te
d

 A
p

ri
l 2

01
1.

E
/5

6/
20

0C
M

an
or

F
or

m
er

 R
ui

sl
ip

 M
an

or
 L

ib
ra

ry
, V

ic
to

ria
 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
. 1

45
39

/A
P

P
/2

00
8/

21
02

5,
65

2.
00

5,
65

2.
00

5,
65

2.
00

0.
00

5,
65

2.
00

0.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 to
 n

ea
rb

y 
op

en
 s

pa
ce

 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s.

 N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 fo
r 

sp
en

d.
 F

un
ds

 a
llo

ca
te

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 a
t B

es
si

ng
by

 P
ar

k 
C

om
pl

ex
. (

C
ab

in
et

 M
em

be
r 

D
ec

is
io

n 
3/

6/
20

10
).

 S
ch

em
e 

co
m

p
le

te
.

E
/5

7/
20

5D
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

11
8,

80
3.

95
11

8,
80

3.
95

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
8,

80
3.

95
11

8,
80

3.
95

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

or
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t o
f 

ou
td

oo
r 

sp
or

ts
 a

nd
 /o

r 
pi

tc
h 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

00
0m

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 

th
e 

la
nd

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.

E
/5

8/
20

5E
E

as
tc

ot
e

R
A

F
 E

as
tc

ot
e,

 L
im

e 
G

ro
ve

, R
ui

sl
ip

. 
10

18
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
4/

17
81

28
,2

75
.5

0
28

,2
75

.5
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,2

75
.5

0
0.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
H

ig
h 

G
ro

ve
 N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
 a

nd
 u

pg
ra

de
 th

e 
pa

th
 n

et
w

or
k.

 W
or

ks
 a

re
 s

pe
ci

fie
d 

in
 

th
e 

ag
re

em
en

t.
F

ol
lo

w
in

g 
a 

D
ee

d 
of

 v
ar

ia
tio

n 
fu

nd
s 

ar
e 

no
w

 to
 

be
 s

pe
nt

 b
y 

S
ep

t 2
01

2.
 

E
/6

0/
21

5C
R

ui
sl

ip
5 

- 
11

 R
es

er
vo

ir 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
   

   
61

13
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
0

28
,9

94
.7

6
28

,9
94

.7
6

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,9

94
.7

6
28

,9
94

.7
6

C
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 to

w
ar

ds
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e/
re

cr
ea

tio
n 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
gr

ee
n 

sp
ac

es
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

lit
y.

 N
o 

tim
e 

lim
its

 o
n 

sp
en

d.

E
/6

1/
21

7B
H

ar
ef

ie
ld

34
  H

ig
h 

S
tr

ee
t, 

H
ar

ef
ie

ld
.  

   
 

25
9/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

23
91

7,
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

7,
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 a
dd

iti
on

al
 o

r 
im

pr
ov

ed
 r

ec
re

at
io

n/
op

en
 

sp
ac

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

w
ith

in
 a

 3
 m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

si
te

. N
o 

tim
e 

lim
it

E
/6

2/
23

1E
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 p

ar
k)

, 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

14
6,

87
9.

75
14

6,
87

9.
75

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

14
6,

87
9.

75
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 a
 c

om
m

ut
ed

 s
um

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

m
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
of

 th
e 

pl
ay

in
g 

fie
ld

s 
as

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 s

ch
em

e 
fo

r 
a 

pe
rio

d 
of

 1
0 

ye
ar

s.
 S

pe
nd

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

on
di

tio
ns

 a
s 

st
ip

ul
at

ed
 in

 th
e 

le
ga

l 
ag

re
em

en
t .

E
/6

3/
23

1F
R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 R

A
F

 R
ui

sl
ip

 (
Ic

ke
nh

am
 p

ar
k)

, 
H

ig
h 

R
oa

d,
 Ic

ke
nh

am
.  

 
38

40
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
7/

10
72

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

30
,0

00
.0

0
30

,0
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

us
ed

 fo
r 

w
or

ks
 to

 im
pr

ov
e 

th
at

 p
ar

t o
f t

he
 

H
ill

in
gd

on
 T

ra
il 

w
hi

ch
 li

es
 o

ut
si

de
 th

e 
bo

un
da

rie
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 

(N
ov

em
be

r 
20

15
).

E
/6

4/
23

8E
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
.  

61
57

/A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

 
60

,1
25

.9
7

60
,1

25
.9

7
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
60

,1
25

.9
7

60
,1

25
.9

7
£2

9,
46

7 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

si
on

 o
f o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
or

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 
th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 la
nd

. F
irs

t c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

18
.F

ur
th

er
 £

30
,6

58
.1

0 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 5
0%

 
of

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n.

E
/6

5/
23

7C
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
co

te
 R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
19

73
1/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

14
42

80
,4

31
.3

1
80

,4
31

.3
1

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

80
,4

31
.3

1
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
of

f s
ite

 p
ro

vi
si

on
 o

f f
or

m
al

 
re

cr
ea

tio
na

l o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

in
 th

e 
vi

ci
ni

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
ite

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

E
/6

6/
23

9D
E

as
co

te
H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 H
ou

se
, E

as
co

te
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
.  

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
22

94
 &

 
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

25
04

10
,0

00
.0

0
10

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

10
,0

00
.0

0
0.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f e

nh
an

ce
m

en
t a

nd
/o

r 
na

tu
re

 c
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

 a
t H

ig
hg

ro
ve

 W
oo

ds
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

E
/6

8/
24

1D
R

ui
sl

ip
28

 &
 2

8a
 K

in
gs

en
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

. 
57

40
/A

P
P

/2
00

8/
12

14
8,

47
8.

00
8,

47
8.

00
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
8,

47
8.

00
8,

47
8.

00
C

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

re
ce

iv
ed

 to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
iti

hn
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f 
re

ce
ip

t (
A

pr
il 

20
16

)

P
ag

e 
6 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 123



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
E

/7
0/

24
3C

S
ou

th
 R

ui
sl

ip
F

m
r 

T
al

ly
 H

o 
P

H
, W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 8

41
8/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

91
3&

91
4

28
,9

67
.0

0
28

,9
67

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

28
,9

67
.0

0
28

,9
67

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 o
pe

n 
sp

ac
e 

an
d 

re
cr

ea
tio

na
l o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t 
w

ith
in

 7
 y

ea
rs

 o
f r

ec
ei

pt
 (

Ju
ne

 2
01

8)
.

E
/7

1/
25

0
S

ou
th

 R
ui

sl
ip

La
nd

 a
dj

ac
en

t t
o 

D
ow

ne
 B

ar
ns

 F
ar

m
, 

W
es

t E
nd

 R
oa

d,
 W

es
t E

nd
 R

oa
d,

 
N

or
th

ol
t. 

   
   

   
22

92
/A

P
P

/2
00

6/
24

75

15
,0

00
.0

0
15

,0
00

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

15
,0

00
.0

0
15

,0
00

.0
0

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

as
 m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 in

st
al

m
en

ts
 to

 a
ss

is
t w

ith
 th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t o
f T

en
 A

cr
es

 W
oo

d 
N

at
ur

e 
R

es
er

ve
 in

cl
ud

in
g,

 
st

af
fin

g,
 tr

ee
 &

 r
iv

er
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 a

nd
 v

ol
un

te
er

s'
 to

ol
s 

&
 

eq
ui

pm
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 to
 b

e 
sp

en
t w

ith
in

 1
1 

ye
ar

s 
of

 r
ec

ei
pt

 
(A

ug
us

t 2
02

1)
. 

F
IN

A
N

C
E

 P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 &
 

B
U

S
IN

E
S

S
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

  S
U

B
 -

T
O

T
A

L

65
0,

34
5.

33
65

0,
34

5.
33

26
,9

67
.3

1
21

,3
15

.3
1

25
,6

52
.0

0
62

3,
37

8.
02

29
7,

36
9.

68

P
O

R
T

F
O

L
IO

: 
S

O
C

IA
L

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
, H

E
A

L
T

H
 A

N
D

 H
O

U
S

IN
G

H
/9

/1
84

C
   

   
 *

55
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
31

-4
6,

 P
em

br
ok

e 
R

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
 

59
81

6/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
28

96
21

,6
75

.1
0

21
,6

75
.1

0
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
21

,6
75

.1
0

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 
m

ile
 r

ad
iu

s 
of

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t. 

F
un

ds
 n

ot
 s

pe
nt

 b
y 

01
/0

7/
20

15
 

m
us

t b
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

 to
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pe
r.

H
/1

1/
19

5B
   

 *
57

R
ui

sl
ip

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

co
te

 R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

24
94

3,
15

6.
00

3,
15

6.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
15

6.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

pr
ov

is
io

n 
of

 lo
ca

l h
ea

lth
 c

ar
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 th
e 

vi
ci

ni
ty

 o
f t

he
 s

ite
. N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

H
/1

2/
19

7B
   

 *
58

R
ui

sl
ip

W
in

dm
ill

 P
ub

lic
 H

ou
se

, P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

.  
11

92
4/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

26
32

11
,4

40
.0

0
11

,4
40

.0
0

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

11
,4

40
.0

0
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
fo

r 
th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 h

ea
lth

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

xb
rid

ge
 a

re
a.

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 5

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

 (
F

eb
 

20
14

).
 

H
/1

5/
20

5F
   

 *
65

E
as

tc
ot

e
R

A
F

 E
as

tc
ot

e,
 L

im
e 

G
ro

ve
, R

ui
sl

ip
. 

10
18

9/
A

P
P

/2
00

4/
17

81
18

4,
65

3.
23

18
4,

65
3.

23
0.

00
0.

00
0.

00
18

4,
65

3.
23

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
ca

re
 fa

ci
lit

es
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

E
as

tc
ot

e 
an

d 
E

as
t R

ui
sl

ip
 w

ar
d 

bo
un

da
ry

. F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

S
ep

te
m

be
r 

20
14

.

H
/1

9/
23

1G
   

*7
1

R
ui

sl
ip

F
or

m
er

 R
A

F
 R

ui
sl

ip
 (

Ic
ke

nh
am

 P
ar

k)
, 

H
ig

h 
R

oa
d,

 Ic
ke

nh
am

.  
 

38
40

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

7/
10

72

19
3,

30
5.

00
19

3,
30

5.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

19
3,

30
5.

00
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
co

st
s 

of
 p

ro
vi

di
ng

 p
rim

ar
y 

he
al

th
 

ca
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
w

ith
in

 a
 3

 m
ile

 r
ad

iu
s 

of
 th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t. 
F

un
ds

 
to

 b
e 

sp
en

t w
ith

in
 7

 y
ea

rs
 o

f r
ec

ei
pt

. (
N

ov
em

be
r 

20
17

).

H
/2

0/
23

8F
 *

72
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
 F

or
m

er
 M

ill
 W

or
ks

, B
ur

y 
S

tr
ee

t, 
R

ui
sl

ip
. 6

15
7/

A
P

P
/2

00
9/

20
69

31
,4

41
.9

9
31

,4
41

.9
9

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

31
,4

41
.9

9
0.

00
£1

5,
40

9 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

s 
50

%
 o

f t
he

 h
ea

lth
 c

on
tr

ib
ut

io
n 

to
w

ar
ds

 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

he
al

th
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

se
e 

le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t 

fo
r 

fu
rt

he
r 

de
ta

ils
).

 F
irs

t i
ns

ta
lm

en
t t

o 
be

 s
pe

nt
 b

y 
F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
18

. £
16

,0
32

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
as

 r
em

ai
ni

ng
 5

0%
 h

ea
lth

 c
on

tr
ib

ut
io

n.
 

F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

Ju
ne

 2
01

8.

H
/2

1/
23

7D
 *

73
E

as
tc

ot
e

B
is

ho
p 

R
am

se
y 

S
ch

oo
l (

lo
w

er
 s

ite
),

 
E

as
tc

ot
e 

R
oa

d,
 R

ui
sl

ip
.  

19
73

1/
A

P
P

/2
00

6/
14

42
 

22
,4

55
.8

8
22

,4
55

.8
8

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

22
,4

55
.8

8
0.

00
F

un
ds

 r
ec

ei
ve

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

of
 p

rim
ar

y 
he

al
th

 c
ar

e 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

in
 th

e 
U

xb
rid

ge
 a

re
a.

 F
un

ds
 to

 b
e 

sp
en

t b
y 

F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

16
.

H
/2

2/
23

9E
 *

74
E

as
tc

ot
e

H
ig

hg
ro

ve
 H

ou
se

, E
as

co
te

 R
oa

d,
 

R
ui

sl
ip

.  
10

62
2/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

24
94

 &
 

10
62

2/
A

P
P

/2
00

9/
25

04

7,
36

3.
00

7,
36

3.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

7,
36

3.
00

0.
00

F
un

ds
 r

ec
ei

ve
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
e 

co
st

 o
f p

ro
vi

di
ng

 h
ea

lth
 fa

ci
iti

es
 in

 
th

e 
B

or
ou

gh
 (

se
e 

le
ga

l a
gr

ee
m

en
t f

or
 fu

rt
he

r 
de

ta
ils

).
 N

o 
tim

e 
lim

its
.

H
/2

4/
18

4A
W

es
t R

ui
sl

ip
31

-4
6 

P
em

br
ok

e 
R

oa
d,

 R
ui

sl
ip

 
59

81
6/

A
P

P
/2

00
6/

28
96

49
,6

01
.5

3
49

,6
01

.5
3

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

49
,6

01
.5

3
0.

00
F

un
ds

 h
av

e 
be

en
 e

ar
m

ar
ke

d 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
di

ni
ng

 c
en

tr
e 

fo
r 

N
or

th
w

oo
d 

an
d 

R
ui

sl
ip

 e
ld

er
ly

 p
er

so
ns

 a
ss

oc
ia

tio
n.

 F
un

ds
 n

ot
  

sp
en

t b
y 

1/
07

/2
01

5 
to

 b
e 

re
tu

rn
ed

. F
un

ds
 tr

an
sf

er
re

d 
to

 S
oc

ia
l 

S
er

vi
ce

s,
 H

ea
lth

 &
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

or
tfo

lio
 fr

om
 C

S
L/

5/
18

4A
.

H
/2

8/
26

3D
  *

81
S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
F

o
rm

er
 S

o
u

th
 R

u
is

lip
 L

ib
ra

ry
, 

V
ic

to
ri

a 
R

o
ad

, R
u

is
lip

 (
p

lo
t 

A
).

  
67

08
0/

A
P

P
/2

01
0/

14
19

3,
35

3.
86

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

3,
35

3.
86

0.
00

F
u

n
d

s 
re

ce
iv

ed
 t

o
w

ar
d

s 
th

e 
co

st
 o

f 
p

ro
vi

d
in

g
 h

ea
lt

h
 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
in

 t
h

e 
A

u
th

o
ri

ty
's

 a
re

a 
in

cl
u

d
in

g
 t

h
e 

ex
p

an
si

o
n

 o
f 

h
ea

lt
h

 p
re

m
is

es
 t

o
 p

ro
vi

d
e 

ad
d

it
io

n
al

 f
ac

ili
ti

es
, n

ew
 h

ea
lt

h
 

p
re

m
is

es
 o

r 
se

rv
ic

es
 (

se
e 

le
g

al
 a

g
re

em
en

t 
fo

r 
d

et
ai

ls
).

 N
o

 
ti

m
e 

lim
it

 f
o

r 
sp

en
d

. 

S
O

C
IA

L
 S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 H
E

A
L

T
H

 &
 

H
O

U
S

IN
G

 S
U

B
-T

O
T

A
L

52
8,

44
5.

59
52

5,
09

1.
73

0.
00

0.
00

0.
00

52
8,

44
5.

59
0.

00

S
E

C
T

IO
N

 1
06

  S
U

B
 -

 T
O

T
A

L
7,

55
8,

54
6.

66
7,

53
2,

34
9.

70
1,

46
5,

66
8.

70
1,

43
2,

46
7.

41
79

6,
07

3.
24

6,
09

2,
87

7.
96

4,
58

2,
78

7.
93

   
   

   
   

   

G
R

A
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

 A
L

L
 S

C
H

E
M

E
S

7,
76

1,
98

4.
38

7,
73

5,
78

7.
42

1,
58

3,
15

1.
47

1,
52

3,
92

3.
10

81
0,

65
6.

72
6,

17
8,

83
2.

91
4,

58
2,

78
7.

93

� �
�

P
ag

e 
7 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 124



F
IN

A
N

C
IA

L
 U

P
D

A
T

E
 O

N
 S

E
C

T
IO

N
 1

06
 A

N
D

 2
78

 A
G

R
E

E
M

E
N

T
S

 A
T

 3
1 

D
ec

em
b

er
 2

01
1 

(N
o

rt
h

 A
re

a)
   

   
A

P
P

E
N

D
IX

 1

C
A

S
E

 R
E

F
.

W
A

R
D

S
C

H
E

M
E

 / 
P

L
A

N
N

IN
G

 
R

E
F

E
R

E
N

C
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 IN

C
O

M
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

T
O

T
A

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

20
11

 / 
20

12
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 O

F
 

F
U

N
D

S
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
S

P
E

N
D

A
B

L
E

 
N

O
T

 
A

L
L

O
C

A
T

E
D

C
O

M
M

E
N

T
S

(a
s 

at
 m

id
 F

eb
ru

ar
y 

20
12

)

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

t 
30

/9
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
0/

9/
11

T
o

 3
1/

12
/1

1
A

S
 A

T
 3

1/
12

/1
1

A
S

 A
T

 3
1/

12
/1

1

��
��
��
��
�	


�
�
��
	�
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
���

���
��
��
��
� 
��
�!
��"

� 
���

!
��
���
��
#�
��
$
��
��"

��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��
�%
��
&


	
�
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
"�
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
�'
 �
��(
��
��
��
���
��
���
"�
�"
�#
"!

�(
�!
��
)�
�*�
��
��
���
��
���
��
 �

��
�+
�

��
��
��

��
%�
&�


	
�
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
"�
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
�'
 �
��(
��
��
��
���
��
���
"�
�"
�#
"!

�(
�!
��
)�
�*�
��
��
���
��
���
��
 �

��
�+
�

�	
	�
�,
��
�-
%�
.


�
-
&�
	�
-�

� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�"
��
�"
�'
��
��
��
'�
���
��
��
��
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
�	
��
,-

-�
-�
	0


�
-
	&
��
�
� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�"
��
��"

�'
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
�	
%�
,-

��
-�
�0


-
-
��
��
��

� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�"
��
��"

�'
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
�&
��
��

��
�%
��
��
-�
�


�
�
��
��
��

"�
��
��
��
��
' 
���
(�
��
���
"�
��
 �
��
��

��
��
��
���

��
' 
���

��
��
��"

��
!
��
)�
�

�&
	�
�,
-	
��
�	
1


-
%�
&
	�
��
�
� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�"
��
��"

�'
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
�&
&�
��
��
�%
��
�


-
%
��
��
��

� 
��

��
��
'�
�/
��
��
��
��
��
' 
���
(�
��
��

��
���
��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
���

��
' 
���

��
��
�!
��
)�

��
-�
,�
-�
��
�-
2


-
��
�
�	
��
�
� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�,
��
��"

�.
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
��
��
,�
��
��
�%
1


�
-
��
-�
��

� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�,
��
��"

�.
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
��
��
,�
�-
��
��
3


�
�
�	
	�
%%

� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�,
��
��"

�.
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
��
��
,�

��
��
�4


�
�
&�
��
�
� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�,
��
��"

�.
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�
��
&�
��

��
%�
��
%2


	
�
��
��
�
��
���

��
��
"�
��
��
��
��
��
� 
��
��
��
��
�'
 �
��(
��
��
��
���
��
���
"�
�"
�#
"!

�(
�!
��
)�
�*�
��
��
���
��
���
��
 �

��
�+
�

�%
-�
,�
�%
��
&�
3


�
�
	�
�%
&
� 
��

��
"�
/�
��
��
��
��
'�
�/
��
���

��
��
/�
��
�,
��
��"

�.
��
��
��
�/
�'
��
���
��"

��
��

��
 #

"�
�"
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
���
"�
�,
���
��
#�

��
��
.�

���
��
��
��

�

	
��
�
&�
�-
	

56
�4

7

�"
��
��
��
�'
��
��
�� 

��
��
��
$
��
��
�#

�$
 �
���

��
��
��
���

��
!
��
)�
��
��
��
���

 �
���
��
�'
"�
��
��
/�
� 

��
��
#�
��
$
��
��

0�
��
���
# 

��
��
��
��
'�
��
�'
"�
�#

��
���
���
'�
$
��
��
��
��
��
��

�� 
��

0�
��
��
��

��
���
)�
8�"

��
 #

"�
��
��
���
��
'�
��
��
)�
(�
'"
��
#�
��
��
�'
��
�"
��
.�

��
��
���
��
��
���
��
��"

��
��
�/
��
 �
�9
 �
���

���
���
# 

��
��

��3
��
��
��
�� 

��
��
�"
��
.�

 �
'�
���
��
 �

��
��
���

��
��
��

�'
 �
��
��
�(
�*�
��
��
��

	
��
�
&�
�-
	+

:�
'�
$
��
��#

 �
��
���

���
'"
�$

��
�!
��"

��
��
"�
��
��
'�
���
���
��
'�
��
�!
"�
��
�� 

��
��
��
��
"�
��
���
���
��
��
��
��
��
���

#�
�'
'�
 �

��
�

P
ag

e 
8 

of
 8

A
pp

en
di

x 
1_

pr
oj

ec
t f

in
an

ce
 u

pd
at

e 
fo

r 3
1s

t D
ec

em
be

r 2
01

1(
no

rth
).x

ls

Page 125



Page 126

This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Annex

Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



46.3m
90

89

96

98

LB

El Sub Sta

95

108

39.9m

74

84

120

41.8m
91

41.8m

99
45.1m

70

114

P
ath

(u
m
)

B
R
E
A
K
S
P
E
A
R
R
O
A
D
S
O
U
TH

C
O
P
T
H
A
L
L
R
O
A
D
W
E
S
T

40.5m
´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

120 Breakspear Road South
Ickenham

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

13019/APP/2011/3019

Page 132



Page 133



Page 134



Page 135



Page 136



Page 137



43

St M
atth

ew's

24

Nor
thw

ood

P
arad

e

50

L
W
A
Y

5

39

4

22

8

61

5a

6

5

59

15

26

Works

17

Presby

1

51

Issues

Tara

60

38

71.9m

SL

2

LB

5

23
H
A
LL
O
W
E
LL
R
O
A
D

21

53

71.9m

Car Park

7

ASHURS
T CLOSE

3

12

13

28

32

16

Boy
s Cl

ub

1

2

ELGIN

RC C
hurc

h

75.0m

4

FOR
GE L

ANE

DR
IV
E

49

29

LB

14

Hall

29a

St John's Chu
rch

Hall

1

19

1

SL

31

St Matthew's

1to6

Court

1

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Land rear of St. Matthews Church
Forge Lane
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

62125/APP/2012/281

Page 138



Page 139



Page 140



Page 141



Page 142



10

18

GROVE ROAD

7
9a

7a

25

2

9

29

19

13

19

31

16

7
9

33

37
a

37

LB

35

29

31
11

35

78
31
a

15

Boro Const, GL Asly Const & LB Bdy

Def

Co Const Bdy

1.22m
RH

Def

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

19 Grove Road
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

27846/APP/2012/226

Page 143



Page 144



Page 145



111

105

94

10
4

SL

2a

HI
G
HF
IE
LD
CL
O
SE

Milburn

Glen View

Windrush

2b

1

7

Tanglewood

1

1a

6

2

83

1b
5

3

79

77

99

71.3m

43

Mossleigh

Nor
thw

ood

50

SL

1c

82

61

84
a

86

13.75

59

1d

51

Issues

60

38

71.9m

84

5

MP

W
E
LL
R
O
A
D

70

43a

Dra
in

71

90

Boy
s Cl

ub

D
R
IV
E

LB

Hall
O
O
K

75

SL

o6 1

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

Rear of 64 - 66 Hallowell Road
Northwood

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

2200/APP/2011/2927

Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



82

54.3m

28b

26

15

6

6

2

14

8

14

3

4a

10

Rosedene

10

4a

10
2

KINGSEND

POPLARS
CLOSE

20

Scout Hall

11

26b

88

73

Ba
nk

1

11
0

18

R
E
G
E
N
C
Y
D
R
IV
E

18a

Methodist

2

7

4

Bank

22

CL
OS
E

1

7

30 to 52

81
83

10a

98

52.1m

22

27

Woodstock

HIG
H
STREET

11a

B
ank

34a

Court

Ruislip

8

6

86

Church

9

SOVE
REIGN

11

5

16

2
to
2
0

28

ICK
EN
HA
M R

OA
D

63

2

75
to
791

84

6

4

1

11

20

26a

El Sub Sta

1

17

15

23a

TCBs

10

The
Tho

mas
Mor

e B
uild

ing

1 to
44

Beech
TreeChe

stn
ut T

ree

Mimosa

30

1 to 11

Elthorne Court

´

February
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

5 Poplars Close
Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

61775/APP/2011/1204

Page 155



Page 156



Page 157



125

2

1a

9

21

177

G
R
E
E
N
C
R
O
F

157

Yeading Brook

RUS
SEL

L C
LOS

E

175

206

Q
U
E
E
N
S
W
A
L
K

14

19
3

39.0m

236

38.4m

46

19
1

Whit
by P

arad
e

39

Luth
erian

Chu
rch

TCB

38.4m

Surgery

141

58

131

Sub Sta

133

1

39.0m

27

MOUN

234

238

169

El

232

218

27

St A
ndre

w's

5

153

34

183

18
7

14

25
a

175a

194

165

18
9

182

PO

WHI
TBY

ROA
D

13

1

1

17
7

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

214 Whitby Road
Ruislip

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

35710/APP/2012/171

Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



Page 163



Page 164



Page 165



Page 166



18
The

3

2

2

1

1

29

1t
o1
0

PO

5

1

St Marys

1

LB88.1m

12
f

Church
25

15

PC

(PH)

12
a

10
26

27

Hall

Ap
pl
e

9

Harefield House

GP

4

PO
ND
CL
OS
E

Swan

G
ar
ag
e

2

11

12

15

10

H
IG
H
ST
R
E
ET

17

Pond

Ashley

Pe
ar

9

34

9

Tr
ee
s

Cricket Ground

3

Pavilion

War

South Cottage

24

3

36

Tr
ee
s

8

1a

31

El Sub Sta

PH

23

Harefield

The Green

The

33

10

Memorial

Taylor Close

16

1

12
d

14

3

88.7m

88.7m

35

TCBs
Arms
King's

The Poplars

Garage

Cedar
House

The Coach House

Car Park

Hi
gh

Pi
n

Pond Cottage

´

April
2012

Site AddressNotes

For identification purposes only.

Site boundary

This copy has been made by or with
the authority of the Head of Committee
Services pursuant to section 47 of the
Copyright, Designs and Patents
Act 1988 (the Act).
Unless the Act provides a relevant
exception to copyright.

The Swan P.H.
Breakspear Road North

Harefield

North

Planning Application Ref:

Planning Committee Date

Scale

1:1,250

LONDON BOROUGH
OF HILLINGDON

Planning,
Environment, Education
& Community Services

Civic Centre, Uxbridge, Middx. UB8 1UW
Telephone No.: Uxbridge 250111

© Crown copyright and database
rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
100019283

18239/APP/2012/242

Page 167



Page 168

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 120 Breakspear Road South, Ickenham - 13019/APP/2011/3019
	7 Land R/O St Mathews Church, Forge Lane, Northwood - 62125/APP/2012/281
	8 19 Grove Road, Northwood - 27846/APP/2012/226
	9 R/O 64-66 Hallowell Road, Northwood - 2200/APP/2011/2927
	10 5 Poplars Close, Ruislip - 61775/APP/2011/1204
	11 214 Whitby Road, Ruislip - 35710/APP/2012/171
	12 The Swan PH, Breakspear Road North, Harefield - 18239/APP/2012/242
	13 The Swan PH, Breakspear Road North, Harefield - 18239/APP/2012/244
	14 S 106 Quarterly Monitoring Report to 31 December 2011
	Plans for North Planning Committee

